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Company No: 18417-M

CIMB Investment Bank Berhad

(Incorporated in Malaysia)

Directors’ Report
for the financial year ended 31 December 2012

The Directors have pleasure in submitting their Report and the Audited Financial Statements of
the Group and CIMB Investment Bank Berhad (“the Bank™) for the financial year ended 31
December 2012 '

Principal activities

The principal activities of the Bank during the financial year are investment banking and the
provision of related financial services. The principal activities of the subsidiaries during the
financial year are as set out in Note 11 to the Financial Statements, consist of futures broking
and the provision of nominee services Thete was no significant change in the nature of these
activities during the financial year.

Financial results

The Group The Bank
RM’000 RM’000
Net profit after taxation 127,374 124,696

Dividends

The dividends on -ordinary shares and redeemable preference shares paid or declared by the
Bark since 31 December 2011 were as follows:

RM’000
In respect of the financial year ended 31 December 2011:
An interim single tier dividend of 61.86 sen per ordinary share and 3,717.10 sen
per redeemable preference shares was paid on 19 March 2012 99,035

The Directors have proposed a final single tier dividend comprising of 56 sen per ordinary
share, amounting to RM56,000,000 in respect of financial year ended 31 December 2012 The
dividend was approved by the Board of Directors in a resolution dated 4 February 2013.

Reserves, provisions and allowances

There were no matetial transfers to or from reserves or provisions or allowances during the
financial year other than those disclosed in the Financial Statements and Notes to the
Financial Statements.




Company No: 18417-M

CIMB Investment Bank Berhad

{Incorporated in Malaysia)

Directors’ Report
for the financial year ended 31 December 2012 (Continued)

Issuance of shares

There were no changes to authorised issued and paid up capital of the Bank during the
financial yesat.

Bad and doubtful debts, and financing

Before the Financial Statements of the Group and of the Bank were made out, the Directors
took reasonable steps to ascertain that proper action had been taken in relation to the writing
off of bad debts and financing and the making of allowance for doubtful debts and financing,
and satisfied themselves that all known bad debts and financing had been written off and that
adequate allowance had been made for doubtful debts and financing.

At the date of this Report, the Directors are not aware of any circumstances which would
render the amounts written off for bad debts and financing, ot the amount of the allowance
for doubtful debts and financing in the Financial Statements of the Group and of the Bank,
inadequate to any substantial extent.

Current assets

Before the Financial Statements of the Group and of the Bank were made out, the Directors
took reasomable steps to ascertain that any cwrrent assets, other than debts and financing,
which were unlikely to realise in the ordinary course of business, their values as shown in the
accounting records of the Group and of the Bank had been wiiiten down to an amount which
they might be expected so to realise.

At the date of this Report, the Directors are not aware of any circumstances which would
render the values attributed to cutrent assets in the Financial Statements of the Group and of
the Bank misleading,

Valuation methods

At the date of this Report; the Directors are not aware of any circumstances which have
arisen which render adherence to the existing method of valuation of assets or liabilities of
the Group and the Bank misleading or inappropriate

Contingent and other liabilities
At the date of this Report, there does not exist:

{(a) any charge on the assets of the Group or the Bank which has arisen since the end of
the financial year which secures the Hability of any other person; o1

{b) any contingent lability of the Group or the Bank which has arisen since the end of the
financial year other than in the ordinary course of banking business.
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Company No: 18417-M

CIMB Investment Bank Berhad

(Incorporated in Malaysia)

Directors’ Report
for the financial year ended 31 December 2012 (Continued)

Contingent and other liabilities (Continued)

No contingent ot other liability in the Group or the Bank has become enforceable or is likely
to become enforceable within the period of twelve months after the end of the financial year
which, in the opinion of the Directors, will or may substantially affect the ability of the Bank
and its subsidiaries to meet theit obligations when they falt due

Change of circumstances

At the date of this Report, the Directors are not aware of any circumstances not otherwise
dealt with in this Report or the Financial Statements of the Group and of the Bank, that
would render any amount stated in the Financial Statements misleading.

Items of an unusual nature
In the opinion of the Directors:

{a)  the results of the Group’s and the Bank’s operations for the financial year have not
been substantially affected by any item, transaction o1 event of a material and unusual
nature other than disclosed in Note 47 to the Financial Statements; and

{b) there has not arisen in the interval between the end of the financial year and the date of
this Report any item, transaction or event of a material and unusual nature likely to
affect substantially the results of the operations of the Group ot the Bank for the
financial year in which this Report is made

Directors

The names of the Directors of the Bank who have held office since the date of the last Report
and at the date of this Report are:

Dato® Hamzah bin Bakar

Date” Sri Mohamed Nazir bin Abdul Razak

Dato" Zainal Abidin bin Putih

Nicholas Rupert Heylett Bloy (resigned on 17 February 2012)
Zahardin bin Omnardin

Dato’ Charon Wardini bin Mokhzani

Habibah binti Abdul (appointed on 30 May 2012)

In accordance with Articles 75A and 75B of the Bank’s Articles of Association, Dato” Zainal
Abidin bin Putih and Dato’ Charon Wardini bin Mokhzani retire from the Board at the
forthcoming Annual General Meeting and being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

(P8 ]




Company No: 18417-M

CIMB Investment Bank Berhad

(Incorporated in Malaysia)

Directors’ Report

for the financial year ended 31 December 2012 (Continued)

Directors’ interests in shares and share options

According to the Register of Directors’ Shareholdings, the beneficial interests of the Directors
who held office at the end of the financial year, in the shares and share options of the ultimate

holding company during the financial year are as follows:

Number of prdinary shares of RMI1 each

As at Acquired/ As at
1 January granted Disposed 31 December
Ultimate holding company
CTVB Group Holdings Berhad
Dato’ $ri Mohamed Nazir bin Abdul Razak* 55365875 388 405 # {4000 000} 51784 281
Zahardin bin Omardin 18292 - - 18291
Dato Charon Wardini bin Mokhzani* * 320478 180772 # - 301,230
Dato' Zainal Abidin bin Putih*** 110,000 . - 110 000
# Shares granted under Equity Ownership Plan (“EOP™)
*  Include shareholding of spouse, details of which are as follows:
As at As at
1 Yanuary Acquired Disposed 31 December
Dato Arzlina binti Abdul Aziz 8 000,000 - (4.000.000% 4.000.000
*# Include shareholding of spouse details of which are as follows:
As at As at
1 Tanuary Acquired Disposed 31 December
Datin Saidah Binti Rastam 10000 - - 10,000
**% Include sharehclding of spouse and children, details of which are as follows:
As at As at
1 January Acquired Disposed 31 December
Datin Jasmine Binti Abdullah Heng 20 000 - . 20,000
Mohamad Arni Zulkamain bin Zainal Abidin 10000 - - 10000

CIMB Niaga I'bk

-Subordinated Notes

Date’ Sri Mohamed Nazir bin Abdul Razak
Dato' Charon Wardini bin Mokhzani

CIMB Niaga I'bk
-Subordinated Notes Series B Bond
Date' Charon W ardini bin Mokhzani

No. of debentures held

As at As at
Acquired/
1 January Granted Disposed 31 December
IDR 4,500,000,000 - - IDR 4,500,000,000
IDR 1,000,000,000 - - IDR1,000,000,000

IDR 2,000.000.000 - - IDR 2.000,000.000




Company No: 18417-M

CIMB Investment Bank Berhad

(Incorporated in Malaysia}

Directors’ Report
for the financial year ended 31 December 2012 (Continued)

Directors’ interests in shares and share options (Continued)

Other than as disclosed in the previous page, according to the Register of Directors’
Shareholdings, the Directors in the office at the end of the financial year did not hold any
interest in shares, and share options of the Bank, the holding company, the ultimate holding
company and its related companies during the financial year

Directors’ benefits

Since the end of the previous financial year, no Director of the Bank has received or become
entitled to receive any benefit (other than the benefit included in the aggregate amount of
emoluments received or due and receivable by Directors shown in Notfe 32 to the Financial
Statements or the fixed salary as a full time employee of the Bank) by reason of a contract made
by the Bank or a related company with the Director or with a firm of which the Director is a
member ot with a company in which the Director has a substantial financial interest

Neither at the end of the financial year, nor at any time during the financial year, did there
subsist any other arrangemients to which the Bank is a party with the object or objects of
enabling Directors of the Bank to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, ot
debentures of, the Bank or any other body corporate other than the Management Equity Scheme
and Equity Ownership Plan of the uiltimate holding company (see Note 41 to the Financial
Statements) as disclosed in this Report

2012 Business Plan and Strategy

For the year 2012, the Bank continued to leverage on CIMB Group’s regional platform to
offer 1egional capabilities and a strong distribution network to our clients.

The Bank had a record year for equity market deals, where we led most of the major deals in
Malaysia and ranked no 1 on the Malaysian ECM league table. 2012 saw several large
Islamic IPO deals, including the listing of Felda Global Ventures Berhad (5th largest IPO
globally in 2012) and THH Healthcare Berhad (6™ largest IPO globally in 2012), both of
which were successfully managed by the Bank, resulting in a significant increase in our
Islamic income compared to the previous year. M&As however, were slower compared to
2011 until the 4Q2012, when the Bank came in particularly strong. For 2012, the bank
continued to be in the top 3 Malaysian M&A league table

Equities broking however saw industry margins and turnover continue to weaken,
Notwithstanding, the Bank still managed to record higher brokerage income year on year and
continued to be the no 1 equities broker in Malaysia for 2012.




Company No: 18417-M

CIMB Investment Bank Berhad

(Incorporated in Malaysia)

Directors’ Report
for the financial year ended 31 December 2012 (Continued)

2012 Business Plan and Strategy (Continued)

The Bank continued to win numerous investment banking and equity awards in 2012,
including Most Innovative Investment Bank in Asia award by the Ranker, Best Tnvestment
Bank (Malaysia) awards by Finance Asia, Euromoney and Alpha, Best Equity House
(Malaysia) awards by Finance Asia and Asiamoney. The Bank also delivered outstanding
results in the AsiaMoney Polls whereby our equity sales and research teams were ranked the

best in 16 categories.

Outlook for 2013

The Malaysian equity markets are likely to be volatile in the first half of 2013 amidst the
uncertainties amongst investors on the outcome of the impending general elections to be held
during this period. For the second half of the year, the outlook for investment banking and
equities in Malaysia is expected fo be more promising whereby the stock market is expected
to rebound post-elections.

For the financial year 2013, the Bank aims to defend its leadership position in the investment
banking industry. A key focus will be how to fully leverage the enlarged Group’s network

across Asia Pacific to deliver to our customers the value proposition of the Group’s franchise
as a whole.

Ratings by External Rating Agencies

Details of the ratings of the Bank and its debt securities are as follows:

Rating Agency Rating Classification

Definifion (Long Term Ratings of the Bank)

RAM Rating Services Berhad
Date aceorded : August 2012

Long Term Financial Institution Rating/Outlook : AAA/Stable
Short Tenn Financial Institntion Rating : P1

Indicates a superior capacity to meet its
financial obligations

Moody s Investors Service Inc
Date aceorded : Janvary 2013

Long Term Local Currency Issuer Rating : A3
Short Tenn Local Curreney Issuer Rating: P-2
Long Term Foreign Comency Issuer Rating : A3
Shant Term Fereign Currency Issuer Rating ; P-2
Qutlook : Stable

Indicates expectation of low credit isk

Standard & Poor’s Ratings ServicLong Term Loeal Currency Issuer Credit Rating/Outlook : A-/Stable A Indicates strong capacity to meet fts

Date accorded : Degember 2012

Shert Tenn Local Currency Issuer Credit Rating : A-2

Long Tenn Foreign Cumrency Issuer Credit Rating/Outlook : A-/Stable
Short Term Foreign Currency Issuer Credit Rating ;: A-2

Long TermLocal Cumency ASEAN Rating : axA &

Short Tenn Local Cusrency ASEAN Rating : axA-1

Long Term Foreigu Currency Subordinated {1 issue)  BBB+

financial commitments but is somewhat more
susceptible to the adverse effects of changes
in circumstances and economic conditions
thar cbligors in higher-rated categories
axAA : Indicates very strong capacity to
meet its financial commitments relative te
ciher regional obligors




Company No: 18417-M

CIMB Investment Bank Berhad

{Incorporated in Malaysia)

Directors’ Report
for the financial year ended 31 December 2012 (Continued)

Board Shariah Committee

Pursuant to the enterprise wide Shariah governance framework as provided by Bank Negara
Malaysia in its Guideline on Shariah Governance for Islamic Financial Institutions and now
as enshrined in the recently approved Islamic Financial Services Act, 2013, the Board of
Directors (“the Board”) is ultimately responsible and accountable for the oversight and
management of Shariah matters in the Bank’s Islamic banking and finance operations as well
as those Islamic business undertaken under its subsidiaries and associates that it has
management control, In undertaking its duties and tesponsibilities relating to Shariah, the
Board relies on the advice of the Board Shariah Committee of CIMB Group as established
under CIMB Islamic Bank Bethad, the core Islamic banking and finance operating entity of
the group.

The main responsibility of the Board Shariah Committee is to assist the Board in the
oversight and management of all Shariah matters relating to the Islamic banking and finance
business of the Bank, its subsidiaries and associates that it has management control. The
Board Shariah Committee operates on the authority as delegated and empowered to it by the
Board and as attributed to it under relevant financial regulations and legislations.

All decisions by the Board on Shariah matters relating its business shall be made based on
the decisions, views and opinions of the Board Shariah Committee If the Board disagrees
with any decisions, views, and opinions of the Board Shariah Committee on any Shariah
matter, the former shall refer back the matter to the latter for a second or third 1eview before
final decision is made. All and any final decision of the Board on Shariah matter shall be
made based on the final decisions, views and opinions of the Board Shariah Committee. All
decisions of the Board and the Board Shariah Committee on Shariah matters shall at all times
be subordinated to the decision of the Shariah Advisory Council of the relevant Malaysian
financial regulators and shall take into consideration the relevant authority on Shariah matters
in the relevant jurisdiction it is doing business.

The Board Shariah Committee shall at all times assist the Board to ensure that the Group’s
Islamic banking and finance business does not have elements/activities which are not
- permissible under Shariah.

The members of the Board Shariah Committee are as follows:

Sheikh Professor Dr, Mohammad Hashim Kamali
Sheikh Nedham Muhammad Seleh Yaqooby
Sheikh Dr. Haji MohdNai’m bin Haji Mokhtar
Sheikh Associate Professor Dr. Shafaai bin Musa
Sheikh Dt. Yousef Abdullah Al Shubaily
Professor [Dr. Neor Inayah Yaakub

Ov LA B b —




Company No: 18417-M

CIMB Investment Bank Berhad

{Incorporated in Malaysia}

Directors’ Report
for the financial year ended 31 December 2012 (Continued)

Board Shariah Committee (Continued)

The Board hereby affirms based on advice of the Board Shariah Committee that the operations
of the Bank and its subsidiaties that it has management control has been done in a manner that
does not contradict with Shariah save and except foi those that kave been specifically disclosed
in this financial report (if any). This affirmation by the Board is independently verified and
confirmed by the Board Shariah Committee in a separate Board Shariah Committee Report
made herein.

Zakat obligations

The obligation and responsibility for payment of Zakat lies with the Muslim shareholders (if
any) of the Bank and the Bank’s ultimate holding company. The obligation and responsibility
for specific payment of Zakat on deposits and investments received by the Bank from its
customers lies with the Muslim customer only. It is the same with any of the Bank’s banking
and asset management subsidiaries. The aforesaid is subject to the jurisdictional requirements
on Zakat payment as may be applicable from time to time on the Bank and its subsidiaiies
arising from changes to local legislation, regulation, law or market convention as the case
may be. Accrual of Zakat expenses (if any) in the financial statement of the Group and the
Bank is reflective of this.

Subsequent event after the financial year end

There are no significant events subsequent to the financial year ended 31 December 2012,
Statement of Director’s Responsibility

In prepating the Financial Statements, the Directors have ensured that the Malaysian
Financial Reporting Standards (“MFRSs"), International Financial Reporting Standards, and
the requirements of the Companies Act, 1965 have been complied with and reasonable and
prudent judgements and estimates have been made

It is the responsibility of the Directors to ensure that the financial statements of the Group
and the Bank present a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and of the Bank as
at 31 December 2012 and of the results and cash flows of the Group and of the Bank for the
financial year ended on that date.

The financial statements are prepared on a going concetn basis and the Directors have
ensured that proper accounting records are kept so as to enable the preparation of the
financial statements with reasonable accuracy.




Company No: 18417-M

CIMB Investment Bank Berhad

(Incorporated in Malaysia)

Directors’ Report
for the financial year ended 31 December 2012 (Continuea)

Statement of Director’s Responsibility (Continued)

The Directors have also overall responsibilities for taking such steps as are reasonably open
to them to safeguard the assets of the Group and the Bank and for the implementation and
continued operation of adequate accounting and internal control systems for the prevention

and detection of frand and other irregnlarities. The gystem of internal controls is designed to
provide reasonable and not absolute assurance for achieving certain internal control standards
and helps the Group and the Bank manage the risk of failure to achieve business.

The Staternent by Directors pursuant to Section 169 of the Companies Act, 1965 is set out on
page 10 of the Directors’ Report.

Ultimate holding company

The Directors regard CIMB Group Holdings Berhad, a quoted company incorporated in
Malaysia, as the Bank’s ultimate holding company.

Aunditors

The auditors, PricewaterhouseCoopers, have expressed their willingness to continue in
office.

Signed on behalf of the Board of Directors in accordance with their resolution.

-

Dato’ Haphzah bin Bakar
Director

Dato’ Charon Wardini bin Mokhzani
Director

Kuala Lumpur
12 March 2013




Company No: 18417-M

CIMB Investment Bank Berhad

{lacorporated in Malaysia)

Statement by Direclors
Pursuant to Section 169(15) of the Companies Act, 1565

We, Dato’ Hamzah bin Bakar and Date’ Charon Wardini bin Meokhzani, being two of the
Ditectors of CIMB Investment Bank Berhad, hereby state that, in the opinion of the
Directors, the Financial Statemenis set out on pages 17 to 199 are drawn up so as to give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and the Bank as at 31 December 2012
and of the results and the cash flows of the Group and the Bank for the financial year ended
on that date, in accordance with Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards (*MEFRSs™),
International Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements of the Companies Act,
1965,

Signed on behalf of the Board of Directors in accordance with their resolution.

Dato’ Charon Wardini bin Mokhzagi
Director

Kuala Lumpur
12 March 2013

Statutory Declaration
Pursuant to Section 169(16) of the Companies Act, 1965

I, Kim Kenny, being the officer primarily responsible for the financial management of CIMB
Investment Bank Berhad, do solemnly and sincerely declare that, the Financial Statements set
out on pages 17 to 199 are, in my opinion, correct and I make this solemn declaration
conscientiously believing the same to be true and by virtue of the provisions of the Statutory
Declarations Act, 1960

UL~
Kim ny

Subscribed and solemnly d?)%;jgg
me, on 12 March 2013 /2%

Fa’e)
/ &
Commissioner for Oaths{ Q

205, Bangunan Loke Yew
4, Jin Mahkamsn Persekutuan
50050 Kosla Lumnur




Company No; 18417-M

CIMB Investment Bank Berhad

(Incorporated in Malaysia)

Board Shariah Committee’s Report
In the name of Allah, the Most Beneficent, the Most Merciful

We, the members of the CIMB Group Board Shariah Committee as established under CIMB
Islamic Bank Berhad, is responsible to assist the Board in the oversight and management of
Shariah matters in the operation of the Bank. Although the Board is ultimately responsible
and accountable for all Shariah matters under the Bank, the Board telies on our independent
advice on the same

Our main 1esponsibilities and accountabilities is to assist the Board in ensuting that the
Bank’s Islamic banking and finance businesses does not have elements/activities which are
not permissible under Shatiah In undertaking our duties we shall follow and adhere to the
decisions, views and opinions of the Shariah Advisory Council of the relevant Malaysian
financial regulators for businesses undettaken in Malaysia and for businesses outside
Malaysia we shall take into consideration the decisions, views and opinions of the relevant
authority on Shariah matters (if any, sanctioned by law/regulation to be followed by the
Bank) in the relevant jurisdiction that the Bank is doing business.

As members of the Board Shariah Committee, we are responsible to provide an independent
assessment and confirmation in this financial report that the Islamic banking and finance
operations of the Bank has been done in conformity with Shariah as has been decided and
opined by us and with those Notices, Rules, Standards, Guidelines and Frameworks on Shariah
matters as announced and implemented by Malaysian regulators and where relevant by the
financial regulators in the relevant jurisdictions that the Bank’s businesses were undertaken
during the period being reported.

Ouw independent assessment and confirmation has been used as the basis for the Board’s
affirmation of the same in the Director’s Report hereinbefore.

In making our independent assessment and confirmation, we have always recognised the
importance of the Bank maintaining and reinforcing the highest possible standards of conduct in
all of its actions, including the preparation and dissemination of staternents presenting fairly the
Shariah compliant status of its Islamic banking and finance businesses In this regard we have
developed and maintained a system of monitoring and reporting which provides the necessary
internal controls to ensure that any new Islamic financial tiansactions are properly authorised
and transacted in accordance to the requirements of Shariah; the Bank’s assets and liabilities
under its Islamic banking and finance balance sheets are safeguarded against possible shariah
non-compliance; and, that the day to day conduct of its Islamic banking and finance operations
does not contradict Shariah principles.

The system is augmented by written policies and procedures, the careful selection and training
of Shariah qualified staff, the establishment of an organisational structure that provides an
appropriate and well-defined division of responsibility by Management and the communication
of Shariah pelicies and guidelines of business conduct to all staff of the Bank

11




Company No: 18417-M

CIMB Investment Bank Berhad

{Incorporated in Malaysia)

Board Shariah Committee’s Report (Continued)

Firstly, the system of intemal control for effective Shariah govemance is supported by a
professional staff’ of® Shariah researchers that supports us in our decision and deliberations,
providing check and balance for all Shariah matters as presented to us by the Management.
Secondly, the Management has instituted the Shariah review framework that operates on a front
to back basis comprising of self-assessment/self-reporting mechanism and periodic independent
review undertaken by Group Compliance Department under the General Counsel Division.
Thirdly, the system is alse augmented by the Management putting in place a Shariah 1isk
management framework covering the first; second and; third line of defenses. Lastly, there 1s
also a strong team of internal auditors who conduct periodic Shariah audits of all the Bank’s
Islamic banking and finance operations on a scheduled and periodic basis.

‘We acknowledge that in 2012 the emplaced system of internal control in the Bank to meet the
newly instituted enterprise wide Shariah governance framework by Bank Negara Malaysia is
still relatively new with a Jot of rooms for further improvement. On balance, we are satisfied
that the Management has put in place the appropriate level of control as required by us. We also
take comfort that on top of all these system of internal control, the external auditors have full
and fiee access to, and meet pericdically with, us and the Audit Committee to discuss their audit
and findings as to the integrity of the Bank’s Shariah compliance in its Islamic banking and
finance activities and the adequacy of the system of internal controls to detect non-compliance
to Shariah.

Allin all, the Management of the Bank is responsibie and accountable to the Board to ensure
that the businesses of the Bank are done in accordance with the requirement of Shariah. It is our
responsibility to form an independent opinion of the state of Shariah compliancy of the business
and its operations and advice the Board accordingly. Based on the internal and external controls
that have been put in place by the Management, in owr opinion, to the best of cur knowledge, the
Bank has complied with the Shariah rulings issued by the Shariah Advisory Council of Bank
Negara Malaysia and by all other financial regulators (where relevant), as well as Shariah
dectsions made by us.

In our opinion:
1. The contracts, transactions and dealings entered into by the Bank duing the financiai

year ended 31 December 2012 that were presented to us were done in compliance with
Shariah;

[ OS]

The allocation of profit and charging of losses relating to investment accounts
conformed to the basis that were approved by us in accordance with Shariah; and

All eamnings that were realised from sources or by means prohibited by Shariah have
been considered for disposal to charitable causes

8}
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CIMB Investment Bank Berhad

{Incorporated in Malaysia)

Board Shariah Committee’s Report (Continved)

We have assessed the :ndependent work carried out for Shariah review and Shatiah aud.
functions by the relevant functionaries under the established system of internal control, which
included the examination, on a test basis, of each type of transaction, of relevant documentation
and procedures adopted by the Bank. We are satisfied that the Management has planned and
performed the necessary review and audit so as to obtain all the information and explanations
which are considered necessary to provide us with sufficiert evidence to give reasonable
assurance that the Bank has not violated Shariah

We, the members of the Board Shariah Committee, are of the opinion that the operations of the
A in Aronfrrees th

Dol £re thn fnnnainl < " Aad 21 T lans 2017 y Avrat 1 1
DanK 101 ne Iifancia yeatl enaed o1 UeCEimodt 4vis WCIT CORGUiieq in contformity witn

Shariah

(On behalf of the Board Shariah Committee

Sheikh Professor Dr. Mokamma Kamali

Membet
Q.

Sheikh Associate Professor Dr. Shafaai bin Musa
Member

Kuala Lumput
12 March 2013
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF CIMB INVESTMENT BANK BERHAD
{Company No: 18417-M)

{Incorporated in Malaysia)

REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

We have audited the Financial Statements of CIMB Investment Bank Berhad on pages 17 to 199, which
comprise statements of financial position as at 31 December 2012 of the Group and of the Bank, and
statements of income, statements of comprehensive income, statements of changes in equity and
statements of cash flows of the Group and of the Bank for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes, as set out on notes 1 to 50.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Directors of the Bank are responsible for the preparation of Financial Statements so as to give a
true and fair view in accordance with Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards, International
Financial Reporting Standards, and the requirements of Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysm The
Directors aze also responsible for such internal control as the Directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of Financial Statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error

Anditors’ Responsibility

Owr responsibility is to express an opinion on these Financial Statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia. Those standards
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance whether the Financial Statements are free flom material misstatement

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the Financial Statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgement, including the
assessment of risks of material misstatement of the Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, we consider internal control relevant to the Bank’s
preparation of Financial Statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Bank’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the Directors, as
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the Financial Statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opimion.

PricewaterhouseCoopers (AF 1146), Chartered Accountants,
Level 10, 1 Sentral, Jalan Travers, Kuala Lumpur Sentral, P.O. Box 10192, 50706 Kuala Lumpur, Malays:a
T: +60 (3) 2173 1188, F: +60 (3) 2173 1288, www pwc com/my -
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF CIMB INVESTMENT BANK BERHAD (CONTINUED)
(Company No: 18417-M)

(Incorporated in Malaysia)

REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
Opinion

In our opinion, the Financial Statements have been propeily drawn up in accordance with Malaysian
Financial Reporting Standards, International Financial Reporting Standaids, and the Companies Act,
1965 so as to give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Group and of the Bank as of 31
December 2012 and of their financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended.

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS

In accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act, 1965, in Malaysia, we also report the
following:

(a) In our opinion, the accounting and other records and the registers required by the Act to be
kept by the Bank and its subsidiaries of which we have acted as auditors have been properly
kept in accordance with the provisions of the Act.

{b) We are satisfied that the Financial Statements of the subsidiaties that have been consolidated
with the Bank’s Financial Statements are in forin and content appropriate and proper for the
purposes of the preparation of the Financial Statements of the Group and we have received
satisfactory information and explanations required by us for those purposes.

(@ The audit reports on the Financial Statements of the subsidiaries did not contain any
qualification or any adverse comment made under Section 174(3) of the Act.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS” REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF CIMB INVESTMENT BANK BERHAD (CONTINUED)
(Company No: 18417-M)

(Incorporated in Malaysia)

OTHER MATTERS
This report is made solely to the members of the Bank, as a body, in accordance with Section 174 of the

Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility to any
other person for the content of this report.

PRICEWATERHOUSECOOPERS SO0 HOO KHOON YEAN
(No. AF: 1146) (No. 2682/10/13 (J))
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountant
Knala Lumpur

12 March 2013
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Company No: 18417-M

CIMB Investment Bank Berhad

(Incorporated in Malaysia)

Statements of Financial Position
as at 31 December 2012

The Group The Bank
31 December 3] December  1Jamuary 31 December 3] December 1 January
Note 2h2 01 2011 1012 2011 2011
RM'000 RM'000 RM’000 RM’000 RM 000 RM 000
Assets
Cash and short term fmds T 1423437 150253 173 14DLEI2 1sg7sss 1g1sue
Reverse repurchase agreements 150,622 273423 360067 159,622 273423 300067
Deposits and placements with banks and other ‘
fnancial mstitutions 3 700,200 252100 689.196 692,858 250833 687992
Financial assets held for trading 4 33,001 79110 82,127 33,091 79110 82127
Derivative fimancial instruments 50 39,088 48,441 42089 39,088 48 441 42089
Financial imvestments available-for-sale 6 4,731 2703 8979 745 - 6331
Loans advances and financing 7 73,245 40,356 42710 73,245 40956 42710
Other assets 8 1,104,536 1211719 206,243 1,102,208 1210580 805,114
Tax recoverable 1,996 26304 1 7,996 26,304 -
Deferred tax assets 3 42,998 40 460 44325 42,812 40274 44270
Amounts due fram related companies 36 4,804 6621 6.624 4,806 6624 6,626
Statutory deposits with Bark Negara Malaysia =~ 10 1,062 1,520 280 1,062 1520 280
Investment in subsidiaries 1 - - - 9,050 9030 9,050
Investment M associates 12 3,736 5,007 5280 - - -
Property plant and squipment 13- 112,707 105 620 92917 113,792 106,810 94116
Goodwill on consolidation 4 964 964 964 - - -
Total assets 3,705,218 3,698,541 3949178 3,673,207 3681480 3937121
Liabilities
Deposits from customers 13 802,915 829133 1207639 802,915 829133 1207639
Deposits and placements of banks and other
financial institutions 16 1,327,358 1212833 1494 000 1,327,358 1212833 1,454,000
Derivative fmancial instruments 51} 17,750 81521 61 710 17,750 81521 61,710
Other liabilities 17 978,207 1052558 680594 976,014 1051189 683038
Provision for taxation and Zakat 18 350 684 46.408 607 607 46348
Amounts due to related companies 36 22,606 9504 12105 25,791 12687 15250
Subordinated loan 19 10,000 - - - - -
Total Habilities 3,159,686 3.186.233 3502456 3,150,435 3,187 570 3,508,025
Capital and reserves attributable to
equity holders of the Bank
Ordinary share capital 20 100,000 100000 100000 100,000 100008 100,000
Redeemable preference shares 21 10 10 10 10 it 10
Reserves 2 445,522 412298 346,712 422,762 393,500 339,086
Total equity 545,532 512308 446,722 512,172 493,310 429,096
Total equity and liabilities 3,705,218 3698541 3549.178 3,673,207 3,681 480 3931121
Commitments and contingencies 51 1,270,090 1483613 2286857 1,270,090 1483613 2,286,857
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Company No: 18417-M

CIMB Investment Bank Berhad

{Incorporated in Malaysia)

Statements of Income

for the financial year ended 31 December 2012

Interest income

Interest expense

Net interest (expense)income

Income derived from investment of depositors
finds and others

Income derived from mvestment of shareholders”

funds
Income attributable to the depositors
Income from Islamic Banking operations
Allowance for impairment losses on loans
advances and financing

Allowance for impaimment losses on other
recevables

Allowance for other impairment losses

Recoveries frominvestment management and
securities services

Fee and commission income

Dividend income

Net trading income/{loss)

Income from asset management and securities
services

Brokerage income

Other non-interest income

Non-interest income

Net income

Overheads

Share of results of associates
Profit before taxation
Taxation

Profit after taxation

Earnings per share attributable to ordinary
equity holders {sen) -basic

Note

23
24

48

48
48

26

27
23
29

30

3

The Group The Bank
2012 2011 2012 2011
RM 000 RM 000 RM'000 RM 000
47,669 49,585 44,969 48433
(51,750) (48,539) (51,282) {48,339)
{4,081) 1,046 (6.313) (86)
1,416 64 1,416 64
167,506 86,438 167,506 86,458
{27.953) {11,769) (27.953) {11,768)
140,969 74733 140,969 74733
50T (52) 507) (32)
(1,821 {2.369) {1,843) (2629)
- (6.331) - (6,331}
. 45,000 - 45,000
134,560 111,847 132,306 110,635
138,786 154173 138,786 154173
12 35 12 85
506 (6230) 506 (6,230
17,338 16,446 17,338 16.446
162,481 142728 157,833 139063
4,736 5411 4,741 3411
323,859 312,613 319,216 308,948
438,41% 424 460 451,522 419,603
(274,311 (284,460} (270,048} (280,933)
184,102 140 00C 181,474 138,670
729 187 “ -
184,831 140,187 181,474 138,670
(57457 (39.980) (56,778) (35,636)
127,374 100,207 124,696 99,034
127.37 100.21 124.70 99.03
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Company No: 18417-M

CIMB Investment Bank Berhad

(Incorporated in Malaysia)

Statements of Comprehensive Income
for the financial year ended 31 December 2012

The Group I'he Bank
Note 2012 2011 2012 2011
RA0O0 RM 000 RM000 RM 000
Profit for the financial year 127,374 100207 124,696 99,034
Other comprehensive income:
Revaluation reserve-financial investments
available-for-sale
-Net gain /loss) ffom change in fair value | 1284 ] | M} | - H - ]
Cther comprehensive income for the
year, net of tax 1,284 (1} - -
Total comprehensive income for the
financial year 128,658 100,206 124,696 99,034
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Company No: 18417-M

CIMB Investment Bank Berhad

(Incorporated in Malaysia}

Statements of Cash Flows
for the financial year ended 31 December 2012

The Group The Bank
2012 2011 2012 2011
RMO00 RM*000 RM 000 RM*000
Operating activities
Profit before taxation 184,831 140187 181,474 138,670
Addf(less} adjustments:
Allowance for Impairment losses
on loans. advances and financing 507 52 307 52
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 26,293 25,954 26,240 25813
Aliowance for other inpairment iosses - 6,331 - 6,331
Allowance for impairment losses on ather
receivables 1,821 2,569 1,843 2,629
Accretion of discounts less amortisation of
premium {2,806) (3,197) {2,806) (3.197)
Unrealised loss on financial assets held for trading 10,373 6,755 10373 6,755
Unrealised loss on derivative financial instruments 11,996 27,020 11,996 17,020
Gain on disposal of property. plant and equipment (2,778) (2,221) (2,778) (2,221)
Gross dividends from financial agsets held for
trading 12) (85) (12) (8%)
Unrealised forcign exchange loss/{gain) 577 (1,271) 577 (1,271
Share of results of associates (729) (187 - -
Share-based payment expense 31,168 28.109 31,169 28109
Fied assets written off 38 330 38 350
Cash flow fromoperating profit before changes in
operating assets and liabilities 261,280 230,366 258,621 228,955
(Increase)/decrease in operating assets-
Reverse repurchase agreements 122,801 26,644 122,801 26,644
Deposits and placements with banks and other
financial institutions (448,100) 437,09 (442,025} 437,159
Financial assets held for trading 38,455 (520) 38,455 (520}
Derivative financial instruments (66,414} (13,361) (66,414} {13,561)
1oans, advances and financing (32,796) 1,702 (32,796) 1,702
Other assets 77,217 (415,543) 78,384 (416,053)
Statutory deposits with Bank Negara Malaysia 458 {1,240 458 (1.240)
Amounts due fromrefated companies 289 1472 28% 1472
Amounts due from fmmediate holding company 1,529 (1,529) 1,529 (1,529)
Amounts due from ultimate holding company mn €0 {1) 60
Amounts due fromsubsidiaries - - 1 (1)
(306,562) 34,581 {299,319 34,133
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Company No: 18417-M

CIMB Investment Bank Berhad

{Incorporated in Malaysia)

Statements of Cash Flow
for the financial year ended 31 December 2012 (Continued)

Decrease in operating liabilities

Deposits from cusiomears

Deposits and placenents of banks and cther
fmancial institutions

Other liabilities

Amounts due to ultimate holding company

Amounts due ta related companies

Cash generated fiom/(used in) operating activities

Taxation paid

Met cash used in operating activities

Investing activities

Dividends recerved from financial assets held for
trading

Net purchase of financial investments
available-for-sale

Purchase of property . plant and equipment

Proceeds fromdisposal of property  plant and
equipment

Net cash used in invesiing activities

Financing activities

Net proceeds fram subordinated loan
Dividends paid '

Net cash used in financing activities

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents
during the financial year

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the
linancial year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the
linancial year

Cash and cash equivalents comprise the
following:

Cash and short term funds

Adjustment for monies held in trust:
Remisiers balances

Cash and cash equivalenis

(3]

The Group Ihe Bank
2012 2014 2012 2011
RM000 RM000 RM000 RM*000
(26,218) (378 506) (26,218) (378 506)
114,528 (281,167) 114,525 (281,167)
(76,454) 365813 (77,278) 362 000
(22) 22 (22) e}
13,124 {2.623) 13,126 {2,625)
(20.327) {31 314) {16,565) {37 188)
(41,521) (108.138) {(41,008) (107,685}
(61,848) (139.652) (57.573) (144,873)
9 64 9 64
(745) (56) (745) -
(36.468) (46,953} (36,309} (46 862)
5,828 10,227 5,827 10,226
(31,376) (36,718} (31,218) (36 572)
10,000 - - ]
(99,035) (533000 (95,035} (53.500)
(89,035) (53.500) (99,035) (53.500)
(182,259) (229.870) (187.826) (234945}
1,875.910 1,805,780 1,559,872 1,794,817
1,393,651 1,575,910 1,372,046 1,559,872
1,423,437 1 603 553 1,401,832 1387555
(29,786) (27,683) {29,786) (27,633)
1,393,651 1,573,910 1372,046 1,559,872
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Company No: 18417-M

CIMB Investment Bank Berhad

(Incorporated in Malaysia)

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
for the financial year ended 31 December 2012

The following accounting policies have been used consistently in dealing with items that ate
considered material in relation to the Financial Statements.

A oo
Fa N adxid v
The Financial Statements of the Group and the Bank have been prepared in accordance with the

Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards (“MFRSs™), International Financial Reporting
Standards and the requirements of the Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia

The Financial Statements of the Group and the Bank for the financial year ended 31 Decembet
2012 are the first set of Financial Statements prepared in accordance with MERS, including
MFRS 1 “First-time adoption of MFRS”, The Group and the Bank have consistently applied
the same accounting policies in its opening MFRS statements of financial position at | January
2011 (transition date) and throughout all years presented, as if these policies had always been in
effect. The transition to MFRS does not have any significant change on the Group’s and the
Bank’s existing accounting policies Nonetheless, as required under MFRS 1, the Group and the
Bank have presented three statements of financial position, two statements of income, two
statements of comprehensive income, two statements of cash flows, two statements of changes
in equity and related notes including comparatives.

The Financial Statements have been prepared under historical cost convention, as modified by
the revaluation financial investments available-for-sale, financial assets and financial labilities
(including derivatives financial insttuments) at fair value through profit or loss

The Financial Statements incorporate those activities relating to Islamic banking (“SPI”) which
have been undertaken by the Bank. Islamic banking refers generally to the acceptance of deposits,
granting of financing and dealing in Islamic Securities under the Shariah principles

The preparation of Financial Statements in conformity with the MEFRSs requires the use of
certain critical accounting estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets
and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the Financial
Statements, and the reported amounts of income and expenses during the reported petiod. It
also requires the Directors to exercise their judgement in the process of applying the Group’s
and the Bank’s accounting policies. Although these estimates and judgement are based on the
Directors’ best knowledge of current events and actions, actua] results may differ from those
estimates.

The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions
and estimates are significant to the Financial Statements, are disclosed in Note 44.
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Company No: 18417-M

CIMB Investment Bank Berhad

(Incorperated in Malaysia)

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
for the financial year ended 31 December 2012 (Continued)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

Standards, amendments to published standards and interpretations to existing
standards that are applicable to the Group and the Bank but not vet effective

The Group and the Bank will be required to adopt the new standards, amendments to
standards and interpretations in the period set out below:

)

Finanecial year beginning on/after 1 January 2013

MEFRS 10 “Consolidated financial statements” {effective from 1 January 2013)
changes the definition of control An investor controls an investee when it is
exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee
and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the investee It
establishes control as the basis for determining which entities are consolidated in
the consolidated financial statements and sets out the accounting requirements
for the preparation of consolidated financial statements. It replaces all the
guidance on control and consolidation in MERS 127 “Consolidated and separate
financial statements™ and IC Interpretation 112 “Consolidation — special purpose
entities”.

MEFRS 12 “Disclosures of interests in other entities” (effective from 1 January
2013) sets out the required disclosures for entities reporting under the two new
standards, MFRS 10 and MFRS 11, and replaces the disclosure requirements
currently found in MERS 128 “Investments in associates”. It requires entities to
disclose information that helps financial statement readers to evaluate the nature,
risks and financial effects associated with the entity’s interests in subsidiaries,
associates, joint arrangements and unconsolidated structured entities

MERS 13 “Fair value measurement” (effective from 1 January 2013) aims to
improve consistency and reduce complexity by providing a precise definition of
fair value and a single source of fair value measurement and disclosure
requirements for use across MFRSs. The requirements do not extend the use of
fair value accounting but provide guidance on how it should be applied where its
use is already required or permitted by other standards. The enhanced disclosure
requirements are similar to those in MFRS 7 “Financial instruments:
Disclosures™, but apply to all assets and liabilities measured at fair value, not just
financial ones.
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Company No: 18417-M

CIMB Investment Bank Berhad

(Incorporated in Malaysia)

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
for the financial year ended 31 December 2012 (Continued)

A

(b)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

Standards, amendments to published standards and interpretations to existing
standards that are applicable to the Group and the Bank but not yet effective
(Continued)

(1)

Financial year beginning on/after 1 January 2013 (Continued)

The revised MFRS 127 “Separate financial statements” (effective from 1
January 2013) includes the provisions on separate financial statements that are
left after the contiol provisions of MFRS 127 have been included in the new
MERS 10

The revised MEFRS 128 “Investments in associates and joint ventures” (effective
from 1 January 2013) includes the requirements for joint ventures, as well as
associates, to be equity accounted following the issue of MFRS 11.

Amendment to MFRS 101 “Presentation of items of other comprehensive
income” (effective from 1 Tuly 2012) requires entities to separate items
presented in “other compiehensive income” (OCI) in the statement of
comprehensive income into two groups, based on whether or not they may be
recycled to profit or loss in the future The amendments do not address which
items are presented in OCI

Amendment to MFRS 7 “Financial instruments: Disclosures” (effective from 1
January 2013) requires more extensive disclosures focusing on quantitative
information about recognised financial insttuments that are offset in the
statement of financial position and those that are subject to master netting ot
similar arrangements irrespective of whether they are offset.

The Group and the Bank will apply these standards from financial years beginning on o1
after 1 January 2013
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Company No: 18417-M

CIMB Investment Bank Berhad

(Incotporated in Malaysia)

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
for the financial year ended 31 December 2012 (Continued)

A

(b)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

Standards, amendments to published standards and interpretations to existing
standards that are applicable to the Group and the Bank but not yet effective
(Continued)

(i)

(iii)

Financial year beginning on/after T January 2014

Amendment to MFRS 132 “Financial insttuments: Presentation” {effective from
! January 2014) does not change the current offsetting mode! in MFRS 132, It
clarifies the meaning of ‘currently has a legally enforceable right of set-off” that
the right of set-off must be available today (not contingent on a future event) and
legally enforceable for all counterparties in the normal course of business It
clarifies that some gross settlement mechanisms with features that are effectively
equivalent to net settlement will satisfy the MFRS 132 offsetting criteria.

Financial year beginning on/after 1 January 2015

MEFRS 9 “Financial instruments - classification and measurement of financial
assets and financial liabilities” (effective from 1 January 2015) replaces the
multiple classification and measurement models in MFRS 139 with a single
mode] that has only two classification categories: amortised cost and fair value.
The basis of classification depends on the entity’s business model for managing
the financial assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial
asset,

The accounting and presentation for financial liabilities and for derecognising
financial instruments has been relocated from MFRS 139, without change,
except for financial liabilities that are designated at fair value through profit or
loss (“FVTPL”). Entities with financial liabilities designated at FVTPL
recognise changes in the fait value due to changes in the liability’s credit risk
directly in other comprehensive income (“OCI”). There is no subsequent
recycling of the amounts in OCI to profit or loss, but accurnulated gains or losses
may be transferred within equity.

The guidance in MFRS 139 on impairment of financial assets and hedge
accounting continues to apply.

MERS 7 requires disclosures on transition from MFRS 139 to MERS 9,

The .adoption of the above new accounting standards will not have any significant
impact on the financial results of the Group and the Bank except for MFRS 9. The
financial effects of the adoption of MFRS 9 are stiilf being assessed by the Group and the

Bank.
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Company No: 18417-M

CIMB Investment Bank Berhad

{Incorporated in Malaysia)

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
for the financial year ended 31 December 2012 (Continued)

B Economic entities in the Group
(a) Subsidiaries

[N 1DILpsd U W ELL.

purpose entities) in which the Bank has the power to exercise control over the financial and
operating policies so as to obtain benefits from their activities, generally accompanying a
shareholding of more than half of the voting rights. The existence and effect of potential voting
rights that are currently exercisable or convertible are considered when assessing whether the Bank
controls another entity.

The Bank treats as subsidiaries, those corporations, partnerships or other entities {including special

Even if there is no shareholder relationship, special puipose entities (“SPEs™) are consolidated in
accordance with IC Interpretation 112 (“Consolidation: Special Purpose Entities”), if the Group
controls them from an economic perspective

When assessing whether the Group controls-a SPE, in addition to the criteria in MFRS127, it
evaluates a range of factors, including whether:

(a}  the activities of the SPE are being conducted on the Group’s behalf according to its specific
business needs so that the Group obtains the benefits from the SPE’s operations;

{b)  the Group has the decisicn-making power to obtain the majority of the benefits of the
activities of the SPE, or the Group has delegated these decision-making power by setting
up an ‘autopilot’ mechanism, or

(c) the Group has the rights to obtain the majority of the benefits of the activities of the SPE
and therefore may be exposed to risks incident to the activities of the SPE; or

(d) the Group retains the majority of the residual or ownership risks related to the SPE or its
assets in order to obtain the benefits from its activities.

The consolidated Financial Statements include the Financial Statements of the Bank and all its
subsidiaries made up to the end of the financial year.

Subsidianies are fully consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the Group and
de~consolidated fiom the date that control ceases

The Group applies the acquisition method to account for business combinations.




Company No: 18417-M

CIMB Investment Bank Berhad

(Incorporated in Malaysia)

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
for the financial year ended 31 December 2012 (Continued)

B Economic entities in the Group (Continued)
(a) Subsidiaries (Continued)

Under the acquisition method of accounting, the consideration transferred for an acquisition is
measuted as the acquisition date fair value of the assets transferred, the liabilities incurred and the
equity interest issued by the Group The consideration transferred includes the fait value of any
asset or liability resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement. Identifiable assets
acquired, and Iiabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in the business combination are
measured initially at their fair value on the date of acquisition

The Group applies predecessor accounting to account for business combinations under common
control. Under the predecessor basis of accounting, the results of subsidiaries are presented as if
the business combination had been effected throughout the current and previous years. The
assets and liabilities combined are accounted for based on the carrying amounts from the
perspective of the common control shareholder at the date of transfer. On consolidation, the
cost of the business combination is cancelled with the values of the shares received. Any
resulting credit difference is classified as equity. Any resulting debit difference is adjusted
against merger reserves. Any share premium, capital redemption reserve and any other reserves
which are attributable to share capital of the combined entities, to the extent that they have not
been capitalised by a debit difference, are reclassified and presented as movement in other
capital reserves.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

In business combination achieved. in stages, previously held equity interest in acquiree are re-
measured to fair value at the acquisition date and any corresponding gain or loss is recognised in
statement of income.

Any excess of the sum of the fair value of the consideration transferred in the business
combination, the amount of non-controlling interest in the acquiree (if any), and the fair value of
the Group’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any), over the net fair value of the
acquiree’s identifiable assets and liabilities is recorded as goodwill. The accounting policy for
goodwill is set out in note L. In instances where the latter amount exceeds the former, the excess is
recognised as gain on bargain purchase in statement of income on the acquisition date
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B Economic entities in the Group (Continued)
(a)  Subsidiaries (Continued)

Non-controlling interest is the equity in a subsidiary not attributable, directly or indirectly, to a
parent On an acquisition-by-acquisition basis, the Group measures any non-controlling interest in
the acquiree either at fair value or at the non-controlling interest’s proportionate share of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets At the end of reporting petiod, non-controlling interest consists of
amount calculated on the date of combinations and its share of changes in the subsidiary’s equity
since the date of combination

All eamnings and losses of the subsidiary are attributed to the parent and the non-controiling
interest, even if the attribution of losses to the non-controlling interest results in a debit balance in
the shareholders’ equity Profit or loss attribution to non-controlling interests for prict vears is not
restated.

Any confingent consideration to be transferred by the Group is recognised at fair value at the
acquisition date Subsequent changes to the fair value of the contingent consideration that is
deemed to be an asset or liability is recognised in accordance with MFRS 139 either in profit or
loss or as a change to other comprehensive income Contingent consideration that is classified as
equity is not remeasured, and its subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity.

All material transactions and balances between group companies are eliminated and the
consolidated Financial Statements reflect external transactions only. Where necessary, the
accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

(b) Disposal of subsidiaries

When the group ceases to have contrel any 1etained interest in the entity is re-measured to its fair
value at the date when control is lost, with the change in cairying amount recognised in profit or
loss The fair value is the initial carrying amount for the purposes of subsequenily accounting for
the retained interest as an associate, joint venture or financial asset. In addition, any amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income in respect of that entity aie accounted for as
if the group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities. This may mean that amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss.
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B Economic entities in the Group (Continued)

(e) Transaction with non-controlling interests

Transactions with non-controlling interasts that do not result in loss in control are accounted as
equity transactions — that is, as transactions with the owners in their capacity as owners. Fot
purchases from non-controlling interests, the difference between any consideration paid and the
relevant share of the carrying value of net assets of the subsidiary acquired is deducted from
equity. For disposals to non-controlling interests, differences between any proceeds received
and the relevant share of non-controlling interest are also recognised in equity

(d) Associates

The Group treats as associates, corporations, partnerships or other entities in which the Group
exercises significant influence, but which it does not control, generally. accompanying a
shareholding of between 20% and 50% of the voting rights. Significant influence is the power
to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of the associates but not the powet
10 exercise control over those policies The Group’s investment in associates includes goodwill
identified on acquisition, net of any accumulated impairment loss

Investments in associates are accounted for in the consolidated Financial Statements by the equity
method of accounting.

The Group’s share of its associates’ post-acquisition profits or losses is recognised in the
statement of income, and its share of post-acquisition movements in reserves is recognised in
reserves The cumulative post-acquisition movements are adjusted against the carrying amount
of the investment. When the Group’s share of losses in an associate equals or exceeds its
interest in the associate, including any other unsecured receivables, the Group does not
recognise further losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of the
associate.

The interest in an associate is the carrying amount of the investment in the associate under the
equity method together with any long-term interests that, in substance, form part of the Group’s
net investment in the associate. After the Group’s interest is reduced to zero, additional losses
are provided for, and a liability is recognised, only to the extent that the investor has incurred
legal or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate If the associate
subsequently reports profits, the Group resumes recognising its share of those profits only after
its share of the profits equals the share of losses not recognised

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its associates are eliminated to the
extent of the Group’s interest in the associates; unrealised losses are also climinated uniess the
transaction provides evidence on impairment of the asset transferred.

(W]
(8]
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B Economic entities in the Group (Continued)
(d) Associates (Continued)

The Group determines at each reporting date whether there is any objective evidence that the
investment in the associate is impaired. If this is the case, the Group calculates the amount of
impairment as the difference between the recoverable amount of the associate and its camrying
value and recognises the amount adjacent to ‘share of results of associates in the statement of
income.

{e) Changes in ownership interest

‘When the Group ceases to have control or significant influence, any retained interest in the
entity is re-measured to its fair value with the change in carrying amount recognised in
statement of income. This fair value is its fair value on initial recognition as a financial asset in
accordance with MFRS 139. Any amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in respect of that entity are accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed of the
related assets or liabilities,

6] Interests in subsidiaries and associates

in the Bank’s separate financial statements, investments in subsidiaries and associates are
cartied at cost less accumulated impairment losses. On disposal of investments in subsidiaries,
and associates, the difference between disposal proceeds and the carrying amounts of the
investments are recognised in profit or loss

C Recognition of interest/profit income and interest/profit expense

Interest income and expense for all interest-bearing financial instuments are recognised within
“interest income™ and “interest expense™ in the statement of income using the effective interest
method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset or a
financial liability and of allocating the interest income or interest expense over the relevant period.
The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or
receipts through the expected life of the financial instruments or, when appropriate, a shorter
period to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or financial liability. When calculating the
effective interest rate, the Group takes into account all contractuat terms of the financial instrument
and includes any fees or incremental costs that are directly attributable to the insttument and are an
integral pait of the effective interest rate, but not future credit losses.
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C Recognition of interest/profit income and interest/profit expense
(Continued)

Interest on impaired financial assets is recognised using the rate of interest used to discount the
future cash flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss. A financial asset or a group of
financial assets is deemed to be impaired if, and only if, there is objective evidence of impairment
as a result of one or more events that has occuired after the initial recognition of the asset (an
incurred “loss event”) and that loss event (o1 events) has an impact on the estimated future cash
flows of the financial asset or the group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated

Income from Islamic banking business is recognised on an accrual basis in accordance with the
principles of Shariah.

D Recognition of fees and other income
Fees and commissions are recognised as income when all conditions precedent are fulfilled.

Guarantee fees, portfolio management fees and income from asset management and securities
services which are material are recognised as income based on a time apportionment method.

Brokerage fees are recognised as income based on inception of such transactions,

Fee from advisory and corporate finance activities are recognised as income on completion of each
stage of the engagement.

Dividends are recognised when the right to receive payment is established

E Sale and repurchase agreements

Securities purchased under resale agreements (“reverse repurchase agreemerts”) are securities
which the Group and the Bank had purchased with a commitment to re-sell at future dates. The
commitment to re-sell the securities is reflected as an asset on the statements of financial position

Conversely, obligations on securities sold under repurchase agreements (“repurchase agreements™)
are securities which the Group and the Bank had sold from their portfolio, with a commitment to
repurchase at future dates Such financing transactions and the obligation to repurchase the
securities are reflected as a lability on the staternents of financial position.

The difference between sale and repurchase price as well as purchase and resale price is treated
as interest and accrued over the life of the resale/repurchase agreement using the effective yvield
methed.
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F-

(a)

Financial assets

Classification

The Group and the Bank allocate their financiai assets into the following categories: financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables, financial investments held-to-
maturity and financial investinents available-for-sale Management determines the classification of
its financial instrumenits at initial recognition.

M

(i)

(iif)

(iv)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss comprise of financial assets held for
trading and other financial assets designated by the Group and the Bank as fair value
through profit or loss upon initial recognition.

A financial asset Is classified as held for trading if it is acquired or incurred principally for
the purpose of selling or repurchasing it in the near term or if it is pait of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that are managed together and for which there is evidence
of a recent actual pattern of short term profit-taking. Derivatives are also categorised as
held for trading unless they are designated and effective as hedging instruments.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active market

Financial investments held-to-maturity

Financial investments held-to-maturity are non-derivative instruments with fixed or
determinable payments and fixed maturities that the Group’s and the Bank’s management
has the positive intent and ability to hold to maturity. If the Group or the Bank sells other
than an insignificant amount of financial investments held-to-maturity, the entire category
will be tainted and reclassified as financial investments available-for-sale.

Financial investments available-for-sale

Financial investmerits available-for-sale are those intended to be held for an indefinite
period of time, which may be sold in response to needs for liquidity or changes in interest
rates, exchange rates or equity prices or that are not classified as financial assets at fair
valpe through profit or loss, loans and receivables and financial investments held-to-
maturity.
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F Financial assets (Continued)
(b) Recognition and initizl measurement

Financial assets are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs for all financial assets
not cartied at fair value through profit or loss Transaction costs for securities carried at fair value
through profit or loss are taken directly to the statement of income.

{c) Subsequent measurement

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss and financial investments available-for-sale are
subsequently carried at fair value, except for investments in equity instruments that do not have a
quoted market price in an active market and whose fair value cannot be reliably measured in which
case the investments are stated at cost. Gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value of
the financial assets at fair value through profit or [oss are included in the statement of income in
- the period which they arise. Gains and losses arising from changes in fair value of financial
investments available-for-sale are recognised directly in other comprehensive income, until the
seclrities are derecognised or impaiied at which time the cumulative gains or loss previously
recognised in equity are recognised in the statement of income Foreign exchange gains or losses
of financial investinents available-for-sale are recognised in the statement of income in the period
it arises

Financial investments held-to-maturity are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method Gatns or losses arising from the derecognition or impairment of the
seclrities are recognised in the statement of income.

Interest from financial assets held at fair value through profit or loss, financial investments
available-for-sale and financial investments held-to-maturity is calculated using the effective
interest method and is recognised in the statement of income. Dividends from available-for-sale
equity instruments are recognised in the statement of income when the entity’s right to receive
payment is established

Loans and receivables are initially recognised at fair value — which is the cash consideration to
originate or purchase the loan including the transaction costs, and measured subsequently at
amortised cost using the effective interest rate method Interest on loans is included in the
statement of income. In the case of impairment, the impairment loss is reported as a deduction
from the carrying value of the loan and recognised in the statement of income.
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F Financial assets (Continued)

(d) Reclassification of financial assets

The Group and the Bank may choose to reclassify a non-derivative financial assets held for trading
out of the held for trading category if the financial asset is no longer held for the puiposes of
selling in the near term. In addition, the Group and the Bank may choose to reclassify financial
assets that would meet the definition of loans and receivables out of the held for trading or
available-for-sale categories if the Group and the Bank have the intention and ability to hold these
financial assets for the foreseeable future or until maturity at the date of reclassification

Reclassifications are made at the fair value at the date of the reclassification. The fair values of the
securities becomes the new cost or amortised cost as applicable, and no reversals of fair value
gains or losses recorded before the reclassification date are subsequently made. The effective
interest rates for the securities reclassified to held-to-matwity category are determined at the
reclassification date TFurther changes in estimates of future cash flows are recognised as an
adjustment to the effective interest rates.

G Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost, except for trading liabilities and liabilities
designated at fair value, which are held at fair value through profit or loss. Financial liabilities
are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs for all financial liabilities not cairied
at fair value through profit or loss. Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are
initially recognised at fair value, and transaction costs are expensed in statement of income.
Financial liabilities are derecognised when extinguished.

(a) Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

This category comprises two sub-categories: financial liabilities classified as held for
trading, and financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss upon
initial recognition.

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if it is acquired or incurred
principally for the purpose of selling or repurchasing it in the near term or if it is part of
a portfolio of identified financial insttuments that are managed together and for which
there is evidence of a recent actual pattern of shoit-term profit-taking Derivatives are
also categorised as held for trading unless they are designated and effective as hedging
insttuments. The specific Group and Bank accounting policy on derivatives is detailed
in Note J.

The financial liabilities measured at fair value through profit or loss upon initial recognition
are trading derivatives
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G Financial liabilities (Continued)

(h) Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities that are not classified as at fair value through profit or loss fall into this
category and are measured at amortised cost. lhe financial liabilities measured at
amortised cost are deposits from customers, deposits and placements of banks and other
financial institutions, sundry creditors, subordinated loans and amount due to related
companies

H Derecognition of financial assets and financial liabilities

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual rights to receive the cash flows from
these assets have ceased to exist or the assets have been transferred and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the assets are also transferred (that is, if substantially all the
risks and rewards have not been transferred, the Bank tests control to ensure that continuing
involvement on the basis of any retained powers of control does not prevent derecognition).
Financial liabilities are derecognised when they have been redeemed or otherwise extinguished,

Collateral furnished by the Bank under standard repurchase agreements transactions is not
derecognised because the Bank retains substantially all the risks and rewards on the basis of the
predetermined repurchase price, and the criteria for derecognition are therefore not met.

I Impairment of financial assets
(a) Assets carried at amortised cost

A financial asset or a group of financial assets is deemed to be impaired if, and only if, there is
objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that has occurred after the
initial recognition of the asset (an incurred “loss event™) and that loss event (or events) has an
impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or the group of financial assets that
can be reliably estimated

The criteria the Group and the Bank use to determine that there is objective evidence of
impairment loss include indications that the borrower o1 a group of borrowers is experiencing
significant financial difficulty, the probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation, default of delinquency in interest or principal payments and where observable data
indicates that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such as changes in
arrears or economic conditions that correlate with defaults
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I Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
(a) Assets carried at amortised cost (Continued)

The Group and the Bank first assesses whether obiective evidence of impairment exists
individually for financial assets that are individually significant, and individually or coliectively
for financial assets that are not individually significant If the Group determines that no
objective evidence of impairment exists for an individually assessed financial asset, whether
significant or not, it includes the asset in a group of financial assets with similar credit risk

characteristics and collectively assesses them for impairment

The amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset's carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the financial assets’ original effective
interest rate. [he carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance account
and the amount of the loss is recognised in the statement of income If a loan or financial
investments held-to-maturity have a variable interest rate, the discount rate for measuring any
impairment loss is the current effective interest rate determined under the contract.

Financial assets that have not been individually assessed are grouped together for portfolio
impairment assessment. These financial assets are grouped according to their credit risk
characteristics for the purposes of calculating an estimated collective loss These characteristics are
relevant to the estimation of future cash flows for groups of such assets by being indicative of the
debtors’ ability to pay all amounts due according to the contractual terms of the assets being
assessed. Future cash flows on a group of financial assets that are collectively assessed for
impainment are estimated on the basis of historical loss experience for assets with credit risk
characteristics similar to those in the group.

The methodology and assumptions used for estimating future cash flows are reviewed regularly by
the Group and the Bank to reduce any differences between loss estimates and actval loss
experience

When a financial asset is uncollectible, it is written off against the related allowance for
impainment losses. Such financial assets are written-off after taking into consideration the
realisable value of collateral, if any, when in the judgement of the management, there is no
prospect of recovery.

If in a subsequent period, the amount of impairment losses decreases and the decrease can be
related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised (such as an
improvement in the debtor’s credit rating), the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed
by adjusting the allowance account The amount of the reversal is recognised in the statement of
income.
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I Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
() Assets classified as available-for-sale

The Group and the Bank assess at each date of the statement of financial position whether there is
objective evidence that the financial asset is impaired.

For debt securities, the Group and the Bank use criteria and measurement of impairment loss
applicable for “assets carried at amortised cost™ above If in a subsequent period, the fair value of
a debt instrument classified as financial investments available-for-sale increases and the increase
can be objectively related to an event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised in
statement of income, the impairment loss is reversed through statement of income

In the case of equity instruments classified as financial investments available-for-sale, in addition
to the criteria for ‘assets carried at amortised cost’ above, a significant or prolonged decline in the
fair value of the security below its cost is considered in determining whether the securities are
impaired. If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on financial investments available-
for-sale has been incurred, the cumulative loss that has been recognised directly in equity is
removed from other comprehensive income and recognised in the statement of income The
amount of cumulative loss that is reclassified to statement of income is the difference between the
acquisition cost and the current fajr value, less any impairment loss on that financial asset
previously recognised in statement of income. Impairment losses recognised in statement of
income on equity instruments are not reversed through the statement of income.

J Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which a derivative contract is
entered into and are subsequently remeasured at their fair values. Fair values are obtained from
quoted market prices in active markets, including recent market fransactions, and valuation
techniques, including discounted cash flow models and option pricing models, as appropriate. All
derivatives are carried as assets when fair value is positive and as liabilities when fair value is
negative Changes in the fair value of any derivatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting are
recognised immediately in the statement of income.

The best evidence of fair value of a derivative at initial recognition is the transaction price (i e. the
fair value of the consideration given or ieceived) unless the fair value of the instrument is
evidenced by comparison with other observable current maiket transactions in the same instrument
(i.e. without modification or repackaging) or based on a valuation technique whose variables
include only data from observable maikets When such evidence exists, the Group and the Bank
recognise statement of income immediately.
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J Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting (Continued)

The method of recognising the resulting fait value gain or loss depends on whether the
derivative is designated as a hedging instrument, and if so, the nafure of the item being hedged.
The Group and the Bank designate certain derivatives as either: (1} hedges of the fair value of
recognised assets or liabilities or firm commitments (fair value hedge) or (2) hedges of future
cash flows attributable to a recognised asset or liability, or a highly probable forecasted
transaction {cash flow hedge} or (3) hedges of a net investment in a foreign operation (net
investment hedge). Hedge accounting is used for derivatives designated in this way provided
certain criteria are met.

At the inception of the transaction, the Group and the Bank document the relationship between
hedging instiuments and hedged items, as well as their risk management objective and strategy
for undertaking various hedge transactions. The Group and the Bank also document their
assessment, both at hedge inception and on an ongoing basis, of whether the derivatives that are
used in hedging transactions are highly effective in offsetting changes in fair values or cash
flows of hedged items.

(a) Fair value hedge

Changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualify as fair value
hedges are recorded in the statement of income, together with any changes in the fair
value of the hedged assets or liabilities that are attributable to the hedged risk.

If the hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting, the adjustment to the
cartying amount of a hedged item for which the effective interest method is used is
amortised to the statement of income over the period to maturity. The adjustment to the
canying amount of a hedged equity security remains in retained profits until the disposal
of the equity security

(b) Cash flow hedge

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and
qualify as cash flow hedges are recognised in equity. The gain and loss relating to the
ineffective portion is recognised immediately in the statement of income. Amounts
accumulated in equity are recycled to the statement of income in the petiods in which the
hedged item will affect the profit or loss,

When a hedging instrument expires or is sold, or when a hedge no longer meets the
criteria for hedge accounting, any cumulative gain or loss existing in equity at that time
remains in equity and is recognised when the forecast transaction is ultimately
recognised in the statement of income. When a forecast transaction is no longer expected
to occur, the cumulative gain or loss that was reported in equity is immediately
transferred to the statement of income
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(c)

(d)

K

Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting (Continued)

Net invesiment hedge

Hedges of net investments in foreign operations are accounted for similarly to cash flow
hedges. Any gain or loss on the hedging instrument relating to the effective portion of
the hedge is recognised in equity The gain or loss relating to the ineffective portion is
recognised immediately in the statement of income.

Gains and losses accumulated in the equity are recycled to the statement of income when
the foreign operation is partially disposed or sold.

Derivatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting
Certain derivative instruments do not qualify for hedge accounting. Changes in the faix

value of any derivative instrument that does not qualify for hedge accounting are
recognised immediately in the statement of income.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses Cost includes expenditure that is directly attiibutable to the acquisition of the
items. Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the
item witl fiow to the Group and the Bank and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The
carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised All other repairs and maintenance costs are
charged to the statement of income during the financial period in which they are incurred.

Freehold land is not depreciated as it has an infinite life. Other property, plant and equipment are
depreciated on a straight-line basis to wiite off the cost of the assets to their residual values over
their estimated useful lives, summarised as follows:

1 easehold land 50 years or over the balance period of the lease, whichever i3
shorter
Building on leaseho!d land 50 years or over the balance period of the lease, whichever is
shorter
Office equipment, furniture and fittings:
- office equipment 3 years
- furniture and fixtures 3 years
Renovations to rented premises 5 years or over the period of the tenancy. whichever is shorier
Computer equipment:
- servers and hardware 3 -5 years
Motor vehicles 3 years
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K  Property, piant and equipment (Continued)

Depreciation on assets under construction commences when the assets are ready for their
intended use.

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end
of each reporting period.

Property, plant and equipment are reviewed for impairment at the end of each reporting period
and whenever events or changes in circutnstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. Where the carrying amount of an asset is greater than its estimated recoverable
amount, it is written down to its recoverable amount

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with the carrying amounts
and are included in non-interest income

L Goodwill

Goodwill arising from business combination represents the excess of the cost of acquisition and
the fair value of the Group’s share of the net identifiable assets of the acquired subsidiary
Gains and losses on the disposal of an entity include the carrying amount of goodwill relating to
the entity sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units (“CGU™) for the purpose of impairment testing.
The allocation is made to those cash-generating units or groups of cash-generating units that are
expected to benefit from the business combination in which goodwill arose, identified
according to operating segment

Goodwill is tested annually for impairment or more fiequently if' events or changes in
circumstances indicate a potential impairment. The carrying value of goodwill is compared to
the recoverable amount, which is the higher of value in use and the fair value less costs to sell
Any impairment is recognised immediately as an expense and is not subsequently reversed.

Goodwill on acquisitions of associates and jointly controlled entities respectively are included

in investments in associates and jointly controlled entities. Such goodwill is tested for
impairment as part of the overall balance.
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M  Assets purchased under lease

(a) Finance lease

Assets purchased under lease which in substance transfers the 1isks and benefits of ownetship of
the assets to the Group ot the Bank are capitalised under propeity, plant and equipment. The assets
and the comresponding lease obligations are recorded at the lower of the present value of the
minimum lease payments or the fair value of the leased assets at the beginning of the lease term.
Such leased assets are subject to depreciation on the same basis as other propetty, plant and
equipment

Leases which do not meet such criteria are classified as operating lease and the related rentals are
charged to statement of income.

{b) Operating lease
Leasehold land

I easehold land that normally has an indefinite economic life and title is not expected to pass to the
lessee by the end of the lease term is treated as an operating lease. The payment made on entering
into or acquiring a leasehoeld land is accounted as prepaid lease payments that are amortised over
the lease term in accordance with the pattern of benefits provided

Others

Leases of assets under which all the risks and benefits of ownership are retained by the lessor are
classified as operating leases. Payments made under operating leases are charged to the statement
of income on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease

When an operating lease is terminated before the lease period has expired, any payment required to

be made to the lessor by way of penalty is recognised as an expense in the period in which
termination takes place.
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N Currency translations
(a) Functional and presentation currency

[tems included in the Financial Statements of each of the Group’s entities are measured using
the currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity operates (“the functional
currency™). The consolidated Financial Statements are presented in Ringgit Malaysia, which is
the Group’s and the Bank’s functional and presentation currency.

(b) Foreign currency transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting
from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation at year-end exchange rates of
monetary assets and labilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in the statement
of income, except when deferred in equity as qualifying cash flow hedges and qualifying net
investment hedges.

Changes in the fair value of monetary securities denominated in foreign currency classified as
financial investments available-for-sale are analysed between translation differences resulting
from changes in the amortised cost of the security and other changes in the cartying amount of
the security. Translation differences related to changes in the amortised cost are recognised in
statement of income, and other changes in the cartying amount are recognised in equity.

Ttanslation differences on non-monetary financial assets and liabilities, such as equity
instruments held at fair value through profit or loss, are repotted as part of the fair value gain or
loss. Translation differences on non-monetary financial assets such as equities classified as
financial investments available-for-sale are included in the revaluation reserve - financial
investments available-for-sale in equity.

O Income and deferred taxes

The tax expense for the petiod comprises current and deferred tax Tax is recognised in statement
of income, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity. In this case, the tax is recognised in other comprehensive income ot directly in
equity, respectively.

Current tax expense is determined according to the tax laws of each jurisdiction in which the
Group operates and includes all taxes based upon the taxable profits.
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O  Income and deferred taxes (Continued)

Deferred income tax is recognised in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences
arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the Financial
Statements. However, deferred income tax is not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a business combination that at the time of the
transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which the temporary differences and unused tax losses can be utilised

Deferred income tax is recognised on temporary differences arising on investments in subsidiaties
and associates except where the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference can be
controlled by the Group and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

Deferred tax related to fair value re-measurement financial investments available-for-sale, which
is charged or credited directly to equity, is also credited or charged directly to equity and is
subsequently recognised in the statement of income together with the deferred gain or loss.

Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantially enacted by the end of the reporting period and are expected to apply when the related
deferred tax asset is realised or the deferred tax liability is settled.

Deferred and income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to
offset current tax assets against current tax liabilities and when the deferred income tax assets and
liabilities relate to taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either the taxable entity or
different taxable entities where there is an intention to settle the balances on a net basis

P Share capital

(a) Classification
Ordinary shares and non-redeemable preference shares with discretionary dividends are
classified as equity Other shares are classified as equity and/or Hability according to the

economic substance of the particular instrument Distributions to holders of a financial
instrument classified as an equity instrument are chaiged directly to equity.
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(®)

(c)

(2)

(b)

Share capital (Continued)

Share issue costs

Incremental external costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options are
shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

Dividends

Dividends on ordinary shares are recognised as a liability when the shareholders’ right to
receive the dividend is established '

Employee benefits
Short term employee benefits

The Group and the Bank recognise a Hability and an expense for bonuses. The Group and
the Bank recognise a provision where contiactually obliged or where there is a past
practice that has created a constructive obligation.

Wages, salaries, paid annual leave and sick leave, bonuses, and non-monetary benefits are
accrued in the period in which the associated services are rendered by employees of the
Group and the Bank.

Post employment benefits

The Group and the Bank have a defined contiibution plan for its employees

A defined contribution plan is a pension plan under which the Group and the Bank pay
fixed contributions into a separate entity (a fund) and will have no legal or constructive
obligations to pay further contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay all
employees benefits relating to employee setvice in the current and prior periods.

The Group’s and the Bank’s contributions to defined contribution plans are charged to the
statement of income in the financial period to which they relate. Once the contributions
have been paid, the Group and the Bank have no further payment obligations. Prepaid
conttibutions are recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the
future payments is available
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Q

(c)

Employee benefits (Continued)

Share-based compensation benefits
Management Equaty Scheme (“MES” or the “Scheme”)

The Group and the Bank have an equity-settled, share-based compensation plan of the
equities in CIMB Group which is settled by a substantial shareholder of the ultimate
holding company, CIMB Group Holdings Berhad (“CIMB Group™). The Group and the
Bank receiving the employees services should account for the plan as equity settled
when it has no obligation to settle the share-based payment transaction The value of the
employee services received in exchange for the grant of options of CIMB Group is
recognised as an expense with a corresponding increase in the share option reserves over
the vesting period. The total amount to be recognised over the vesting period is
determined by reference to the fair value of the options granted on the date of giant.
Non-market vesting conditions are included in the estimation of the number of shares
under options that are expected to become exercisable on the vesting date.

At each balance sheet date, the Group and the Bank revise its estimates of the number of
shares under options that are expected to become exercisable on the vesting date and
recognises the impact of the revision of the estimate to the statement of income, with a
corresponding adjustment to the share option reserve over the remaining vesting period
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Q  Employee benefits (Continued)

(© Share-based compensation benefits (Continued)
Employee Ownership Plan

CIMB Group operates an equity-settled, share-based compensation plan, where ordinary
shares of CIMB Group are purchased from the market at market value and awarded to
the eligible executive employees.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised, together with a coiresponding
increase in equity, over the period in which the performance and/or service conditions
are fulfilled, ending on the date on which the award is fully released to relevant
employees (‘the final release date’). The fair value of the employee services received in
exchange for the grant of the shares is recognised as an expense in statement of income
over the period of release, based on the best available estimate of the number of shares
expected to be released at each of the relevant release date. On the final release date, the
estimate will be revised to equal the actual number of shares that are ultimately released
to the employees.

R Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for
impairment. Assets that are subject to amortisation are reviewed for impairment whenever events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An
impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the catrying amount of the asset exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell
and value in use. For the purpose of assessing tmpairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels
for which there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units). Non financial assets
other than goodwill that suffered impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment
at each reporting date.

The impairment loss is charged to the statement of income unless it reverses a previous revaluation
in which case it is charged to the revaluation surplus. Impairment losses on goodwill are not
reversed. In respect of other assets, any subsequent increase in recoverable amount is recognised in
the statement of income unless it reverses an impairment loss on a revalued asset in which case it is
taken to revaluation surplus.
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S Provisions

Provisions are recognised by the Group and the Bank when all of the following conditions have
been met:

@) the Group and the Bank have a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past
SVENLS,

(i1) it is probable that an outflow of resources to settle the obligation will be required; and

(ili)  areliable estimate of the amount of obligation can be made

Provisions are not recognised for future operating Josses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be required in
seftlement is determined by considering the class of obligations as a whole A provision is
recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one item included in the same
class of obligations may be small

g
Provisions are measured at the present values of the expenditures expected to be required to settle

the obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and risks specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision due to passage of time is
recognised as interest expense.

T Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts are contracts that require the issuer to make specified payments to
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payments when
due, in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. Such financial guarantees are given to
banks, financial institutions and other bodies on behalf of customers to secure loans, overdrafts
and other banking facilities.

Financial guaiantees are initially recognised in the financial statements at fair value on the date
the guarantee was given Ihe financial guarantees are agreed on arm’s length terms and the
value of the premium agreed corresponds to the value of the guarantee obligation No
receivable for the future premiums is recognised. Subsequent to initial recognition, the Bank’s
liabilities under such guarantees are measured at the higher of the amount determined in
accordance with MFRS 137 — “Provision, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets”, and
the amount initially recognised less, when appropriate, accumulative amortisation recognised in
accordance with MFRS 118 - “Revenue”. These estimates are determined based on experience
of similar transactions and history of past losses, supplemented by the judgement of
management The fee income earned is recognised on a straight-line basis over the life of the
guarantee.

Any increase in the liability relating to guarantees is reported in the statement of income within
overheads
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U Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand, bank balances and deposit placements maturing
[ess than one month.

v Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the
chief operating decision-maker. The chief operating decision-maker is the person or group that
allocates resources to and assesses the performance of the operating segments of an entity The
Group has determined the Group Management Committee as its chief operating decision-maker.

Intra-segment revenue and costs are eliminated at head office. Income and expenses directly
associated with each segment are included in determining business segment performance.

W Contingent assets and contingent liabilities

Contingent assets arise from unplanned or other unexpected events that give rise to the
possibility of an inflow of economic benefits to the Group and the Bank. As this may result in
the recognition of income that may never be realised, contingent assets are not recognised in the
Group’s and the Bank’s financial statements

Contingent liabilities, which include certain guarantees and letters of credit pledged as collateral
security, are possible obligations that arise from past events whose existence will be confirmed
only by the occurrence, or non-occurrence, of one or more uncertain future events not wholly
within the control of the Group; o1 are present obligations that have arisen from past events but
are not recognised because it is not probable that settlement will require the outflow of
economic benefits, or because the amount of the obligations cannot be reliably measured

Contingent liabiltties are not recognised in the financial statements but are disclosed unless the
probability of settlement is remote.

X Trust activities
The Group acts as trustees and in other fiduciary capacities that result in holding or placing of

assets on behalf of individuals, trust and other institutions These assets and income arising
thereon are excluded from the financial statements, as they are not assets of the Group.
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1 General information

The principal activities of the Bank are investment banking and the provision of related financial
services. The principal activities of its subsidiaries as set out in Note 11 to the Financial
Statements, consist of futures broking and the provision of nominees services. There was no
significant change in the nature of these activities during the financial year.

The immediate holding company is CIMB Group Sdn Bhd (“CIMBG”) and the Directors regard
CIMB Group Hoeldings Berhad (“CIMB Group™), a quoted company, as the Bank’s ultimate

holding company. Both companies are incorporated in Malaysia
The Bank is a public limited liability company, incorperated and domiciled in Malaysia,

The address of the registered office and the principal place of business of the Bank is 5th Floor,
Bangunan CIMB, Jalan Semantan, Damansara Heights, 50490 Kuala Lumpur.

2 Cash and shoxt term funds

The Group The Bank
31 December 31 December Ilanuary 31 December 31 December I Janvary
2012 2011 2011 2012 2011 2011
RM000 RM 000 RM 000 RMO00 RM 000 RM 000
Cash and balances with banks and
other financial institutions 373,416 246.692 154.227 371,167 244 768 125928
Money at call and deposit
placements
maturing within one month 1,050,021 1,356,901 1,673,083 1,030,665 1,342,787 1,662 421
1,423,437 1,603,593 1.827,312 1,401,832 1,587.533 1,816,349

Included in cash and shert term funds of the Group and the Bank are accounts maintained in
trust for remisiers amounting to RM29,786,000 (31 December 2011: RM27,683,000, 1 January
2011 : RM21,532,000) for the Group and the Bank 1espectively.
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3 Deposits and placements with banks and other financial institutions
The Group The Bank
31 December 31 December IJanuary 31 December 31 December I Tanuary
2012 2011 2011 2012 2011 011
RM 000 RM000 RM’000 RMP000 RM 000 RM’000
Licensed banks 99,183 251 098 688 196 692,858 250 833 687992
Other financial institutions 1,017 1,002 1,000 - - -
700,200 252 100 689,196 692,858 250,853 687,692
4 Financial assets held for trading

The Group and the Bank

31 December  31December 1 January
2012 2011 2011
RM (00 RM'C00 RM 000
Quoted securities:
In Malaysia
Shares 195 46 3691
Unquoted securities:
Iu Malaysta
Private and Islamic debt securities 32,896 79.064 78436
33,091 79,110 82,127
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5 Derivative financial instruments, commitments and contingencies
(i) Derivative financial instruments

The following tables summarise the coniractual or underlying principal amounts of trading
derivatives. The principal or contractual amounts of these instruments reflect the volume of
transactions outstanding at the end of the repotting period, and do not represent amounts at risk

Trading derivative financial instruments are revalued on a gross position basis and the
unrealised gains or Josses are reflected in “Derivative Financial Insitruments” Assets and
Liabilities respectively

Fair values

The Group and the Bank Principal amount Assets Liabilities
At 31 December 2012 RMM'000 RNM000 RN 000
Trading derivatives

Interest rate derivatives

Interest rate swaps 787,210 38,920 (17,582)

Equity derivatives
Equity options 477,798 168 (168)
Total derivative assets/(liabilities) 1,265,008 39,088 (17,750)

Af31 December 2011
Trading derivatives

Interest rate derivatives

Interest rate swaps 861 110 47387 (80.467)

Equity derivatives
Equity options 540,557 1,054 {1,054)
Total derivative assets/(liabilities) 1,401,667 48 441 (81,521)

At January 2011
Trading derivatives
Interest rate derdvatives

Interest rate swaps 817,530 31,758 (51,371)

Eguity derivatives

Equity options 867 353 10,331 (10331
Index futures 1.756 - (8)

859,109 10,331 {10,339
Total derivative assets/{liabilities) 1,686,639 42 08¢ {61,710)
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5 Derivative financial instruments, commitments and contingencies
(Continued)

(ii) Commitments and contingencies

In the normal course of business, the Group and the Bank enter into various commitments and
incur certain contingent liabilities with legal recourse to their customers. No material losses are
anticipated as a result of these transactions and hence, they are not provided for in the Financjal
Statements

These commitments and contingencies are not secured over the assets of the Group and the
Bank.

The notional or principal amount of the commitments and contingencies constitute the
following:

The Group The Bank
31 December 31 December | January 31 December 31! Becember 1 January
2012 2011 2011 2012 2011 2011
Principal Principat Prineipal Principal Principal Principal
RM'000 RM 000 RM’C00 RMOQD RM 000 RM 000
Credit-related
Irrevocable commmitments to
extend credit:
- Maturity exceeding one year 5,082 39 218 5,082 39 218
Underwriting obligations - 81887 - - 81.887 -
Forward asset purchase - - 300,000 - - 300,000
Miscellanecus commitments and
contingencies - - 300,000 - - 300,000
5,082 81,946 600218 5,082 81,946 600218
Trecasury-related
Interest rate related contracts:
- Less than one year 276,760 - 181,550 276,760 - 181,550
- One year to [ess than five years - 314,660 196.780 - 314,660 156,780
- Five years and above 510,450 546 4350 439200 510,450 546,450 439200
Equity related contracts:
- Less than one year 214974 - 224 873 214,974 - 224 873
- One year fo less than five years - 248061 302,293 - 248 061 302293
- Five vears and above 262,824 292,496 341,943 262824 292 456 341,943
1,265,008 1,401,667 1,686,639 1,265,008 1,401,667 1,686,639
1,270,090 1,483,613 2,286,857 1,270,090 1,483613 2,286,857

For treasury related comrmitment and contingencies, these comprises derivative financial
instruments of which their fair values have been accounted for in the financial statements as at
31 December 2012
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6 Financial investments available-for-sale
The Group The Bank
31 December 31 December 1 January 31 December 31 December 1 January
2012 2011 2011 2012 2011 2011
RM00 Rvi'G00 Rvi“000 R 000 RM0G0 RM'000
Unquoted securifies:
In Malaysia
Shares 2,200 2200 2200 - - -
Quiside Malaysia
Shares 8,863 6,834 6,779 7,076 6,331 6,331
11,063 9,034 8979 7076 6,331 6331
Allowance for impairment losses:
Unquoted shares outside Malaysia 6,331) (6,331} - {6331) {6,331) -
4,732 2,703 8.979 745 - 6331

The table below shows the movements in allowance for impairment losses during the financial

vear for the Group and the Bank:

At January
Allowance made during the financial year
At 31 December

7 Loans, advances and financing

(i) By type

Staffloans *

Other loans

Gross loans . advances and financing
Less: aflowance for impairment losses

- Individual impairment allowance

- Portfolio impainment allowance

T'otal net loans, advances and financing

The Group The Bank
31 December 31 December 31 December 31December
2012 2011 2012 2011
RiMOO0 RM 000 RNTO00 RM 000
6,331 - 6,331 -
- 6,331 - 6,33}
6,331 6,331 6,331 6,331

The Group and the Bank

31 December 31 December 1 January
2012 2011 2011
RNOOO RM’000 RM’000
74360 41579 43360

432 891 822

74,792 42,470 44.182
(432) (851) (822)
(L115) (623) {650)
73245 40,936 42,710

Allloans. advances and financing are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method

* Included in staff foans of the Group and the Bank are loans to direciors amounting to RM235 675 (3] December 2011

RM281,139, 1 January 2011: RM235 667)
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7 Loans, advances and financing (Continzed)
The Group and the Bank
31 December 31 December [ January
2012 2011 201k
RM000 RM00¢ RM*000
(ii) By type of customers
Individuals 74,792 42470 44,182
(tiij By interesi/profit raie sensiiviiy
Fixed rate
- Other fived rate loan/financing 74,792 2470 44,182
(iv) By economic purpose:
Personal use 161 108 220
Purchase of residential property (housing) 60,073 30,665 32,161
Purchase of securities 1 1 1
Purchase of transport vehicles 14,557 11,656 11,800
74,792 42470 44,182
{v) By geographical distr ibution
Malaysia 74,792 42470 44,182
(vi) By residual contractual maturity
Within one year 389 305 238
One year to less than three years 1,620 2347 2,163
Three years to less than five years 8201 4702 4,966
Five y ears and above 64,582 35,116 36,813
74,792 42,470 44,182
(vii) Impaired loans, advances and financing by economic purpose
Purchase of residential property (housing) 374 391 690
Purchase of transport vehicles 58 300 132
Gross impaired loans, advances and financing 432 891 822
(viii) Impaired loans, advances and financing by geographical distribution
Malaysia 432 831 822

58



Company No: 18417-M

CIMB Investment Bank Berhad

{(Incorporated in Malaysia)

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the financial year ended 31 December 2012 (Continued)

7 Loans, advances and financing (Continued)
The Groupand the Bank
31 December 31 December
2012 2011
ROT000 RM 000
(ix) Movements in the impaired loans, advances and financing are as follows:
At | January 891 822
Impaired during the financial year 174 214
Amount written back In respect of recovernes (159} (135)
Amounts written offf transfer during the financial year 474) (10)
At 31 December 432 891
Ratio of gross impaired loars to total loans. advances and financing 0.6% 2.1%
{(x) Movements in the allowance for impaired loans are as follons:
Individual impaimment allowance
At ! January 891 822
Allowance made during the financial year 174 214
Amounts written back during the financial year 159) (135)
Amounts written off'transfer during the financial year {474) (10)
At 31 December 432 891
Portfolio impairment allowance
At 1 January 623 650
Net allowance made/{written back) during the financialy ear 492 27
At 31 December 1,115 623
Portfolic impainment allowance as % of gross loans advances and financing
less individual impairment allowance 1.5% 1.5%
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3 Other assets

The Group The Bank
31 December 31 December I January 31 December 31 December 1 Janvary
2012 20m 2011 2012 2011 201
Note RM’0O00 RM 000 RM 000 RMO00 RM 0G0 RM 000
Due from brokers and clients net of
allowance for tnpairment loss of
RM11 662 000 (31 December 2011
RM 11061000, 1 January 2011:
Rivi11 085 000) for the Group ,
RM11.514 000 (31 December 2011:
RM 10851000, 1 Janunary 2011:
RM 10 855,000) for the Bank (a) 816,038 932 366 533 925 315,996 932518 533 880
Collateral pledged for derivative
transactions 176,953 182953 220403 170,953 182 953 220403
Other debtors. deposits and
prepayments net ofaliowance
for doubtful debts of RM12 258,000
(31 December 2011: RM 10,473 0G0
1 January 2011: RM7.846 00C) for
the Group and the Bank b) 117,545 96,200 31,915 115,259 95,109 50,831
1,104,536 1,211,719 806,243 1,102,208 1,210,580 803,114
(a) The movement of allowances for impairment losses on amount due from brokers and clients is as follows
The Group The Bank
RM'000 RM 000
At 1 January 2012 11,061 10,891
Net allowance made during the financial year 1,188 1,188
Bad debts recoverad (587) (565)
At 31 December 2012 11,662 11,514
The Group The Bank
RAT(G00 RM'C0D
At 1 Januvary 2011 11,085 10,855
Net allowance made during the financial year 128 128
Bad debts recovered ' (152) (92)
At 31 December 2011 11,061 10,891
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8 Other assets (Continued)

{b) The movement of allowances for doubtful debts on other debtors is as follows:

['he Group and the Bank

Individual Portiolio
impairment impairment

allowance allowance Fotal

RM’000 RM’000 RMO0D

At 1 January 2012 7,399 3,074 10,473
Net allowance made during the financial yeat 1,134 651 1,785
At 31 December 2012 8,333 3,725 12,258

The Group and the Bank

Individual Pertfolio
impainnent  impaiment

allowance allowance Total

RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

At 1 January 2011 4,848 2,998 7,846
Net allowance made during the financial yeat 2,55% 76 2,627
At 31 December 2011 7,399 3,074 10,473
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9 Deferred taxation

Deterred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off
cuirent tax assets against current tax liabilities and when the defeired taxes relate to the same

......

statement of financial position

Deferred taxation asset {net}

The gross movement on the deferred income tax account is as follows:

At ] January

Charged/(credited) to income statement
-Loans advances and financing

- Bxcess of capital allowance over depreciation
- Prepaid employee benefit

- Provisions for expenses

- Othertemporary differences

- Under/(over) accrual in priory ears

At 3] December

Deferred tax assets (before offsetting}
Loans advances and financing
Prepaid employ ec benefit

Provision for expenses

Other temporan differences

Offsetting
Deferred tax assets (after offsetting)

Deferred tax liabilities (before offsetting}
Property, plant and equipment

Offsetring

Deferred tax liabilities

{after affsetting}

The Group The Bank
31 December 1January 31 December 31 December 1 January
2011 2011 2012 2011 2011
RM 000 RM 000 RMO00 RM 000 RM 000
40460 44519 42,812 40274 44,270
The Group Ihe Bank

31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December

2012 2011 2012 2011

RM000 RM'000 RMCO0 RM 000

40,460 44329 40,274 44270

113 Y] 123 )

473 (256) 473) (236)

808 3,749 808 3749

1397 {14 715) 2,397 {14715}

(3N 106 (37} 2n

(280) 1,254 {280} 7,254

2,538 {3,869) 2,538 (3.996)

42,998 40,460 41,812 40,274

79 136 mn 156

4,557 3,149 4,557 3M9

41,352 39,259 41,351 39259

1,185 1,024 999 1,038

47,373 44,388 47,187 4202

{4.375) (3,928) (4375) {3,928)

42,998 40,460 42,812 40,274

(4,375} {3928) 4,375) (3928}

4378 3,928 4375 3528
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1¢  Statutory deposits with Bank Negara Malaysia

The non-interest bearing statutory deposits are maintained with Bank Negara Malaysia in
compliance with Section 26(2)(c) of the Central Bank of Malaysia Act, 2009, the amounts of

which are determined at set percentages of totai eligible liabiiities.

11 Investment in subsidiaries

The Bank
31 December 31 December 1 January
2012 2011 2011
RM000 RM 000 RM 000
Unquoted shares, at cost 9,050 9.050 5,050

The subsidiaries of the Bank all of which are incorporated in Malaysia, are as follows:

Percentage of equity held

Directly by the Bank
3t December 31 December 1 January
Name of subsidiaries Principal activities 2012 2011 2011
%o % Y%
CIMB Holdings Sdn Bhd Investment holding 100 100 100
CIMBS Sdn Bhd Dormant - - -
CIMSEC Nominees (Tempatan)
Sdn Bhd Nominee services 100 160 100
CIMSEC Nominees (Asing)
Sdn Bhd Nominee services 100 160 100
CIMB EOP Management Sdn
Bhd Nominee services 100 100 100
CIMB Futures Sdn Bhd Futures broking 100 100 100
CIMB Nominees (Tempatan)
Sdn Bhd Nominee services 100 100 100
CIMB Nominees {Asing)
Sdn Bhd Nominee services 100 10¢ 100
CIMB Discount House Berhad Dormmant 100 100 100

Through the
Bank’s
subsidiary
company
1 January
2011

Yo

100
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12 Investment in associates

Unquoted shares at cost

Share of net assets other thar premum of agsociates
Premium on acquisition

The Group's share of income and expenses of associates is as follows:

Income

Expenses

Profit before taxation
Taxation

Profit for the financial year

The Group s share of the assets and liabilities of the assaciates 15 as follows:

Non-current assets
Current assets
Current liabilities
Net assets

The associates held through CIMB Holdings Sdn Bhd are:

Name of associates Principal activities

CIMB Islamic Trustee Berhad

(formerly known as CIMB

Trustee Berhad) Trustee services
CIMB Comnerce Trustee

Berhad (formerly known

as BHLB Trustee Berhad) Trustee services

The Group
31 December 31 December 1 January
2011 011 2011
RM000 RM 000 RM Q00
5,736 5007 5280
2,933 2204 2477
2,803 2.803 2,803
3,736 5.007 5,280
The Group
31 December 31 December
2012 2011
RM000 RM 000
2,546 3,040
(1,583) (1,589}
963 451
(234) (264)
729 187
31 December 31 December 1 January
2012 01 2011
RMOOO RM 000 R 000
105 270 293
3,923 3.048 2943
(1,095) (1,114) (739)
1,933 2204 2477
Percentage of equity held
Through the Bank's
Direetly by the Bank subsidiary company
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
1012 2011 2012 2011
% % % %
- - 20 20
- - 20 20
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13  Property, plant and equipment

Building on Office
leaseholdland- equipment and Computer
Leasehold land - 50 years or furnimre and equipment and Motor
50 vears or mare more fitfings soffware®  vehicles  Renowation Total

The Group RM*00D RM000 RM000 RMODDD  RMO00 RM000 RNDOO0
Cost

At 1 January 2012 18,609 7,135 18,241 54,382 75316 37,506 221,189
Additions - - 309 8,034 22452 5,133 36,468
Disposals/written off - - (10,158) {9,352)  {13,141) (45} (32,656)
At 31 December 2012 18,609 7,135 18,892 53,064 84,667 42,594 224,961
Accumulated depreciation

At 1 January 2012 3472 1,334 24,174 41,258 33,583 11,748 115,569
Charge for the financial year 374 143 1,625 7,286 13,683 3,182 26,193
Disposals/written off - - (10,121) {9,347y (10,146} 34) (29,608)
At 31 December 2012 3,846 . 1,477 15,678 39,197 37,160 14,896 112,254
Net book value as at

31 December 2012 14,763 5,658 3214 13,867 47,507 27,698 112,707
Cost

At 1 January 2011 18609 7133 26272 46 397 70,001 21490 190 404
Additions - - 1987 7,704 15,419 31,843 46,953
Disposals - - (i) (219 (10,1048 (5.827) (16,168)
At 31 Decerrber 2011 18,609 7,133 28,241 54,382 75316 37,506 221,189
Accumnlated depreciafion

At | January 2611 3100 1181 22187 34139 28739 8071 97427
Charge for the financial yzar 372 143 1990 7175 12,542 3732 35,954
Disposals - - (3} (36) (7.,698) (55} (7.812)
At 31 December 2011 3472 1,334 24,174 41,258 33583 11,748 115,569
Net book value as at

31 December 2011 15137 3,801 4,067 13,124 41,733 25,758 105,620
Net book value as at

1 January 2011 15,509 5,944 4,085 12,758 41,262 13,419 92977

*Computer software are mostly integral to the systems of the Bank and the Group and accordingly have not been
reclassified as intangibles under MFRS 138: Intangible Assets
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13 Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Bulding on Office
leasehold land-  equipment and Computier
Leascholdland - 50 years or  furnifure and equipment and Mbtor
50 years or more more Fttings softmare*  wehicles Renovation Total

The Bank RATL00 RMO00 RMTO00 RM'000  RAT000 RM000 BM000
Cost

At 1 January 2012 18,609 7135 21,932 53,894 73316 177 120.063
Additions - - 809 8,031 22338 5131 36309
Disposals/written off - - (10,158} (9352)  (13,142) {44) (32,696)
At 51 Decembor 2012 18,609 1,135 13,583 51,573 84,512 42,264 223,676
Accumulated depreciation

At 1 January 2012 3472 1,333 13,871 40,800 32357 11,420 113,253
Charge for the financial year 374 143 1,623 7,265 13,635 3,180 26,240
Disposals/written off - . 10,121) (9348)  (10,106) (34) (29.609)
A13] December 2012 1,846 1476 15373 38,717 33,006 14,566 109,884
Net book salue as at

31 December 2012 14,763 5,659 3210 13,856 48,606 27,698 113,792
Cost

4t I January 2811 18,609 7135 25966 46 497 70001 21161 189 369
Additions - - 1 984 1,616 15,419 21,843 46,862
Disposals - - {18) (219 {10,104} (5.827) {16,168)
At 31 December 2011 18,609 7,133 27,932 53,804 75,316 37,177 220,063
Accumulated depreciation

At ] Jannary 2011 3100 1190 21902 33789 27513 7759 95253
Charge for the financial year 372 143 1972 7068 12,542 3,716 25,813
Disposals - - 3) {57) (7,608} {33) {7,813)
At 3] Decerrber 2011 3,472 1333 33,871 40,300 32,357 11,420 113,253
Net book value as at 15,137 5,802 4,061 13,094 42,959 25,757 106,810
31 December 2011
Net book value as at 13,509 5,945 4,064 12,708 42488 15,402 94,116

1 Japuary 2011

*Computer software are mostly integral to the systems of the Bank and the Group and accordingly have not been
reclassified as intangibles under MFRS 138: Intangible Assets
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14 Goodwill on consolidation

The Group
31 December 31 December 1 January
2012 2011 2011
RMO00O RM’000 RM 000
At 1 JTanuary/31 December 964 964 964

Allocation of goodwill to cash-generating units

(Goodwill has been allocated to the following cash-generating-unit (“CGU™). This CGU does
not carty any intangible asset with indefinite useful life:

The Group
31 December 31 December 1 January
2012 2011 2011
cGuU RNM0O00 RMCOO BM000
Stock-broking 964 964 964

Impairment test for goodwill
Value-in-use

The recoverable amount of the CGU is determined based on value-in-use calculations. These
calculations use pre-tax cash flow projections based on the 2013 financial budgets approved by
the Board of Directors, projected for five years based on the average to year historical Gross
Domestic Product (“GDP”) growth of the country covering a five year period, revised for
current economic conditions. Cash flows beyond the five year period are extrapolated using an
estimated growth rate of 5% (31 December 2011: 5%, 1 January 2011: 5%). The cash flow
projections are derived based on a number of key factors including the past performance and
management’s expectation of market developments. The discount rates used in determining the
recoverable amount of the CGU is 7.1% (31 December 2011: 8.72%, 1 January 2011: 8 89%)).
The discount rate is pre-tax and reflects the specific risks relating to the CGU,

Management believes that no reasonably pessible change in any of the key assumptions would
cause the carrying value of any CGU to exceed its recoverable amount.

Impairment charge
The is no impairment charge for the financial year ended 31 December 2012 (31 December

2011: RM Nib).

67




Company No: 18417-M

CIMB Investment Bank Berhad

(Incorporated in Malaysia)

Notes to the Financial Statements

for the financial year ended 31 December 2012 (Continued)

15  Deposits from customers

(i) By type of deposits
Fied deposits
Others

{ii) The maturity structure of fixed deposits is as follows:

Due within sixmoenths

(iii) By type of customers

-Local government and statutory
- Business enterprises

- Individuals

- Others

The Group and the Bank

31 December 31 December 1 January
2012 2011 2011
EMMO00 RM 000 RM-000
- 60.232 525473
802,915 768,901 682.166
802,913 829,133 1,207.639
- 60,232 525,473

54,400 54,650 69.400
495,429 582,493 729,876
249,336 188,241 404,363
3,750 3,749 4,000
802,915 829,133 1,207.639

16  Deposits and placements of banks and other financial institutions

The Group and the Bank

31 December 31 December I Janucary

2012 2011 2011

RMO0D RM’000 RM*000

Licensed banks 1,039,722 1.167,538 1,147,692
Other financial institutions 287.636 45,275 346,308
1,327 358 1,212.833 1.454,000

17 Other liabilities
The Group The Bank

31 December 31 December 1lanuary 31 December 31 December 1 January

2012 2011 2011 2012 2011 2011
RM'000 RM000 RM'000 RM000 RM000 RM* 000
Due to brokers 821,244 909,839 506.707 821,244 910 657 510,892
Others 156,963 142,719 173,887 154,770 140,332 172.146
978,207 1,052,358 680,594 976,014 1,051,189 683,038
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18  Provision for taxation and Zakat

The Group The Bank
31 December 31 December 1 January 31 December 31 December 1 January
2012 201 20N 2012 2011 2011
RM000 RAO00 RM Q00 RM000 RM’000 R 000
Taxation 243 77 43 801 - - 45741
Zakat 607 607 607 607 607 607
850 684 46,408 607 07 46,348
19  Subordinated loan
The Group The Bank
31 December 31 December Lanuary 31 December 31 December { January
2012 201 201 2012 2011 2611
RM'000 RM 000 RM (00 RAM060 RM’000 RM 100
Suberdinated loan 10,000 - - - -

On 26 January 2012, a subsidiary of the Bank had issued RM10,000,000 in aggregate principal
amounts of unsecured subordinate loan (“the Loan™) to the Bank’s immediate holding company,
CIMB Group Sdn Bhd. The debt bears interest at the rate of 5% per annum and will matuze on

16 May 2015

20  Share capital

Authorised ordinary shares of RM1 each
At 1 January/31 December

Issued and fully paid ordinary shares of RMI1 each

At 1 January/31 December
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31 December 31 Decemmber
2012 2011

RM 000 RM’0C0
500,000 500,000
100,000 100,000
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21  Redeemable preference shares

The Group and the Bank
31 December 31 December

2012 2011
RM000 RM 000
Authorised redeemable preference shares of RM0.01 each
At 1 Tannany /31 Decernber 10 10
Issued and fully paid redeemable preference shares of RVID .01 each
At 1 January /31 Decermnber 10 10

On 30 January 2008, the Bank had allotted and issued 1,000,000 Redeemable Preference Shares
(“RPS™) of RM0.01 each to its ultimate holding company, CIMB Group Holdings Berhad at an
issue price of RMO0.01 sen per share

The main features of the RPS are as follows:
1) The RPS do not carry any fixed dividends;

(ii)  The RPS will rank superiot to ordinary shares in the event of winding up or
liquidation of the Bank;

(iii)  The RPS rank pari passu in all aspects among themselves;

(iv)  The RPS carry no right to vote at any general meeting of the ordinary shareholders
of the Bank;

(v) The RPS are not convertible to ordinary shares of the Bank; and

(vi)  The RPS may only be redeemed subject to BNM’s approval at the option of the
Bank (but not the holder) at anytiine from the issue date.

22 Reserves

(i) Included in the Group’s and the Bank’s reserves are statutory reserves of RM 155,805,000
(31 December 2011: RM155,805,000, 1 January 2011: RM155,805,000), maintained in
compliance with Section 36 of the Banking And Financial Institutions Act, 1989 These
statutory reserves are not distributable by way of dividends.

(ii)  Pursuant to the Finance Act, 2007 which was gazetted on 28 December 2007, dividends
paid, credited or distributed to shareholders are not tax deductible by the Bank, but is
exempted from tax in the hands of the shareholders (“single tier system™) The Bank has
moved to single tier system with effect from year of assessment 2011,
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22 Reserves (Continued)
(iiiy  Revaluation reserve — financial investments available-for-sale

Movement of the revajuation reserve of financiai invesiments avaiiabie-for-saie is shown
in the statements of comprehensive income.

(iv)  Share-based payment reserve

Share-based payment resetve represents the Group’s and the Bank’s commitments for
Management Equity Scheme and Employee Ownership Plan under share-based
compensation benefits,

() Capital reserve, which is non-distributable, relates to the retained earnings of CIMB
Discount House Berhad and CIMBS Sdn Bhd from 1 January 2006 to 30 June 2006 and
1 January 2006 to 31 December 2006 respectively, which were transferred to the Bank,
arising from the business combinations under common control using the predecessor
method of accounting in financial year 2006.

(vi)  Merger reserve, which is non-distributable, relates to the difference between the cost of
the merger between the Bank and the business of CIMB Discount House Berhad and
CIMBS Sdn Bhd in 2006 and the value of the net assets and reserves transferred to the
Bank and the Group.

23 Interest income

The Group The Bank
2012 2011 2012 2011
RM'000 RM*000 RM'000 RM 000
Loans, advances and financing 1,899 1.585 1,899 1,585
Money at call and deposits placements
with banks and other financial
institutions 29,297 32,081 26,597 30.950
Reverse repurchase agreements 5,124 6.592 5,124 6.592
Financial assets held for trading 1,689 5.129 1,689 3,129
Others 3,854 1,001 3,854 1,000
44,863 46,588 42,163 45,256
Accretion ofdiscounts less amertisation
of premium 2,806 3.197 2,806 3,197
47,669 49,583 44,969 48.453
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24  Interest expense

The Group The Bank

2012 2011 2012 2011
RMM0O00 RM000 RM000 RM* 000

Deposits and placements of banks and
other financial institutions 18,545 17.774 18,544 17.774
Deposits fiom custcmers 32,738 30,765 32,738 30,765
Subordinated loans 467 - - -
51,750 48,539 51,282 48.539

25  AHowance for impairment losses on loans, advances and financing

The Group and the Bank

2012 2011
RMO00 RM 000
(a) Individual impairment allowance
- made during the financial year 174 214
- written back during the financial year (159) (135)
(b) Portfolio impaiment allowance
- made/{written back) during the financial year 192 27)
507 52
26  Alowance for other impairment losses
The Group The Bank
2012 2011 2012 2011
RM (00 RM*000 RM'O00 RM’000
Financial investments available-for-sale
-made during the financial y ear - 6.331 - 6.331
- 6.331 - 6.331

27 Fee and commission income

Portfolio management fees
Advisory and arangement fees
Underwriting commissions
Placement fees

Other fee income
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2012 2011
RM000 RM*000
8,520 9,089
91,931 116,235
2,563 2,325
22371 19,187
13,401 7,337
138,786 154,173
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28 Dividend income

The Group and the Bank

2012 2011
BATOOD BMr000
Financial agsets held for trading 12 83
29  Net trading income/(loss)
The Group and the Bank
2012 2011
RM000 RM 000
Gein/(loss) arising from trading in financial assets held for trading
-realised 10,294 1,552
- unrealised (10,373) (6.755)
(ain/(loss) arising from trading in derivative financial instruments
- realised 14) 1,355
-unrealised 599 (2.382)
506 (6.230)
30 Other non-interest income
The Group The Bank
2012 2011 2012 2011
RNMO00 RM™000 RMO00 RM 000
Fereign exchange gain 492 959 497 959
Gain on disposalof property . plant
and equipment 2,778 2221 2,778 2221
Other non-operating income 1,466 2,231 1,466 2,251
4,736 5411 4,741 5411
31  Overheads
The Group The Bank
2012 2011 2012 2011
RM000 RM 000 RMO00 RM*000
Personnel costs
- Salaries, allowances and benuses 260,712 253,793 258,897 252,174
- Pension caost (defined contribution plan) 29.081 29220 28,892 29 039
- Training fees 6,187 7,223 6,181 7219
- Overtime. meal and transport claims 1,793 1,504 1,793 1,504
- Others 19,537 17,163 19,403 17,069
317,310 308,905 315,166 307.025
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31  Overheads (Continued)

Establishment costs

- Depreciation of property, plant
and equipment

- Rental

- Others

Marketing expenses
- Advertisement

- Entertainment expenses
- Others

Administration and general expenses

- Legal and professional fees

- Communication

- Prnting and stationery

- Licensing fee, exchange fee and levies

- Administrative vehicle, travelling and
insurance expenses

- Others

Shared setvices cost

-Personnel cost

-Establishment cost

-Marketing expenses

-Administration and general expenses

Total overhead expenses

The Group The Bank
2012 2011 2012 2011
RM000 RM*000 RM000 RM 000
26,253 25,954 26,240 25,813
17,316 14,329 16,152 13,515
26,251 20,386 26,127 20,323
69,860 60,669 68,559 59,651
13,702 38,204 13.675 38,186
2,722 7,529 2677 7,507
6,537 7,783 6,491 7,779
22,961 53,518 22,843 53,472
8519 9,064 8,484 9,030
8,326 8,665 8,245 8,589
2,460 4,229 2,460 4,229
11,593 11,461 11,593 11,461
10,836 12,114 10,800 12,072
12,964 10,044 12,410 9.613
54,698 55,577 53,992 54,994
(138,356} (122,517) {138,356) (122,917)
(21,961) (18,831) (21,961) (18,831)
(11,753) (37,082) (11,753) (37,082)
(18,442) (15,379) (18,442) (15,37%)
(150,512) (154,209) (190,512) (194,209)
274,317 284,460 270,048 280,533
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31  Overheads (Continued)

The Group The Bank
2012 2011 2012 2011
RMO0T RM "000 Rwvi'GG0 RM"000
The above expenditure includes the
following disclosures:
Directors' remuneration (Note 32) 13,542 13,512 13,542 13,512
Rental of premises 5,456 3,991 5329 3.853
Hire of'equipment 3457 2,817 2,459 2,141
Auditors® renmneration
- Statutory audit (PwC Malaysia) 262 187 176 155
- Statutory audit (other firms} 17 22 17 22
-Half yearreview 30 30 30 30
- Non-audit services 43 23 40 19

Included in the overhead expenses are support costs (including Group CEO’s office) amounting
to RM191 million (31 December 2011: RM194 million) which were incurred on behalf of
CIMB Bank Berhad (*CIMB Bank™) and recovered therefrom during the financial year hased
on certain agreed methods such as Capital-at-Risk, head count, actual costs, revenue and time
incurred by the relevant personnel.

32 Directors’ remuneration

The Directors of the Bank in office during the financial year were as follows:

Non-Executive Direciors

Dato’ Sri Mohamed Nazir bin Abdul Razak

Dato® Hamzah bin Bakar

Dato’ Zainal Abidin bin Putih

Nicholas Rupert Heylett Bloy (resigned on 17 February 2012)
Zahardin bin Omardin

Habibah Binti Abdul (appointed on 30 May 2012)

Executive Director
Dato’ Charen Wardini bin Mokhzani
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32 Directors’ remuneration (Continued)

The Directors of the Bank and their total remuneration during the financial year are analysed

below :
The Group The Bank

2012 2011 2012 2011
RM000 RM "G00 RM’000 RM000

Executive Director and Group CEOQ
- Salary and other remuneration 3,754 2,699 3,754 2,599
- Bonus 9,178 9,875 9,178 9,875
- Benefits-in-kind 117 130 117 130

Non-exzcutive Directors

-Fees and other remuneration 493 508 493 508
13,542 13,512 13,542 13,512

The functions and responsibilities of the Chief Executive Officer (CEQ) wete carried out by
Dato’ Sri Mohamed Nazir bin Abdul Razak. The salary, other remuneration, bonus (in respect
of 2012 payable in 2013) and benefits-in-kind totalling RM10,000,000 (2011: RM8,700,000)

for the CEO was paid by the Bank.

Part of the CEO's remuneration together with other support costs incurred on behalf of CIMB
Bank were recovered from CIMB Bank based on certain methods which have been agreed by

both parties (refer to Note 31).

The Directors' bonus for the financial year 2012 will be paid in tranches, spread over financial year
2013, while for financial year 2011, it was similarly paid in tranches, spread over financial year
2012 A similar condition is also imposed on the bonus for certain key personnel.
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.32 Directors’ remuneration (Continued)

The Directors’ remuneration is broadly categorised into the following bands:

The Group

RM 50,001 to RM 100,000
RM100,001 to RM 300,000

RM 3,000,001 to RM4,500;000
RIM 3,000,001 to RM 3,500,000
RM 8,500,001 to RM 9,000,000
RM 9,000,001 to RM 10,060,000

The Bank

RM 30,001 to RM 100,000

RM 100,001 to RM 500,000
RM 3.000,001 to RIvVI4,500.000
RM 5,000,001 to RM 3,500,000
RM 8,300,001 to RM9,000,000

RIM $.000,001 to RM 10,000,000
*

33 Taxation

(i) Tax expense for the financial year

Current tax
- Malay sian income tax
- Over provision in ptior years

Deferred tax

2012
Non-

executive Executive
Directors Directors™

2011
Non-
executive Executive
Directors Directors *

Includes the remuneration of Dato” Sri Mohamed Nazir bin Abdut Razak, who was re-designated as non-
executive Director on 30 June 2007

The Group The Bank
2012 2011 2012 2011
RM000 RM’000 RM0O00 RM 000
59,995 38,997 59,316 38,533
- (2.886) - (2,893)
(2,538) 3,869 (2,538) 3,996
57,457 39,980 36,778 39,636
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33  Taxation (Continued)
(ii)  Numerical reconciliation of income tax expense

The explanation on the relationship between tax expense and piofit before taxation is as
follows:

The Group The Bank
2012 2011 2012 2011
RMO09 RM*000 RNMPOGO RM™G0G
Profit before taxation 184,831 140,187 181,474 138,670
Tax calculated at a taxrate of 23%

(2011:25%) 46,208 35,047 45369 34,668
Income not subject to tax (260) (395} 7N (348)
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 11,229 15,468 11,206 15,463
Undet/ (over-accrual) in prior years 280 (10,140) 280 (10,147}
Taxexpense 57457 39,980 56,778 39,636

34  Earnings per share
{a) Basic earnings per share
Basic earnings per share of the Group and the Bank are calculated by dividing the net profit

attributable to owners of the Group and the Bank by the weighted average number of ordinary
shares in issue during the financial year

The Group The Bank
2012 2011 2012 2011
Net profit for the financial year (RM' 000) 127,374 100,207 124,696 99,034
Weighted average number of ordinary shares
in issue ( '000} 100,000 100,000 100,000 100.000
Basic earnings per share (expressed in sen
per share 127.37 100.21 124.70 99.03

(b)  Diluted earnings per share

The Group and the Bank has no dilution in its earnings per ordinary share in the cuirent and

previous financial year as there are no dilutive potential ordinary shares.
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35 Dividends

2012 2011
RMO00 RM’000
An interim single tier dividend of 61.86 sen per ordinary share and
3,717 10 sen per redeemable preference shares for financial year ended
31 December 2011 was paid on 19 March 2012 99,035 -
A finaltaxexempted dividend of 43 62 sen per ordinary share and single
tier dividend of 9 88sen per ordinary share, for financial year ended
31 December 2010, paid on 14 Aprii 2011 - 53,500
99,035 53,500
The gross and net dividends declared per share for each financial year are as follows:
2012 2011
Amount of Amount of
Gross/net dividend net Gross/net dividend
per share of tax per share net of tax
Sen RMO00 Sen RM*000
Final dividend paid - - 5350 53.500
Interim dividend 99 04 99,035 - .
99.04 99,035 53.50 53,500

The Directors have proposed a final single tier dividend comprising of 56sen per ordinary share,
amounting to RM56,000,000 in respect of financial year ended 31 December 2012 The dividend
was approved by the Board of Directors in a resolution dated 4 February 2013.

36  Amounts due from/(to) related companies

The amounts due from/(to) related companies are unsecured, interest free and recallable on

demand

Amounts due from
- subsidiaries
-related companies
- immediate holding company
- ultimate holding company

Ampunts due to;
- subsidiaries
-related companies
- ultimate holding company

The Group The Bank
31 December 31 December 1 January 31 December 31 December 1 January
2012 2011 2011 2012 2011 2011
RM 000 RM 000 RM 008 RMO00 RM 000 RM'000
- - - 2 3 2
4,803 5002 6 564 4,803 5092 6364
- 1528 - - 1529 .
1 - 60 1 - 40
4,804 6,621 6,624 4,806 6,624 6,626
- - - (3.185) (3.185) (3 183)
(22,606) {5482} (12303} {22,606} (9 480} {12 105)
- {22} - - 22} -
(22,606) {5.504) (12,105} (25.791) (12,687) {15.250)
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37  Significant related party transactions and balances

(a) Related parties and relationship

Parties are considered to be related if one paity has the ability to conirol the other pariy or
exercise significant influence over the other party in making financial or operational decisions.

The related parties of, and their relationship with the Group, are as follows:

Related parties Relationship

CIMB Group Holdings Berhad (“CIMB Group™) Ultimate holding company

CIMB Group Sdn Bhd (“CIMBG™) Immediate holding company

CIMB Berhad (“CIMBB") Subsidiary of ultimate holding company

Subsidiaries of CIMB Group and CIMBG as Subsidiaries of ultimate holding and
disclosed in their Financial Statements immediate holding companics

Subsidiaries of the Bank as disclosed in Note 11 Subsidiaries

Touch ‘N Go Sdn Bhd Subsidiary of ultimate holding company

Key management personnel Refer to below

Key management personnel are those persons having the authority and responsibility for
planning, directing and controlling the activities of the Group and the Bank either directly or
indirectly. The key management personnel of the Group and the Bank include all the Directors
of the Bank and employees of the Bank who make certain critical decisions in relation to the
strategic direction of the Bank
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37  Significant related party transactions and balances (Continued)

(b Related party transactions

A number of banking transactions are entered inte with related parties in the normal cowse ¢
business. These include loans, deposits, derivative transactions and other financial instruments
These transactions were carried out on commercial terms and at market rates.

In addition to related party disclosures mentioned elsewhere in the Financial Statements, set out
below are other significant related party transactions

2012

Sales:

Malaysian Govemment securities
Malaysian Goverinent treasury bills
Private debt securities

Bank Negara Malaysia Bills
Khazanah bonds

Commercial papers

Purchases:

Malaysian Government securities
Malaysian Govemment treasury bills
Private debt securities

Commercial papers

Bank Negara Malaysia Biils
Khazanah bonds

2012

Income:

Fee income

Interest income

Income fromIslamic Banking operations

Expenditure:
Interest expense
Shared service cost

Ultimate
holding
company
RM*000

Other related
companies
RM’000

1,401,914
29,102
4,263,189
147,435
69.250

153,652

Key
management
personnel
RM*000

6,064,542

148,742

1,401,914
29,102
4,244,981
4,910
147,435
69,250

148,742

5,897,592

Ultimate
holding
company
RM000

Other related
companies
RM000

8,425
12,271
825

Key
management
personnel
RM’000

21,521

18,309
190,512

208,821
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37  Significant related party transactions and balances (Continued)

(b)  Related party transactions (Continued)

In addition to related party disclosures mentionad elsewheie in the Financial Statements, set out

below are other significant related party transactions (Continued)

2011

Sales:

Malaysian Govemmment securities
Private debt securities
Commercial papers

Purchases:

Malaysian Govemniment securities
Private debt securities
Commercial papers

2011

Income:

Fee income

Interest ncome

Income from Islamic Banking operations

Expenditure:
Interest expense
Shared service cost

Lltimate Key
holding Othet related management
company companies personnel
RMCOO0 RM000 RM 000
- 247550 -

- 234,442 -

- 69,185 -

- 551,177 -

- 378,552 -

500,000 1,863,140 -
990,995 - -
1,490,995 2,241,652 -
- 9,123 38

- 23,121 -

- (8.215) .

- 24,029 38

- 17.787 1.464

- 194,209 -

- 231,996 1,464
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37  Significant related party transactions and balances (Continued)

(c) Key management personnel

Kevy management compensation

Salaries and other short termemployee benefits

Share options of ultimate hoiding company
Shares of ultimate holding company

2012 2011
RM*000 RM*000
96,888 §7,599
Unit Unit
10,932,340

3,303,114 3,582,625

Included in the above table is Directors® remuneration which are disclosed in Note 32. The
share options or shares granted are on the same terms and condition as those offered to other

employees of the Group and the Bank as disclosed in Note 41.

(d) Related party balances

Other related party balances, other than those cartied out in the ordinary course of banking
transactions, represent advances to and from related parties as well as expenses paid on behalf
for and by related parties These balances are unsecured, caity no interest rate and are repayable

on demand.

In addition to related party disclosures mentioned elsewhere in the Financial Statements, set out

below are other significant related party balances.

Ultimate Key
holding Other related management
company companies personnel
RMPOGO RM000 RM000
31 December 2012
Amount due from:
Cash and balances with banks and
other financial institutions - 344,071 -
Money at call and deposit placements
maturing within one month - 1,030,731 -
Deposits and placemsnts with banks
and other financial institutions - 692,858 -
Loans .advances and financing - - 235,675
Derivative financial instmments - 1,547 -
- 2,069,207 235,675
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37  Significant related party transactions and balances (Continued)
(d} Related party balances (Continued)

In addition to related party disclosures mentioned elsewhere in the Financial Statements, set out
below are other significant related party balances {Continued)

Ultimate Kevy
holding Other related management
company companies personnel
31 December 2012 RNPO00 RMO00 RV 000
Amount due to:
Deposits and placements of banks and
other financial institutions - 939,714 -
Deposits from customers - - 200,336
- 939,714 200,336
Principal
Interest rate related contracts:
Interast rate swaps - 138,380 -
Equity related contracts:
Equity options - 238,899 -
- 377,279 -
Ultimate Key
holding Other related management
company companies personnel
31 December 2011 RM’000 RM000 RM’000
Amount due from:
Cash and balances with banks and
cther financial institutions - 1,643,862 -
Money at call and deposit placements
maturing within one menth - 300,905 -
Deposits and placements with banks
and other financial institutions - 252,264 -
Loans ,advances and financing - - 281,139
Derivative financial instruments - 6.094 -
- 2,203,125 281,139
Amount due to:
Deposits and placements of banks and
other financial institutions - 250,728 -
Deposits from customers - - 178,668
- 230,728 178,668
Principal
Interest rate related contracts:
Interest rate swaps - 157.330 -
Fquity related contracts:
Equity options - 270,279 -
- 427,609 -
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37  Significant related party transactions and balances (Continued)

(d) Related party balances (Continued)

In addition to related party disclosures mentioned elsewhere in the Financial Statements, set out

below are other significant related party balances. (Continued)

(timate Key
holding Other related management
company companies personnel
1 January 2011 RM000 RM’000 RMO00
Amount due from:
Cash and balances with banks and
other financial institutions - 1.884.339 -
Money at call and deposit pilacements
maturing within one month - 149.554 -
Deposits and placements with banks
and other financial institutions - 687,991 -
Loans ,advances and financing - - 235,667
Derivative financial instruments - 20,267 -
- 2,742,151 235,667
Amount due to:
Deposits and placements of banks and
other financial institutions - 1,147 691 -
Deposits flom customers - - 159.249
- 1,147,691 159,249
Principal
Interest rate related contracts:
Interest rate swaps - 378.330 -
Equity related contracts:
Equity options - 433,577 -
- 811,507 -
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37  Significant related party transactions and balances (Continued)

(e) Credit transactions and exposures with connected parties

Credit exposures with connected parties as per BNM’s revised “Guidelines on Credit

Transactions and Exposures with Connected Parties” which became effective on 1 January 2008
are as follows:

The Group

31 December 31 December 1 Fanuary

2012 2011 2011

RM:(Q00 RM 000 RM*000

Qutstanding credit exposures with connected parties 50,685 95510 134.228

Percentage of outstanding credit exposures to connected

parties as a proportion of total credit exposures 22% 4 5% 46%
Percentage of outstanding credit exposures with connected

parties which is impaired/ non-performing or in default 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%

(f)  Transactions with shareholders and Government

Khazanah Nasional Bethad (“KINB™), the major shareholder of the ultimate holding company,
owns 29% of the issued capital of the ultimate holding company (2011: 24%) KNB is an entity
controlled by the Malaysian Government. The Group and the Bank consider that, for the
purpose of MERS 124 — “Related Party Disclosures”, KNB and the Malaysian Government is
in the position to exercise significant influence over it. As a result, the Malaysian Government
and Malaysian Government controlled bodies (collectively referred to as “government-related
entities”) are related parties of the Group and the Bank

Apart from the individually significant transactions as disclosed in Note 41 (a) to the Financial
Statements, the Group and the Bank have collectively, but not individually, significant
transactions with other government-related entities which include but not limited to the
following:

- Purchase of securities issued by goveinment-related entities

- Lending to government-related entities

- Deposit taking from government-related entities

These transactions are conducted in the ordinary course of the Group’s and the Bank’s business
on commercial terms comparable to the terms of transaction with other entities that are not
government-related. These commercial terms are consistently applied in accordance with the
Group’s and the Bank’s internal policies and processes, which do not depend on whether the
counterparties are government-related entities or not
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38  Capital commitments

Capital expenditure not provided for in the Financial Statements are as follows:

Authorised but not coniracied for

The capital commitments are attributed to:

- projects
- property. plant and equipment

39 Lease commitments

The Group and the Bank
31 December 31 December 1 January
2012 2011 2011
RMODO RM 000 RM*000
78,831 139,823 69,740
52,448 97.190 32814
26,383 42.633 36.926
78,831 139,823 69,740

The Group and the Bank have lease commitments in respect of rented premises which are
classified as operating leases. A summary of the non-cancellable long-term commitments
representing minimum rentals which the Group and the Bank are obliged to pay is as follows:

Not later than one year

Later than one year and not later than
five years

Over five years
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The Group and the Bank

31 December 31 December 1 January
2012 2011 2011
RM'000 RM 000 RM*000
19,599 9,073 8.339
144,473 2,012 13,908
268.868 - -
432,940 11,085 22,247
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40  Capital adequacy

The key driving principles of the Group’s and the Bank’s capital management policies are to
diversify its sources of capital to allocate capital efficiently, achieve and maintain an optimal
and efficient capital structure of the Group and the Bank, with the objective of balancing the
need to meet the requirements of all key constituencies, including regulators, shareholders and
rating agencies

The capital management process is centrally supervised by the Group Executive Committee
{(“EXCO”), Group Risk Committee (“GRC”) and Branch Risk Committee (“BRC”) who
periodically assess and review the capital requirements and source of capital across the Group,
taking into account all on-going and future activities that consume o1 create capital, and
ensuring that the minimum target for capital adequacy is met. Available capital is allocated
across competing demands, guided by the predetermined policies, and to ensure regulatory
compliance. Quarterly updates on capital position of the Group are also provided to the Board
of Directors

With effect from November 2011, the capital adequacy ratios of the Group and the Bank are
computed in accordance with BNM Guidelines on Risk Weighted Capital Adequacy
Framework: Standardised Approach for Credit Risk and Basic Indicator Approach for
Operational Risk. Market Risk remained unchanged under Standardised Approach

{(a) The capital adequacy ratios of the Group and the Bank are as follows:

The Group The Bank
31 December 3! December ] January 31 December 3! December | January
02 m a0 2012 21 2011
Beifore deducting proposed disidend
Core capital ratio 20 98% 2102% 19 76% HR2% 20 95% 1924%
Risk-weighted capital ratio 21 02% 21 04% 19 80% 2 52% 2096% 1924%
After deducting proposed dividend
Core capital ratio 1858% 1651% 1706% 1897% 16 2% 16.51%
Risk-weighted capital ratio 1863% 16 53% 1711% 1897% 16.29% 1631%

(b) The breakdown of risk-weighted assets (“RWA™) by each major risk category is as follows:

The Group The Bank
31 December 31 December  1Janwary 31 December 31 December | January
2012 211 201 2012 nli 211
Ryra00 RA{°000 RA[000 RAPO00 RM000 RM 000
Credit nsk 1,387,711 1,081,%7 1028430 1,253,889 1015497 1008.040
Market risk 126,634 307315 192,321 126,603 307,251 152,289
Operational risk 823,010 807,424 765,308 §13,138 799,822 737404

2,337,335 2,196,706 1,986,059 2,193,630 2,122,570 1,537,733
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40  Capital adequacy (Continued)

{c)  Components of Tier I and Tier II capitals are as follows:

The Gronp The Bank
31 December 31 December { Fanuary 31 December 3] December { January
2012 2011 2011 2012 2011 2011
RM 000 EM 000 RM 000 RAT000 RM 000 RM 000
Tier I Capital
Paid-up capital 100 000 100 000 100 000 100,000 100000 100 000
Retained profits 259 546 192 837 146.331 243,939 184 210 138 676
Other resen ¢ 173,773 209,250 150,410 173,773 209250 150,410
. 333,319 502127 436741 512762 493 500 439086
less. Deferred tax assets (41,998) {40.460) (4 329) (42,812} (40,274} (44 270}
Deduction iy excess of Tier 2 Capiial - - - (7,925} {RAID) (8,181} N1
Total Tier I capital 490,321 461,667 392412 472,025 444 809 376,635
Tier MCapital
Cumnlative Preference Shares 10 10 10 10 10 i0
Portfolio impamment allewance 1,115 623 650 1,115 623 650 N2
Surplus of total eligible proy ision o er total
expected loss underthe IRB approach
subject to linut - - 209 - - 209
Total Tier I capital 1,125 633 869 1.125 6533 869
Less.
Inyestments n snbsidianes (50} {50) {30} {9,050) {9.050) (9,050)
Total eligible Tier I capital 1,075 383 819 - - - N1
Total capital base before proposed dividend 491.396 462 250 393231 472025 444 809 376 635
Proposed din idend (56,000) (95.034) (53,500) (56,000) {99.034) {53,500}
Total capital bnse affer propesed dividend 435,396 363,216 339,731 416,025 345775 323,135

Ni The evcess of Tier {1 capital was deducted under Tier | capital

N2 The capital base of the Group and the Bank has excluded portfelio impairment dllowance on impaired loans reswricted from Tier II capiial of
R 15000 (3] December 2011 RMG23 000: I Joruary 2011 RM650 000) respectively

41  Employee benefits

{(a) Management Equity Scheme (“MES” or the “Scheme™)

The MES was launched on | March 2004 as a performance linked compensation whereby a
substantial shareholder of CIMB Group grants entitlements to selected employees of the Group
and the Bank The eligibility for participation m the MES shall be at the discretion of the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee of CIMB Group. Entitlements of eligible members
of the MES are non-assignable and non-transferable whereby the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee of CEIMB Group administers the MES on behalf of the substantial
shareholder. The entitlements granted vest in proportions over the various exercise periods. The
expiry dafe of the MES was extended from 28 February 2012 to 31 May 2012 The MES lapsed

thereafter

As the Group and the Bank do not have an obligation to seftle the fransaction with ifs

employees, the Group and the Bank have accounted for t

accordance with MFRS 2.
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41  Employee benefits (Continued)

(a) Management Equity Scheme (“MES” or the “Scheme”) (Continued)

The weighted average fair value of the entitlements granted, determined using the Binomiat
Valuation Model was RM7 37 each The significant inputs into the model were as follows:

Valuation assumptions

- Expected volatility 33.4%

- Expected dividend vield 1.8%

- Expected option life -

- Weighted average share price at grant daie RM10.79
- Weighted average risk-frec interest rate 3.2%

The volatility measured at the standard deviation of daily share price returns was based on
statistical analysis of daily prices over the last two years

The total share-based payment expenses recognised in relation to the Scheme for the Group and
the Bank during the cuirent financial year amounted RM Nil (2011: RM3,883,000) The shares
were exercisable 2 years from the grant date

Details of the movement in the number of entitlements outstanding are as follows:

The Groupand The Bank

2012 2011
Unit Unat
000 ‘000
Share options
At 1 January 1,850 4 706
Exercised (1,850) (Z 854)
Forfeited - 2)
At 31 December - 1,850

Exercise price per

Grant date Expiry date Options (unit) share (RM)
22-Mar-G7 28-Feb-12 926 476 348
31-May-07 28-Feb-12 327,339 348
27-Mar-08 28-Feb-12 693,090 348
31-Mar-09 28-Feb-12 1300,538 348
6-Aug-0% 28-Fel-12 9265 348
1-Oct-09 23-Feb-12 37.059 348
8-Mar-10 28-Feb-12 1.887.919 348
30-Mar-10 28-Feb-12 1.833 348
26-Mav-10 28-Feb-12 69 400 1.74

The weighted average share price at the time of exercise was RM7 46 (2011: RM7 80). The
weighted average remaining contractual life is Nil year (2011: 0.16 years)

The scheme was expired during the year on 31 May 2012 The number of entitlements that were
exercisable at the financial year was Nil unjt (2011: 1,850,446 units).
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41  Employee benefits (Continued)

(b) Equity Ownership Plan {(“EOP”)

The EOP was introduced in 1 April 2011 by CIMB Group where CIMB Group will grant
ordinary shares of CIMB Group to selected employees of the Group and the Bank Under the
EOP, earmarked portions of variable remuneration of selected employees of the Group and the
Bank will be utilised to purchase ordinary shares of CIMB Group from the market. The
purchased shares will be released progressively to the eligible employees at various dates after
the purchase date, subject to continued employment. A related company will act on behalf of
CIMB Group to administer the EOP and to hold the shares up to the pre-determined transfer
dates The eligibility of participation in the EOP shall be at the discretion of the Group
Compensation Review Committee of CIMB Group

Upon termination of employment other than retirement, disability or death, any unreleased
shares will be disposed at matket price and proceeds received will be donated to CIMB
Foundation on behalf of the employees. In the event of retirement, disability or death of the
eligible employee, the release of shares will be accelerated to the date of termination of
employment and the shares will be assigned to the designated beneficiary.

The total share-based payment expense recognised in statement of income for the Group and
the Bank during the financial year amounted to RM31,169,000 (2011: RM 24,225,000)

The weighted average fair value of shares awarded under EOP which were purchased over a
period of 10 trading days was RM7 70 (2011: RM8 27) per ordinary share, based on cbservable
matket ptice.

Movements in the number of the Company’s ordinary shares awarded are as follows:

Ihe Group and The Bank

2012 2011
Unit Unit
000 000
Shares
At 1 January 1,371 -
Awarded 1,305 1,840
Released (1,298) {(469)
At 31 December 1,378 1,371

42 Significant events during the financial year

There were no significant events during the financial year ended 31 December 2012

91




Company No; 18417-M

CIMB Investment Bank Berhad

(Incorporated in Malaysia)

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the financial year ended 31 December 2012 (Continued)

43  Significant event subsequent to the financial year end
There were no significant events subsequent to the financial year ended 31 December 2012

44  Critical accounting estimates and iudgements in applying accounting
policies

The Group and the Bank make estimates and assumptions concerning the future The resulting
accounting estimates will, by definition, rarely equal the related actual results To enhance the
information content of the estimates, certain key variables that are anticipated to have material
impact to the Group’s and the Bank’s results and financial position are tested for sensitivity to
changes in the underlying parameters. The estimates and assumptions that have a significant
risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets and liabilities within the

next financial year are outlined below:
(a) Impairment of available-for-sale equity investments

The Group and the Bank determines that available-for-sale equity investments are
impaired when there has been a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value below
its costs. This determination of what is significant and prolonged required judgement
The Group and the Bank evaluate, among other factors, the duration and extent to which
the fajr value of the investment is less than cost; and the financial health and near-term
business outlook for the investee, including factors such as industry and sector
performance, changes in technology and operational and financial cash flow.

{b) Impairment losses on loans, advances and financing

The Group and the Bank make allowance for losses on loans, advances and financing
based on assessment of recoverability Whilst management is guided by the relevant
BNM guidelines and accounting standards, management makes judgement on the future
and other key factors in respect of the estimation of the amount and timing of the cash
flows in assessing allowance for impairment of loans, advances and financing. Among
the factors considered are the Group’s aggregate exposure to the borrowers, the net
realisable value of the underlying collateral value, the viability of the customer’s
business model, the capacity to generate sufficient cash flow to service debt obligations
and the aggregate amount and ranking of all other creditor claims.

{c) Goodwill impairment
The Group tests annually whether goodwill has suffered any impairment in accordance
with the accounting policy stated in Note L of the Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies.
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Critical accounting estimates and judgements in applying accounting
policies (Continued)

Goodwill impairment (continued)

The first step of the impaiiment review process requires the identification of
independent operating units, dividing the Group’s business into the various business
segments. The goodwill is then allocated to these various business segments. The first
element of this allocation is based on the areas of the business expected to benefit fiom
the synergies derived from the acquisition. The second element reflects the allocation of
the net assets acquired and the difference between the consideration paid for those net
assets and their fair value This allocation is reviewed following business reorganisation
The carrying value of the business segment, including the allocated goodwill, is
compared to the higher of fair value less cost to sell and value in use to determine
whether any impairment exists. Detailed calculations may need to be carried out taking
into consideration changes in maiket in which a business operates In the absence of
readily available market price data, this calculation is usually based upon discounting
expected pre-tax cash flows at the Group’s and the Bank’s cost of capital, which
requires exercise of judgement. Refet to Note 14 for details of these assumptions and the
potential impact of changes to the assumptions

Changes to the assumptions used by management, particularly the discount rate and the
terminal growth rate, may significantly affect the results of the impairment.

Fair value of financial instruments

The majority of the Group’s and the Bank’s financial instruments reported at fair value
are based on quoted and observable market prices. Where the fair values of financial
assets and financial liabilities recorded on the statement of financial position cannot be
derived from active markets, they are determined using a variety of valuation techniques
that include the use of mathematical models. The inputs to these models are derived
from observable matket data where possible, but where observable market data are not
available, judgement is required to establish fair values. The judgements include
considerations of liquidity and model inputs such as volatility for longer dated
derivatives and discount rates, prepayment rates and defauit rate assumptions for asset
backed secuiities. The valuation of financial insttuments is described in more detail in
Note 46 4.
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Segment reporting
Business segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting
provided to the chief operating decision-maker. The chief operating decision-maker is
the person or group that allocates resources to and assesses the performance of the
operating segments of an entity. The Group has determined the Group Management
Committee as its chief opetating decision-maker.

Segment information is presented in respect of the Group’s business segment.

The business segment results are prepared based on the Group’s internal management
reporting, which reflect the organisation’s management repoiting structure.

Definition of segments

For management purposes, the Group is divided into five major business lines -
Financial advisory, underwriting and other fees, Debt related, Equity related,
Investments and securities services and Support and Others The business lines are the
basis on which the Group reports its segment information

Financial advisory, underwriting and other fees mainly comprise fees derived fiom
structured financial solutions, origination of capital market products including debt and
equity, mergers and acquisitions, secondary offerings, asset backed securities, debt
restructurings, corporate advisory, Islamic capital martket products and project advisory
In addition, this segment also includes underwriting of primary equities and debt
products.

Debt/financing related mainly comprises proptietary trading and market making in the
secondary market for debt, debt related derivatives and structured products. It also
invests in proprietary capital

Equity related mainly comprises institutional and retail broking business for securities
listed on the Exchange. It also includes income from trading and investing in domestic

and regional equities market.

Irvestments and securities services mainly comprise annuity income derived from fund
management, agency and securities services.

Support and others mainly comprise all middle and back-office processes and othey
related services which are non-core operations.
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The following table presents an analysis of the Group’s results and statements of financial
position by business segments:

Financial Inves tments
advisory, Debi/ and
underwriting  financing Equity  securities Support
and other fees related related services  and others Total
The Group RM'000 RM’000 RM’000 RM000 RM000 RMOOD
2012
FExternal net interest expense - (4,081) - - - (4,081)
Non interest income 109,498 7,279 175493 29,196 2,393 323859
Income from Islamic Banking
operations 83,014 {116} 51,117 4,453 2,501 140,969
192,512 3,082 226,610 33,649 4,894 460,747
Overheads (75,990) (11,549) (153,673) {33,105) - (274317)
af which -
Depreciation of proper ;. plant
and equipment {3,929) {5,643) {12,895) (3,826) - (26,293)
Profit/{Joss) before allowances 116,522 (8,467) 72,937 544 4,894 186,430
Allowance for impairment losses
on loans, advances and financing - - - - (507) (507)
Allowance for impairment losses
on other receivables {1,821) - - - - {1,821)
Segment resulis 114,701 (8,467) 72,937 544 4,387 184,102
Share of results of associates 729
Profit before taxation 184,831
Taxation B7457)
Net profit for the financial year 127374
Segment assets 54306 2,363,588 965,120 34,292 233,668 3,650,974
Unallocated assets 54,244
Total assets 3,705,218
Segment liabilities 2,789 2,151,140 872452 7,416 102,400 3,136,197
Unallocated liabilities 23489
Total liabilities 3,159,686
Other segment items
Incurred capital expenditure:
- addition of property plant
and equipment 5,449 7,826 17,886 5,307 - 36468
Accretion of discount
less amortisation of preminm - 2,806 - - - 2,806

95




Company No: 18417-M

CIMB Investment Bank Berhad

{Incorporated in Malaysia)

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the financial year ended 31 December 2012 (Continued)

45  Segment reporting (Continued)

Financial Investments
advisory, Debr/ and
underwriting  financing Feuity  secarities Suppot t
and other fees related related services and others Total
The Group RM000 RM 000 RM000 RM000 RN 0006 RV000
2081
Bxternal net interest income - 1,046 - - - 1046
Non mterest income 123,749 22 475 142,728 16970 6,691 312613
Income fromIslamic Banking
aperations 38,691 4,464 30,883 449 266 74,753
162,440 27 985 173,611 17,419 6957 388,412
Overheads (77.379) (44,449 (131,646) (30,986) - {284.460)
of which -
Depreciation of property plant
and equipment {3,706) /6,546) {12,200 {3,503 - (25,954)
Profit/(loss ) before allowances 85061 (16.464; 41.985 (15 567) 6957 103 952
Allowance for impairment losses
on loans, advances and financing - - - - (52) (32)
Allowance for other impaimment
losses - {6,331) - - - (6.331)
Allowance for impainment losses
on other receivables (2.569) - - - - {2569)
Recoveries from investment
management and securities
services - - - 45000 - 43000
Segment results 82,492 (22,795) 41 965 31433 6.505 140,000
Share of resulis of associates 187
Profit before taxation 140,187
Taxation (39,9580)
Net profit for the financial year 100,207
Segment assets 30864 2426956 1017.008 9277 147345 3631450
Unallocated assets 67,091
lotal assets 3,658,541
Segiment liabilities 5322 2651022 417 733 1572 94.987 3170836
Unaliocated liabilities 15377
Total liahilities 3,186.233
Other segment items
Incurred capital expenditure;
~addition of property, plant
and equipment 6.704 11841 22,070 6,338 - 46953
Accretion of discount
less amottisation of premium - 3,157 - - - 3,197
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Financial Investments
advisory, Debt/ and
underwriting  financing Equity securities Support
and other fees related related services and others Total
The Group RM 00D RM'000 RMD0G RMO00 RM000 RM000
1 Jannary 2011
Segiment assets 43 092 3001411 555778 11.005 293 507 3,904,793
Unallocated assets 44 385
Total assets 3,949,178
Sepmment liabilities 16,273 2795870 560.381 12 856 65647 3451027
Unaliocated liabilities 51.429
Total liakklities 3.502 456
Other segment items
Incurred capital expenditure:
- addition of property. plant
and equipment 2,555 11,941 7,138 5,610 19,428 46,672

The Group’s activities are predominantly carried out in Malaysia, with the Malaysian market
contributing approximately 100% of the gross operating income and the total segment assets in
Malaysia approximately 100% of total assets of the Group. Accordingly, no information on the
Group’s operations by geographical segments has been provided,
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(a) Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group embraces risk managemeni as an integral component of the Group’s business,
operations and decision-making process In ensuring that the Group achieves optimum returns
whilst operating within a sound business environment, the risk management teams are involved
at the early stage of the risk taking process by providing independent inputs including relevant
valuations, credit evaluations, new product assessments and quantification of capital
requirements These inputs enable the business units to assess the risk-vs-reward value of their
propositions and thus enable risk to be priced appropriately in relation to the retuin.

The objectives of CIMB Group’s tisk management activities are to:
o Identify the various risk exposures and 1isk capital requirements;

» Ensure risk taking activities are consistent with risk policies and the aggregated risk
position are within the risk appetite as approved by the Board; and

o Create shareholder value through proper allocation of risk capital and {facilitate
development of new business and products

(b) Enterprise Wide Risk Managemeut Framework (EWRM)

CIMB Group employs an EWRM fiamework to manage its risk and opportunity effectively.
The EWRM framework provides the Board and management with a tool to anticipate and
manage hoth the existing and potential risks, taking into consideration changing risk profiles as
dictated by changes in business strategies, opeiating and regulatory environment and functional
activities

The key components of the Group’s EWRM framework are represented in the diagram below:

'ECONOMIC. = =" '~ REGULATORY
~ CAPITAL =~ " CAPITAL -
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{(b)  Enterprise Wide Risk Management Framework (EWRM) (Continued)

The Group acknowledges that strong risk governance forms the backbone that holds the EWRM
together. The Board of Directors through the Board Risk Committee (BRC) is ultimately
responsible for the Group's risk management activities and provides strategic direction through
the risk appetite statement and the corresponding capital and risk management frameworks.
The implementation of the EWRM is supervised through several risk committees, with the line
management being primarily responsible for identifying and managing risks at the onset The
Group Risk Division (GRD} is principally tasked to assist the various committees and
undertakes the performance of the independent risk management, monitoring and reporting
functions of the EWRM. The implementation of the EWRM is subjected to the independent
assurance and assessment by Group Internal Audit Division.

The EWRM staits its comprehensive risk assessment process by assessing all risk taking
activities of the Group from the perspectives of its financial and brand reputation impact, thus
identifying the Group's material 1isks. These material risks are assessed, measured, controlled,
monitored and reported on an on-going basis in accordance with the Group's 1isk management
processes embodied within the EWRM

At the core of the EWRM is a robust risk and capital management framework that relates the
Group's material risks to its capital requirements and planning activities, ensuting its capital
adequacy at all time. The Group's Risk-based Performance Measurement Framework provides
a common and consistent measurement of risk to facilitate comparison of risks across business
units and risk types. This enables the Group to consider both the downside risk, for risk
protection and upside potential, for earnings growth Hence, allowing the Group to measure the
petformance of each business on an absolute basis {economic profit) and relative percentage
return basis (Risk Adjusted Return on Capital “RAROC™) against the Group’s costs of capital.
Each year capital is allocated to the business units based on the respective business plan,
budgeted profit and targeted RAROC.

The foundation of the EWRM is made up of three major building blocks, which are Risk
Management Limits and Controls, Risk Analysis and Reporting, and Stress Testing. Limits
constitute the key mechanism to control allowable risk taking activities and are regulatly
reviewed in the face of changing business needs, market conditions, and regulatory
requirements.  Timely reports and meaningful analysis of risk positions are critical to enable the
Board and its management to exercise control over all exposures and make informed business
decisions.
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(b) Enterprise Wide Risk Management (EWRM) Framework (Continued)

Stress testing involves identifying possible events or future changes in the financial and
economic conditions that could have unfavourable effects on the Group’s exposure and the
assessment of the Group’s ability to withstand such changes, usually in relation to the capacity
of its capital and earnings to absorb potentially significant losses as well as the sufficiency of its
liguidity swiplus and reserves. Steps are then identified to manage risk and conserve capital,

Group wide stress test is performed semi-annually

(©) Risk Governance

In accordance with the Group’s risk management sfructure, the BRC assumes the ultimate
responsibility on behalf of the Boards of Directors for the supervision of tisk management
within CIMB Group In line with best practices, the BRC determines the 1isk policy objectives
for the Group

Responsibility for administering risk management and control is delegated to the Group Risk
Committee (GRC). The GRC is chaired by the Group Managing Director/Chief Executive
Officer and undertakes the oversight function for overall 1isk limits, aligning them to the risk
appetite The GRC is further supported by several sub-committees, namely the Group
Wholesale Bank Risk Committee (GWBRC), Consumer Bank Credit Committee (CBCC),
Regional Credit Committee (RCC), Singapore Business Credit Committee (SBCC), Regional
Liquidity Risk Committce (RLRC) and Operational Risk Committee (ORC), with each
committee set up to manage and contro specific 1isk areas. In relation to Interest rate Risk in
the Banking Book (IRRBB)/ Rate of Return Risk in the Banking Book (RORBB), GRC is
further assisted by the Balance Sheet Management Committee (BSMCY} that is responsible for
recommending and executing strategies and hedging proposals for the banking book as well as
ensuring the Group’s interest rate/rate of return risk profile is within the risk limits/MATs
endorsed by GRC. With this set-up, the Board and BRC through the various risk committees
and BSMC maintain oversight of vaiious risks across the Group.

The composition of the committees includes senior management and individuals from business
divisions as well as divisions which are independent from the business units. BRC reviews the
composition of these committees except for the BSMC, to reflect a balance of expetienced
independent and non-independent individuals with the necessary skills and qualifications to
carry out the roles and responsibilities of the relevant committee.
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Risk Governance (Continued)

Financial Risk Management (Continued)

The following chart sets out the organisational structure of the risk management committees
overseeing risk management activities and gives an overview of the respective commiittee’s roles
and responsibilities:

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

BOARD RISK COMMITTEE

« Review and recommend risk policies and strategies for
approval
*  Oversee entire EWRM and provide strategic guidance to
various risk committees

GROUF RISK COMMITTEE

* Review and advise on risk policies and straiegies

+ Dversee management of risk, capital aliocation and asset
liability management processes across our Group

-

I

Group Wholesale Bank

Consumer Bank

Regianal Credit

Singapore Business

Regional Liquidity|

Operational Risk

proposals for primary,
and secondary marke
deals for debt and
equity instruments
for the Group
Credit approval
authority for
Malaysian centric
credit exposure
Assign and review
the Malaysian
sectonal exposures

.

* Review and approve
Global Banking
Institutions Limits for
Malaysian centric
banking groups

Ensuring Group
overall loan
porifoliofinancing
meets regulatory
guidelines and
approved internal
policies and
praocedures
Qverseghe
development of
credit policies and
procedures,
encompassing all
products amd
businesses with

Belance Sheet

Consumer Banking

Three-Lines of Defence

The Group’s 1isk management approach is based on the three-lines of defence concept whereby
risks are managed from the point of risk-taking activities This is to ensure clear accountability
of risk across the Group and risk management as an enabler of the business units As a first line
of defence, the line management, including all business units and client facing activities, are
primarily responsible for risk management on a day-to-day basis. The second line of defence
provides oversight functions and peiforms independent monitering of business activities and
reporting to management to ensure that the Group is conducting business and operating within
the approved appetite and also in compliance to regulations. The third line of defence is Group
Internal Audit Division who provides independent assurance to the Boards that the internal
controls and 1isk management activities are functioning effectively.

“ Ensuring Group

overall loan
portfolio/financing
meets regulatory
guidelines and
appraved internal
policies and
procedures

» Review and

4PPTOVE OF CONEUr
il non-Malaysian
Interbank Limit,
Glebal Financial
Institutions
Counterparty
Limits and Global
Country Limit

exposure

+ Ensuring Group
overall loan
ponfalio/financing)
meets regulaiory
suidelines and
approved internal
policies and
procedures
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» Ensure Group is
able to meet its
cash flow
obligations in
a timely and cost
effective manner

* Together with
BSMC, oversess
the [RRBR/
RORBE

and rsk tolerance
Review controls and
action plans
address identified
risks

Oversight on all
Business Continuity
Management {BCM)
MDisaster Recovery
(DR} activities

Risk Commitiee Credit Committee Commiriee (RCC) Credit Committee Risk Comminee Committee (QRC) Management
{GWBRC) (CBCC) {SBCC) {RLRC} Commitiee (BSMC}
* Oversee Group's *  Credit approval [+ Review and » Credit approval ¢ Oversee the * Oversee operational | {* Review balance
exposures to market authority for appm or concur) authority for Group’s overall risk management in sheet positions
tisks Malsysian centric i i primary Singaporg liquidity terms of hest + Recommend and
* Evaluate and approvq|  credit exposure exposure centric credit management practices, policies execuring balanee

sheet strategies and
hedging

* Ensure risk profile
is kept within the
established risk
appetite/ limits/
MAT
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{(c) Risk Governance (Continued)

The Roles of Group Credit Risk Officer (CRO) and Group Risk Division(GRD)

Within the second line of defence is GRD, a function independent of business units that assists
the Group's management and various risk committees in the monitoring and controlling of the
Group's 1isk exposures GRD comprises Group Risk Management (GRM), Group Credit (GC),
Regional Credit Management (RCM) and Regional Risk (RR) and its key responsibilities are
analyse, assess, measure, control, monitor and repoit the material risks to which the Group is
exposed. GRD is headed by the CRO who is appointed by the Board to speathead the risk
management functions and the implementation of the EWRM  The CRO actively engages the
Board and senior management on risk management issues and initiatives The CRO also
maintains an oversight on risk management functions across all entities within the Group

In ensuring a standardised approach to risk management across the Group, all risk management
teams within the Group are required to conform to the Group’s EWRM framework, subject to
necessary adjustments required for local regulations For branches and subsidiaties without any
1isk management outfit, all 1isk management activities will be centralised at GRM. Otherwise,
the risk management activities will be performed by the local risk management team with
matrix reporting line to GRD.

(d) Group Risk Management

GRM monitoss risk-taking activities, initiates and proposes risk policies, risk measurement
methodologies and risk limits, performs independent review of loan/financing assets quality and
loan/financing recovery plan, coordinates capital market products deployments and develops
the 1isk-based product pricing framework for loan/financing portfolios.

In propagating and ensuring compliance to the market risk framework, GRM reviews treasury
trading strategy, analyses positions and activities vis-a-vis changes in the financial market and
performs mark-to-market as part of financial valuation.

GRM is also tasked with the co-ordination of the Group’s effort towards implementation of
Basel II. In this regard, GRM develops, implements and validates all internal rating and scoring
models and closely monitors the usage of the rating and scoring systems to ensure relevancy to
current market conditions and integrity of the ratings.
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(d Group Risk Management (Continued)

GRM adds value to business propositions by providing advice on market valuations,
quantifications of capital requirement and independent risk assessment. This enables the
business units to prepare for the potential risks associated with the new transactions or business
ventures and consequently, addiess the management and mitigation of such risks from the eaily
stage of the proposition The business units gain understanding of the risk-reward equation of
the proposition, consider the risk factors in the pricing decision, and ensure that the projected
retuins from the business propositions commensurate with the risks taken. In order to ensure
the independence of GRM in such an arrangement, GRM’s remuneration is not linked to the
success of particular transactions or deals

(e) Group Credit

GC carries out independent assessments and evalvations of all credit risk related proposals
originating from the various business units such as loans/financings and advances, fixed
income, derivatives, sales and trading, prior to submission to the CBCC, GWBRC, the Group
Executive Committee (EXCO) or Board for approval GC ensures proper grouping of entities
and counterparties under the single customer framework. GC also reviews the Group’s
holdings of all fixed income assets issued by Malaysian companies and recommends the
internal ratings for GWBRC’s approval.

D Regional Credit Management

A regional credit platform was established with a primary objective of enhancing efficiency and
effectiveness of the credit oversight as well as credit approval process for all non-Malaysian
centric Corporate and Financial Institutions within the Group. The platform includes 2 credit
committees, the SBCC for smaller-sized exposures and the RCC for larger regional exposures.
All credit proposals submitted to the 2 credit committees for approval/concurrence are routed
through RCM for independent assessment and due recommendation to the credit committees.

Strategies and Processes for Various Risk Management

These information are available in later sections for each Credit Risk, Market Risk and
Liquidity Risk.
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46.1  Credit risk

Credit risk, is defined as arising from losses due to the obligor, market counterpaity or issuer of
securities or other insttuments held, failing to perform its contractual obligations to the Group

It arises primarily from lending/financing activities through loans/financing assets as well as
commitments to support clients’ obligations to third parties, i ¢ guarantees. In sales and trading
activities, credit risk arises from the possibility that the Group’s counterparties will not be able
or willing to fulfil their obligation on transactions on or before settlement date In derivative
activities, credit risk arises when counterparties to derivative contracts, such as interest/profit
rate swaps, are not able to ot willing to fulfil theit obligation to pay the positive fair value or
receivable resulting from the execution of contract terms. Credit risk may also arise where the
downgrading of an entity’s rating causes the fair value of the Group’s investment in that entity’s
financial instruments to fall,

Credit Risk Mitigation

The employment of various credit risk mitigation techniques such as appropriate credit stiucturing,
and posting of coliateral and/or third party support form an integral part of the credit risk
management process. Credit risk mitigants are taken where possible and is considered secondary
recourse to the obligor for the credit risk underwritten

Netring

In mitigating the credit risks in swaps and derivative transactions, the Group enters into master
agresments that provide for closeout and settlement netting arrangements with counterparties,
whenever possible. A master agreement that poverns all fransactions between two parties, creates
the greatest legal certainty that credit exposure will be netted In effect, it enables the netting of
outstanding obligations upen termination of outstanding transactions if an event of default occuss.

Oft Balance Sheet Exposures and Counterparty Credit Risk (CCR)

CCR limits are established at the individual counterparty level and approved by GWBRC
and/or RCC. These limits are monitored and reported at both business and at the Group level

Credit Risk Mitigation

For credit derivatives and swaps transactions, the Group enters into master agreement with
counterparties, whenever possible. Further, the Group may also enter into Credit Support
Annexe (CSA) with counterparties. The net credit exposure with each counterparty is
monitored and the Group may request for additional margin for any exposures above the agreed
threshold, in accordance with the terms specified in the relevant CSA or the master agreement.

The eligibility of collaterals and frequency calls are negotiated with the counterparty and
endorsed by GWBRC and/or RCC
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46.1 Credit Risk (Continued)
Off Balance Sheet Exposures and Counterparty Credit Risk (CCR) (Continued)

Treatment of Rating Downgrade

In the event of a one-notch downgrade of rating, based on the terms of the existing CSA and
thes exposure as at 31 December 2012, there will be no requirement for additional collateral to

be posted

On the other hand, counterparty rating is being monitored and in the event of a rating
downgrade, remedial actions such as revision of the counterparty credit limit, suspension of the

limit o1 the request for additional collateral may be taken.

46.1.1 Maximum exposure to credit risk (without taking into account any collateral held

or other credit enhancements)

For financial assets recognised in the statement of financial position, the exposure to credit
1isk equals their carrying amount For credit related commitments and contingents that are
irrevocable over the life of the respective facilities, it is generally the full amount of the
committed facilities

31 December 2012

The Group The Bank
Credit related commitments and contingencies 5,082 5,082
31 December 2011 The Group The Bank
Credit related coinmitments and contingencies 81,946 81,946
1 Janunary 2011 The Group The Bank
Credit related commiiments and contingencies 600,218 600218

The financial effect of collateral {quantification to the extent to which collateral and
other credit enhancements that mitigate credit risk) held for net loans, advances and
financing for the Group and the Bank is 100% (2011: 100%) respectively. The financial
effects of collateral held for the remaining on balance sheet financial assets are
insignificant.
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Company No: 18417-M

CIMB Investment Bank Berhad

{Incorporated in Malaysia)

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the financial year ended 31 December 2012 (Continued)

46  Financial Risk Management (Continued)

Financial assets are required under MERS 7, to be categorised into “neither past due nor

46.1 Credit Risk (Continued)
46.1.3 Credit guality of financial assets

impaired”, “past due but not impaired” or “impaired”
(a) Loans, advances and financing

Loans, advances and financing of the Group and the Bank are summarised as follows:

The Group and the Bank

Neither past due

31 Decembex 2012

nor impaired Impaired T otal
Note 46.1.3 (i) (ii)
RM'000 RMM'000 RM*000
Term loans 74,360 - 74,360
Other loans - 432 432
T otal 74,360 432 74,792
Less: Impairment allowances (1,547)
Total net amount 73,245
Ihe Group and the Bank
31 December 2011
Neither past due
nor impaired Impaired Total
Note 46.1.3 (i) (ii)
RM 000 RM’000 RM’000
Term loans 41.57% - 41379
Other loans - 851 891
Total 41,579 391 42.470
Less; Iimpairment allowances (1,514
Iotal net amount 40,956
The Group and the Bank
1 January 2011
Neither past due
nor impaired Impaired Total
Note 46.13 (0] (i)
RM’000 RM000 RM 000
Term loans 43 360 - 43 360
Qther Ioans - 822 B22
Total 43360 822 44 182
Less: Impairment allowances (1.472)
Total et amount 42,710

There were no loans, advances and financing that are “past due but not impaired” as at 31
December 2012, 31 December 2011 and 1 January 2011,
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Company No: 18417-M

CIMB Investment Bank Berhad

{(Incorporated in Malaysia)

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the financial year ended 31 December 2012 (Continued)

46  Financial Risk Management (Continued)

46.1 Credit Risk (Continued)

46.1.3 Credit quality of financial assets (Continued)

(a) Loans, advances and financing (Continued)

(i) Loans, advances and financing that are “neither past due nor impaired”
The credit quality of loans, advances and financing that are “neither past due nor
impaired” can be assessed by reference to the internal rating system adopted by the
Group and the Bank

The Group and the Bank
31 December 2012

No rating

RM' 000

Term loans 74,360
Total

74,360

The Group and the Bank
31 December 2011

No rating

RM 000

Term loans 41,579
Total

41,579

The Group and the Bank
1 Tanuary 2011

No rating

RN 000

Term loans 43350
Total 43,360

Financial statement descriptions can be summarised as follows:

No rating — Refers to counterparties that do not satisfy the criteria to be rated internally.
These include sovereigns, individuals, schools, non-government organisations,
corporations and others

(ii) “Impaired” loans, advances and financing

Refer to Note 7 for analysis of impaired loans, advances and financing by economic
purpose and geographical distribution.
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Company No: 18417-M

CIMB Investment Bank Berhad

(Incorporated in Malaysia)

Notes to the Financial Statements

for the financial year ended 31 December 2012 (Continued)
46  Financial Risk Management (Continued)

46.1 Credit Risk (Continued)

46.1.3 Credit quality of financial assets (Continued)

(h) Financial assets held for trading (Continued)

(i) Financial assets held for trading that are “neither past due nor impaired”

The table below presents an analysis of financial assets held for trading that are “neither
past due nor impaired”, based on ratings by major credit rating agencies:

The Group and the Bank

31 December 2012 31 December 2011 1 January 2011
Investment grade Investment grade Investraent grade
(AAA to BBR-) {AAA1GBBB-)  {AAA toBBB-)
RM*000 RM 000 RM 000

Financial assets held for trading
= Unquoted securities 32,896 79,064 78,436
Total 32,89 79,064 78436




Company No: 18417-M

CIMB Investment Bank Berhad

(Incorporated in Malaysia)

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the financial year ended 31 December 2012 (Continued)

46  Financial Risk Management (Continued)
461 Credit Risk (Continued)

46.1.3 Credit quality of financial assets (Continued)
(c) Credit risk of other financial assets

Other financial assets of the Group’s as at 31 December 2012, 31 December 2011 and |
January 2011 are summarised as follows :

IThe Group
MNeither past
due nor Past due but not
impaired impaired Impaired T otal
31 December 2012 RM’000 RM 000 RM000 RN 000
Cash and short term funds 1.423,389 - - 1.423 389
Reverse rep urchase agreements 150.622 - - 150622
Deposits and piacements with
banks and other financial
institutions 700.200 - - 700200
Derivarive financial instruments 39 088 - - 39038
Qther financial assets 1,035,657 18,141 28,994 1,082,792
Total 3,348,956 18,141 28,994 3,396,091
Less: Impairment alicwances (23,920)
Total net amount 3,372,171
The Group
Meither past
due nor Pazr due but not
impaired impaired Impaired Total
31 December 2011 RAT 000 RM'000 RM000 RM"000
Casch and short term funds 1 603 543 - - 1603543
Reverse rep urchase agreements 273,423 " - 273423
Deposits and placements with
banks and other financial
institutions 232 100 - - 252100
Derivative financial instruments 48 441 - - 48 441
Other financial assets 1,155,730 16,173 30,251 1,202,154
Total 3,333,237 16,173 30,251 3,379,661
Less. Impairment allowances (21,534)
T otal net amount 3,358,127
The Group
Neither past
due nor Past due but not
impaired impaired Impaired T otal
1 January 2011 RM000 RM000 RM000 RNM 000
Cash and short termn funds 1.827 279 - - 1827279
Reverse rep urchase agreements 300 067 - - 300.067
Deposits and placements with
banks and other financial
mstitutions 689.196 - - 589 196
Dertvative financiz! instruments 42 089 - - 42 089
Other financial assets 786,958 8276 23,061 824293
Total 3,643,589 0376 SR.061 3.682.926
Less: Impairment allowances (18,93 1)
Total net amount 3,663,905




Company No: 184517-M

CIMB Investment Bank Berhad

{Incorporated in Malaysia)

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the financial year ended 31 December 2012 (Continued)

46  Financial Risk Management (Continued)
46.1 Credit Risk (Continued)

46.1.3 Credit quality of financial assets {(Continued)
{c) Credit risk of other financial assets (Continued)

Other financial assets of the Bank’s as at 31 December 2012, 31 December 2011 and 1
January 2011 are summatised as follows :

The Bank
Weither past
due nor Past due but not Total gross
impaired impaired Impaired amount
31 December 2012 RM’000 RM'000 RM'000 RM’000
Cash and short term funds 1,401,786 - - 1.401.786
Reverse repurchase agreements 150.622 - - 150.622
Deposits and placements with
banks and other financial
institutions 692 838 - - 692,858
Drerivative finaneial instruments 39 088 - - 39088
Other financial assets 1,033,459 18,141 28,846 1,080,446
Total 3,317,813 18,141 28,846 3,364,800
Less: Impauwment allowances : (23,772)
Total net amount _ 3,341,028
Neither past
due nor Past due but not Total gross
impaired impaired Impaired amount
31 Decemner 2011 RM000 RM 000 Rh* 000 RMN000
Cash and short termn funds 1 587 507 - - 1.587 307
Reverse repurchase apreements 273 423 - - 273 423 i
Deposits and placements with
banks and other financial
institutions 250 833 - - 250 833
Derivative financial nstruments 48.441 - - 48 441 i
Other financial assets 1,154,721 16,173 30,081 1,200,975
Total 3.314,925 16,173 30,081 3,361,179
Less: Impairment allowances (21,364)
Total net amonnt 3,339,815
Neither past :
due nor Past due but not Total gross
impaired impaired Impaired amount
1 January 2011 RM 600 RMN000 RM’000 RM' 000
Cash and shert term funds 1.816 316 - - 1.816316
Reverse repurchase agreements 300.067 - - 300.067
Deposits and placements with
banks and other financial
institutions GB7 992 - - 687,992
Derivative financial instruments 42 089 - - 42 039
Other financial assets T85,947 9276 27 831 823,054
Total 3,632,41 9,276 27,831 3,662,518
Less: Impairment allewances (18,701)
Total net amount 3,630,817
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Company No: 18417-M

CIMB Investment Bank Berhad

{Incorporated in Malaysia)

Notes to the Financial Statements

for the financial year ended 31 December 2012 (Continued)

46  Financial Risk Management (Continued)

46.1 Credit Risk (Continued)

46.1.3 Credit quality of financial assets (Continued)

(©) Credit risk of other financial assets (Continued)

(iii)  An ageing analysis of other financial assets of the Group’s and the Bank’s that are “past
due but not impaired” as at 31 December 2012, 31 December 2011 and [ January 2011
are set out as beiow:

The Group and the Bank

31 December 2012
Past due but not impaired

Uptol >1to 3
month months Total
RM’000 RM’000 RM*000
Other financial assets 1,135 17,006 18,141

The Group and the Bank
31 December 2011
Past due but not imp aired

Uptol >} to3
month months Total
RM 000 RM 000 RM 009
Other financial assets 6.938 9.235 16,173

The Group and the Bank
I January 2011
Past due but not impaired

Uptol >1to3
nonth months Total
RM*000 RM*000 RM 000
Qiher fmancial assets 4,552 4,724 9276
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Company No: 18417-M

CIMB Investment Bank Berhad

(Incorporated in Malaysia)

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the financial year ended 31 December 2012 (Continued)

46

46.2

Financial Risk Management (Continued)

Market Risk

Matket risk is defined as any fluctuation in the market value of a trading or investment
exposure arising from changes to matket risk factors such as interest rates/benchmark
rates, currency exchange rates, credit spreads, equity prices, commodities prices and their
associated volatility

Market risk is inherent in the business activities of an institution that irades and invests in
securities, derivatives and other structured financial products. Market risk may arise from
the trading book and investment activities in the banking book. For the trading book, it
can arise from customet-related businesses or fram the Group’s proprietary positions As
for investment activities in the banking book, the Group holds the investment portfolio to
meet liquidity and statutory reserves requirement and for investment purposes

Market Risk Management (MRM)

Market risk is evaluated by considering the risk/reward relationship and market
exposutes across a variety of dimensions such as volatility, concentration/diversification
and maturity The GRC ensures that the risk exposures undertaken by the Group is within
the 1isk appetite approved by the Board GRC, supported by the Market Risk
Management (MRM) function in GRM fis responsible to measure and control market risk
of the Group through robust measurement and the setting of limits while facilitating
business growth within a controlled and transparent 1isk management framework

CIMB Group employs the VaR framework to measure market risk where VaR represents
the worst expected loss in portfolio value under normal market conditions over a specific
time interval at a given confidence level The Group has adopted a historical simulation
approach to compute VaR. This approach assesses potential loss in portfolio value based
on the last 500 daily historical movements of relevant market parameters and 99%
confidence level at 1-day holding period
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46.2

Financial Risk Management (Continued)

Market Risk (Continued)
Market Risk Management (MRM) (Continued)

Broadly, the Group is exposed to four major types of market risk namely equity risk,
interest/benchmark rate risk, foreign exchange risk and commodity risk. Each business
unit is allocated VaR limits for each type of matket risk undertaken for effective risk
monitoring and control. These limits are approved by the GRC and utilisation of limits is
monitored on a daily basis Daily risk reports are sent to the relevant traders and Group
Treasury’s Market Risk Analytics Team The head of each business unit is accountable
for all market risk under his/her purview. Any excess in limit will be escalated to
management in accordance to the Group’s exception management procedures.

In addition to daily monitoring of VaR usage, on a monthly basis, all market exposures
and VaR of the Group will be summarised and submitted to GRC and BRC for its
perusal.

Although historical simulation provides a reasonable estimate of market risk, this
approach relies heavily on historical daily price movements of the market parameter of
interest. Hence, the resulting market VaR is exposed to the danger that price and rate
changes ovet the stipulated time horizon might not be typical. Example, if the past 500
daily price movements were observed over a period of exceptionally low volatility, then
the VaR computed would understate the tisk of the portfolio and vice versa.

In order to ensure historical simulation gives an adequate estimation of market VaR,
backtesting of the historical simulation approach is performed annually Backtesting
involves comparing the derived 1-day VaR against the hypothetical change in portfolio
value assuming end-of-day positions in the portfolio were to remain unchanged The
number of exceptions would be the number of times the difference in hypothetical value
exceeds the computed 1-day VaR

The Group also complements VaR with stress testing exercises to capture event risk that
are not observed in the historical time period selected to compute VaR. Stress testing
exercise at the group-wide level involves assessing potential losses to the Group’s market
risk exposures under pre-specified scenarios This type of scenario analysis is performed
twice yeatly. Scenarios are designed in collaboration with the Regional Research Team to
reflect extreme and yet plausible stress scenarios. Stress test results are presented to the
GRC to provide senior management with an overview of the impact to the Group if such
stress scenarios were to materialise.
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46.2

Financial Risk Management (Continued)

Market Risk (Continned)

Market Risk Management (MRM) (Continuned)

In addition to the above, MRM undertakes the monitoring and oversight process at Group
Treasury and Equity Derivatives Group trading floors, which include reviewing treasury
trading strategy, analysing positions and activities vis-a-vis changes in the financial
markets, monitoring limits usage, assessing limits adequacy and verifying transaction

prices.

MRM also provides accurate and timely valuation of the Group’s position on a daily
basis. Exposures are valued using market price (Mark-to-Market) or a pricing model
{Mark-to-Model) (collectively known as ‘MTM*) where appropriate. The MIM process
is carried out on all positions classified as Held for Trading as well as Available for Sale
on a daily basis for the purpose of meeting independent price verification requirements,
calculation of profits/losses as well as to confirm that marging required are met.

Treasury products approval processes will be led by MRM to ensure operational
readiness before launching All new products are assessed by components and in totality
to ensure financial 1isks are accurately identified, monitored and effectively managed.

All valuation methods and models used are documented and validated by the quantitative
analysts to assess its applicability to market conditions The process includes verification
of rate sources, parameters, assumptions in modelling approach and its implementation.
Existing valuation models are reviewed periodically to ensure that they yemain relevant
to changing market conditions Back-testing of newly approved or revised models may be
conducted to assess the appropriateness of the model and input data used.

Capital Treatment for Market Risk

At present, the Group adopts the Standardised Approach to compute market risk capital
requirement under BNM’s guidelines on RWCAF (Basel [T — Risk Weighted Assets
Computation) and CAFIB.
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46.2.1

Financial Risk Management (Continued)

Market Risk (Continued)

VaR

The usage of market VaR by risk type based on 1-day holding period of the Group’s and
the Bank’s trading exposures as at 31 December 2012, 31 December 2011 and 1 January

2011 are as follows:

VaR

Foreign exchange risk
Interest 1ate risk
Equity 1isk

Total

Total shareholders fund
Percentage of shareholders funds

VaR

Foreign exchange risk
Interest rate risk
Equity risk

Total

Total shareholders fund
Percentage of shareholders funds

The Group

31 December 31 December 1 January
2012 2011 2011
RM’ 000 RM 000 RM*000

541 497 245

85 380 542

7 1 87

633 878 8§74

545,532 512,308 446,722
+12% 017% 020%

The Bank

31 December 31 December 1 January
2012 2011 2011

RM* Q00 RM 000 RM 000

540 496 245

85 380 342

7 1 87

632 877 874

522,772 493,510 425,096
012% 0 18% 020%
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Company No: 18417-M

CIMB Investment Bank Berhad

{Incorporated in Malaysia)

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the financial year ended 31 December 2012 (Continued)

46

46.2
46.2.2

Financial Risk Management (Continued)

Market Risk (Continued}

Interest rate risk (Continued)

(¢} Sensitivity to profit

46.2.3

The table below shows the sensitivity of the Group and the Bank to movement in interest
rates:

The Group
31 December 2012 31 December 2011
+100 basis point  -1D0 basis point +100 basis point  -100 basis point
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
Impact to profit
(after tax) 2,086 (2.086) 5.598 (5 SSR8)
The Bank
31 December 2012 31 December 2011
+100 basis point  -100 basis point +100 basis point -100 basis point
RM'000 RM'000 RM'900 RM'000
Impact to profit
{after tax) 1,918 (1.918) 5510 (5 510)

Sensitivity is measured using the EaR methodology The treatments and assumptions
applied are based on the contractual repricing and remaining maturity of the products,
whichever is earlier. Items with indefinite repricing maturity are treated based on the
earliest possible repricing date. The actual dates may vary from the repricing profile
allocated due to factors such as pre-mature withdrawals, prepayment and others.

A 100 bps parallel rate movement is applied to the yield curve to model the potential
impact on profit in the next 12 months from policy rate change.

The projection assumes that interest rates of all matuiities move by the same amount and,
therefore, do not reflect the potential impact on profit of some rates changing while
others remain unchanged. The projections also assume that all other variables are held
constant and are based on a constant reporting date position and that all positions run to
maturity.

Foreign exchange risk

The Group and Bank are exposed to transactional foreign exchange exposures which are
exposures on assets and liabilities denominated in currencies other than the functional
currency of the transacting entity

Ihe Group and the Bank take minimal exposure to the effects of fluctuations in the
prevailing foreign currency exchange rates on its financial position and cash flows. The
Group manages its exposure to foreign exchange currencies at each entity level,
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Company No: 18417-M

CIMB Investment Bank Berhad

(Incorporated in Malaysia)

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the financial year ended 31 December 2012 (Continued)

46
46.2

46.2.3
(a)

Financial Risk Management (Continued)

Market Risk (Continued)

Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

The table below summarises the financial assets, financial liabilities, items not recognised
in the statements of financial position and net open position by currency of the Group and

the Bank.
The Group
Total non-
31 December 2012 MYR DR THE SGD USD AUD  Others MYR|| Grand total
RM'000 §f RM'00D RM'000  RM'009 Rn'008  RM'000  RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
Financial assets
Cash and short term funds 1,388,171 - 617 11,965 17,603 1572 3,509 35266 1,423,437
Reverse repurchase ageements 130,622 - - - - - - 150,622
Depaosits and placements with banks and other
financiat institotions 700,260 - - - - 700,200
Financial assets held for trading
« Quoted securities i05 [ 6 4 - b - 90 195
- Unquoted securities 4,881 - - 28,015 - 28,015 32.8%
Derivative financial instruments
- Trading denvailves 38,920 - - 168 - - 168 39,088
Financial investments avalable-for-sale
+ Unquoted securities 3,987 45 - - 43 4,732
Loans. advances and financing 73,245 . . . - - - - 73,243
Other assets 984,150 19.454 29,309 4,156 4382 609 12,008 69,918 1,034,068
Amounts due from ultimate holding company 1 - - . - - 1
Amounts due from related companies 4,263 540 . " - - 340 4803
3,348,545 20,000 29932 16,128 50,913 2,255 15517 134,742 3,483,287
Financial Fiabilities
Depuosits from custemers 802,918 - - - - - - 802,913
Depasits and placeinents of banks and other
finangial institutions 1317,197 - - - 161 161 1,327,358
Derivatives financial instruments
- Trading denivatives 17,582 - 168 - 168 17,750
Subordinated foan 10,000 " - " " " " - 10,000
Other liabilities 901,839 19,409 23,255 3933 4,561 638 12,722 70,518 972,357
Amounts due to refated companies 22,606 - - - - - - - 21,606
3,082,139 19,409 29,255 3933 4,729 638 12,883 0,847 3,152,986
Credit related commitments and contingmeies | 5082 ] - - - - - - - 4 5082 |
5,082 - - - - - - - 3,082
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Company No: 18417-M

CIMB Investment Bank Berhad

(Incorporated in Malaysia)

Notes to the Financial Statements

for the financial year ended 31 December 2012 (Continued)

46  Financial Risk Management (Continued)
46.2 Market Risk (Continued)

46.2.3 Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

(a) The table below summarises the financial assets, financial liabilities, items not recognised
in the statements of financial position and net open position by currency of the Group and

the Bank (Continued)
: The Growp
Total non-
31 December 2011 MYR DR THB 3GD USD AUD  Others MYR|| Grand total
RM'000 || RM'000 RM'000  RM'0GEH RM'000 RM'WO0  RM'Q003[ RM'000 RM'000
Financial assets
Cash and short tem fands 1313365 - 1512 69939 1244 1363 1798 88128 1603393
Reverse repurchase areements 273,423 E 213,423
Deposits and placements with banks and other
Financial institutions 252,100 252,100
Firancial essets held for trading
- Quoted securities 3 6 4 3 - 13 46
- Unquoted securities 8090 - - . 70974 70974 75064
Derivalive financial instraments
- Trading derivatives 47387 - - . 1034 1.054 48441
Financial mvestments aailable-for-sale
+ Unquoted securifies 2703 - - - 2703
Loans advances and financing 40,936 B . - " - “ B 10,956
Other assets 115829 3042 5318 1906 496 %2 1636 15700)) 1173998
Amounts due fram holding comp any 1529 - - - . . - 1529
Amounts due from related comp anies 4487 505 - - - - 603 3.092
130430 3.633 7834 7348 84,938 1.847 445 116374 3480.946
Financial liabilities
Deposits from cusfemers 768 901 . CR 1 7 60232 829133
Deposits and placements of banks and other
financial institutions 1176526 - - . 42355 37 42307 1212833
Derivatives financial instruments
- T rading derivatives 30467 - - . 1034 . - 1034 81521
Other ligbilities 979337 in 6423 17092 22406 1 046 13762 65740 1045007
Amounts due to related companies G481 - - i I 9482
Amounts owing to ultimate hoiding compam 12 - . 2
3008.734 3011 6423 71313 63,713 1.046 15814 18934 3178088
Credit related commitments and contingencies | 31.946 ” . . . - | l - I | 81,944
81,046 - - . - - 81,946
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Company No: 18417-M

CIMB Investment Bank Berhad

(Incorperated in Malaysia)

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the financial year ended 31 December 2012 (Continued)

46

46.2

46.2.3

(a)

Financial Risk Management (Continued)

Market Risk (Continued)

Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

The table below summarises the financial assets, financial liabilities, items not recognised
in the statements of financial position and net open position by currency of the Group and

the Bank (Continued)

1 Jarnary 2011

Financial assets

Cash and short term funds

Reverse epurchase agreements

Deposits and placements with banks and other
financial instifutions

Financial assets held for trading

- Quoted seourities

- Unquoted securities

Derivative financial mstuments

- Trading derivatives

Financial investments available-for-sale

- Unquoted securiies

Loans advances and financing

Other assets

Amounts due from ultimate holding company

Amaunts due from refaled companies

Financial liabifizies

Deposits from customers

Deposits and placements of banks and other
financial institutions

Denvatives fmancial instrumenis

- Trading derivatives

Other liabilities

Amounts due fo related companies

Credit related commitments and contingzncies ! 600,218 ||

The Gronp
Total nop-

MiR DR THB SGD UsD AUD  Others MYR|| Grandtetal
RM'000 || RM00D RM00  RM'000 RMWUGH RM'000  RM'000 || RMWQ00 RM'00D
11§2,987 - 3200 444 635 198 T40 IO e43n|| 18731
300 067 - - 300 067
411 681 . - 11315 277513 689 195
3678 3 ] 4 . 13 369

14 148 - 64 296 64 296 78436
31758 - - 10331 10331 42,089
1199 H9 - 6331 6780 8979
2710 - - . - - 2710
775 669 6738 3232 131 3330 129 2228 1307 798.740
a0 - - 60

3.662 902 - 902 6364
2770611 8114 3268 11822 590,690 869 12410 117233 300734
682 166 - 325473 - | 32545 1207 639
1093 141 - - 400 833 4| 400839 1494 000
31310 - - 10331 - 10331 61710
658 330 6.623 30 622 1343 95 2583 20067 678 397
369 - 11736 - 11.736 12.105
1483383 £.623 3000 11937 033,002 9 2687 968466 3434051
- - . . - || 500,218

600218 - - - - - 500,218

146




Company No: 18417-M

CIMB Investment Bank Berhad

(Incorporated in Malaysia)

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the financial year ended 31 December 2012 (Continued)

46  Financial Risk Management (Continued)

46.2 Market Risk (Continued)

46.2.3 Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

{a) The table below summarises the financial assets, financial liabilities, items not recognised

in the statements of financial position and net open position by cuirency of the Group and
the Bank (Continued}

The Bank

Total non-|
31 December 2012 MR DR THB SGD 15D AUD  Others MR} | Grandtoial
RALGO0 || RM000 RAM000  RM'00D RMYO0D  BRA'OOD  RAIDGD RM'000 RM'00
Financial assets

Cash and short term funds 1,366,567 - 617 11,965 17572 1312 3.300 KERAH] 1401832
Reverse repurchase agmeements 150,622 - - - - -l . 130,622
Deposits and placements with banks and other
financial institutions 692,838 B - - - - - - 692,838
Financial assets held for trading
« Queted securities 105 3 [ i . 74 . 90, 195
-~ Unguoted securities 4,881 B " - 28015 - E 18,015 32.8%
Derfvalive (mancial instruments
- Trading derivatives 18920 " N B 168 - - 168 39,088
Finangial investments & aflable-forsale
«+Unquoted securities o . - - s - - H5 M3
Loans. advances and {inancing 73,245 - - - - - - 13,145
Other assets 98195001 19,454 29308 $136 4382 609 12,008 69,918, 1,051,868
Amounts due from ultimate holimg company 1 . . N " . - - 1
Amounts due from subsidiaries 2 . . . N . R . 2
Amounts due from retated comp anies 4,163 340 - - - - | 540 1,803
331344 20,000 29932 16,125 50,882 2,255 15317 134,711 348,155
Total non-
MiR DR THB SGD 18D AD  Others MR Grand total

TALO00  RAT000 RAO0G  RBIO00 RAM'O0G  RM00&  RMO00  RMWO0D RM000
Financial liabilities

Deposits fram customers 802915 - - - . - - - 302,915
Deposits and placements of banks and other
financial institutions 1321 - “ “ - - 161 161 1,327,358
Dem atives finmcial instruments
- Trading derih atives 17,582 B - " 168 " “ 168 17,150
Other liabilities B99,646(1 19,409 19255 393 4,563 638 13,74 70,518 370,164
Amounts due to subsidiaries 11835 - - - - " . - 3,183
Amonnts due to related compenies 2,606 - - - - - - 22606
3.073,131 19,409 23,155 3913 4,729 438 12,883 8T 3,143,978
Credit related commitments and contingencies I 5,082 " - - - - - ! I -|| 5,082
5,082 - - - - - - - 5,082
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Company No: 18417-M

CIMB Investment Bank Berhad

(Incorporated in Malaysia)

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the financial year ended 31 December 2012 (Continued)

46

46.2

46.2.3

(2)

Financial Risk Management (Continued)

Market Risk {Continued)

Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

The table below summarises the financial assets, financial liabilities, items not recognised
in the statements of financial position and net open position by currency of the Group and

the Bank (Continued)
The Bank
Total non-
3t December 2011 MYR DR THB SGD USp AUD  Others MYR|| Grand totad
RM'000 || RM'000 RM'000  RM'000 RM'0G0  RM'000  RM'000 || RM'GOD RM'G00
Financial assets
Cash and short term funds 1499393 1512 69939 12349 1565 2797 83 162 13875355
Revesse repurchase agreements LIER Y] - E 273423
Deposits and placements with banks and other
financiat institutions 2501833 - 250 833
Financial assets held for trading
- Quoted securities 3 6 4 3 - 13 46
- Unguoted securities 30%0 - - - 0974 - 7097 79 064
Derivative financial instruments
- Trading derivatives 47387 1034 - 1034 18441
Loans advances and financing
- Temm loans 40 936 - " . - - - - 4 %56
Other assets 1157296 3042 6318 3906 487 3 1636 15691 1172987
Amounts due from subsidiares 3 - - - - N . 3
Amounts due from related companies 4187 603 - - 603 5092
Amounts due from holding company 1529 - - - - - - - 1.329
3283430 3,633 7834 73,848 34,864 1.847 4433 176499 (3435929
Finazcial liabilities
Deposits {rom customers 768 901 - - 60232 - - 50232 $29.133
Deposits and placzments of banks and other
financial institutiens 1170326 - P 43235 32 41367 1212833
Dertvatives financial instruments
- Trading derivatives 80 467 - - - 1034 - - 1034 $13521
Other liabilities 977997 3011 6423 17092 2397 1 046 15 762 63 731 1043 728
Amounts due to subsidiaries 3185 - - - . . 3185
Amounts due to relsled companies 9479 - 1 - - i ¢ 430
Amounts owing to ultimate holding company 2 - - - - 22
3010577 3018 6413 77323 63.706 1.046 13814 169325 3.179.902
Credit related commitments and contmgsncies | 81,946 || - - - - | | ” 81,946 t
31,946 - - - - - - 81.946
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46

46.2

46.2.3

(a)

Financial Risk Management (Continued)

Markei Risk (Continued)

Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

The table below summarises the financial assets, financial Habilities, items not recognised
in the statements of financial position and net open position by cuiiency of the Group and

the Bank (Continued)

I Janvary 2011

Financial assets

Cash and short term funds

Reverse repurchase agreements

Depaosits and placements w ith banks and other
financial mstitutions

Financial assets beld for trading

~Quoted securities

- Unquoted securities

Derivative financial instroments

- Trading derivatives

Financial investments available-for-sale

- Unquoted securities

Loans advances and financing

Dther assets

Amounts due from subsidiaries

Amgunts due from related companies

Amounts due from ultimate holdmg company

Finangiat Habilifies

Deposits fiom customers

Deposits and placzments of banks and other
financial mstitations

Derivatives financial instruments

- Trading derivatives

Other Habilities

Amounts dug to subsidiaries

Amounts due to related companies

Credit related commitments and contingencies I 600218 ||

The Bank
Tetal non-

MYR IDR 1HB SGh USp AD  Others MYR|| Grand total
RM'300 || RA1'000 RM000  RMY00 RRE'OO0  RAT'GOD  RMYOD || RMMG0 RM'000
1172039 32 4444 633 163 Ho 3910 644290)1F 1816349

300 067 - 300 067
410477 - 277515 277513 687992

3678 3 4 4 - 13 3691

1140 - £4286 64.256 78 436

Rt - 10331 10331 42089

. - 6.331 6.331 6.331

42710 - - . . E 27110

TH 636 6738 3232 YE 3330 129 118 23071 e

2 - - - 1

3662 902 . 902 6.364

60 - - . B . - - 60
1T 166 3268 11823 990633 869 1L 1936749 3782008
682 166 323473 ||| 335473 1207639
1093 141 400 833 41 400839 1494 000
51319 . . - 10331 - “ 10.331 61710
660974 6623 3100 6221 1343 43 2683 20.067 681 041
3183 “ - . 3185
369 11736 - E 1736 12105
2491214 6,625 3000 17957 938,002 95 1687 963466 3.439.6%0
- - - 600,218

600218 . - - 600.213
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46  Financial Risk Management (Continued)

46.2 Market Risk (Continued)

46.2.3 Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

(b) Semnsitivity of profit

Ihe table below shows the sensitivity of the Group’s and the Bank’s profit and reserves to

movement in foreign exchange rates:

The Group and the Bank

31 December 2012 31 December 2011
+1% -1% +1% -1%
appreciation appreciation appreciation appreciation
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
Impact to profit
{after tax} 379 379 406 (406)

The projection assumes that foreign exchange rates move by the same amount and, therefore,
do not reflect the potential impact on profit and reserves of some rates changing while others
remain unchanged. The projections also assume that all other variables are held constant and are
based on a constant reporting date position and that all positions run to maturity.

46.3 Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is defined as the cutrent and prospective risk to earnings, sharecholders fund or the
reputation arising from the Group’s inability to efficiently meet its present and future (both
anticipated and unanticipated) funding needs or regulatory obligations when they come due,
which may adversely affect its daily operations and incur unacceptable losses Liquidity risk
primarily arises from mismatches in the timing of cash flows.

The objective of the Group’s liquidity risk management is to ensure that the Group can meet its
cash obligations in a timely and cost-effective manner To this end, the Group’s liquidity risk
management policy is to maintain high quality and well diversified portfolios of liquid assets
and sources of funds under both normal business and stress conditions Due to its large delivery
network and marketing focus, the Group is able to maintain a diversified core deposit base
comprising savings, demand, and fixed deposits. This provides the Group a stable large funding
base.
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46  Financial Risk Management (Continued)

46.3 Liquidity Risk (Continued)

Liquidity risk management at CIMB 1s managed on Group basis. The day-to-day responsibility
for liquidity risk management and contiol is delegated to the RLRC. RLRC meets at least once
a month to discuss the liquidity risk and funding profile of the Group and each individual entity
under the Group. lThe Asset-Liability Management function, which is responsible for the
independent monitoring of the Group liquidity risk profile, works closely with Group Treasury
in its surveillance on market conditions Business units are responsible for establishing and
maintaining strong business relations with their respective depositors and key providers of
funds Overseas branches and subsidiaries should seek to be self-sufficient in funding at all
times Group Ireasury only acts as a global provider of funds on a need-to o1 contingency basis.
Each entity has to prudently manage its liquidity position to meet its daily operating needs. To
take account of the differences in market and regulatory environments, each entity measures
and forecasts its respective cash flows arising from the maturity profiles of assets, liabilities, oft
balance sheet commitments and derivatives over a variety of time horizons under normal
business and stiess conditions on a regular basis.

Liquidity tisk undertaken by the Group is governed by a set of established risk tolerance levels,
Management action triggers have been established to alert management to potential and
emerging liquidity pressures The Group Liquidity Risk Management Policy is subject to
annual review while the assumptions and the thresholds levels are regularly reviewed in
response to regulatory changes and changing business needs and market conditions

Liquidity positions are monitored on a daily basis for compliance with intemal risk thresholds.
The Group’s contingency funding plan is in place to alert and to enable the management to act
effectively and efficiently during a liquidity crisis and under adverse market conditions The
plan consists of two key components: an early warning system and a funding crisis management
team. The early warning system is designed to alert the Group’s management whenever the
Group’s liquidity position may be at risk. It provides the Group with the analytical framework
to detect a likely liquidity problem and to evaluate the Group®s funding needs and strategies in
advance of a liquidity crisis. The early warning system is made up of a set of indicators
(monitored against pre-determined thresholds) that can reliably signal the financial strength and
stability of the Group.

The Group performs liquidity risk stress testing on a monthly basis ta identify vulnerable areas
in its portfolio, gauge the financial impact and enable management to take pre-emptive actions
The stress tests are modelled based on three scenarios namely Group specific ctisis, market
wide crisis and combined crisis. The assumptions used includes run-off rates on deposits, draw
down rates on undrawn commitments, and hair cuts for marketable securities are documented
and the test results are submitted to the RLRC, the GRC and BRC of the Group. The test results
to date have indicated that the Group does possess sufficient liquidity capacity to meet the
liquidity requirements under various stress test conditions. In addition, the Group computes
Basel I liquidity ratios namely liquidity coverage ratio (LCR) and net stable funding ratio
(NSFR) at least on quarterly basis, in line with BNM observation period for Basel 1H tiquidity
ratios which started in June 2012,
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Company No: i8417-M

CIMB Investment Bank Berhad

{Incorporated in Malaysia)

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the financial year ended 31 December 2012 (Continued)

46

46.4

46.4.1

Financial Risk Management (Continued)
Fair value of financial instruments

Financial instruments comptise financial assets, financial liabilities and items not
recognised in the statements of financial position Fair value is the amount at which a
financial asset could be exchanged or a financial liability settled, between knowledgeable
and willing parties in an arm’s length transaction.

Determination of fair value and fair value hierarchy

With effective from 1 January 2011, the Group adopted the Amendments to MERS 7
which requires disclosures of fair value measurements by level of the following fair value
measurement hierarchy:

Level 1 - Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;

Level 2 - Other techniques for which all inputs which have a significant effect on the
recorded fair value are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or
indirectly; and

Level 3 - Techniques which use inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded
fair value that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs)

Comparative figures for the Group and the Bank ate not presented for 1 January 2011 as
allowed by the transitional provision aiising from the adoption of Amendment te MERS
7 —“Improving Disclosutes about Financial Insttuments”.
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Company No: 18417-M
CIMB Investment Bank Berhad

(Incorporated in Malaysia)

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the financial year ended 31 December 2012 (continued)

46  Financial Risk Management (Continued)

46.4  Fair value of financial instruments (Continued)

46.4.1 Determination of fair value and fair value hierarchy (Continued)

Financial instruments are classified as Level 1 if their value is observable in an active
market. Such instruments are valued by reference to unadjusted quoted prices for
identical assets or liabilities in active markets where the quoted prices is readily
available, and the price represents actual and Iegularly occumng market transactions.
An active maiket is one in which transactions occur with sufficient volume and
frequency to provide pricing information on an on-going basis. These would include

actively traded listed equities and actively exchange-traded derivatives.

Where fair value is determined using unquoted market prices in less active markets o1
quoted prices for similar assets and liabilities, such instruments are generally
classified as Level 2. In cases where quoted prices are generally not available, the
Group then determines fair value based upon valuation techniques that use as inputs,
market parameters including but not limited to yield curves, volatilities and foreign
exchange 1ates. The majority of valuation techniques employ only observable market
data and so reliability of the fair value measurement is high. These would include
certain bonds, government bonds, corporate debt securities, repurchase and reverse
purchase agreements, loans, credit derivatives, certain issued notes and the Group’s

over the counter (“OTC”) derivatives.

~

Financial instiuments are classified as Level 3 if theit valvation incorporates
significant inputs that are not based on observable maiket data (unobservable inputs).
Such inputs are generally determined based on observable inputs of a similar nature,

historical observations on the level of the input or other analytical techniques.

This category includes private equity investments, certain OTC derivatives (requiring
complex and unobservable inputs such as correlations and long dated volatilities) and

certain bonds.
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Company No: 18417-M

CIMB Investment Bank Berhad

{Incorporated in Malaysia)

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the financial year ended 31 December 2012 (Continued)

46

46 4

46.4.1

Financial Risk Management (Continued)

Fair value of financial instruments {Continued)

Determination of fair value and fair value hierarchy (Continued)

The following represents the changes in Level 3 insttuments for the financial year
ended 31 December 2012 and 31 December 2011 for the Group and the Bank.

The Group

Financial Assets
Financial investments
avatlable-for-sale

Total
RM’ 000 RM*000
31 December 2012
At 1 January 2,703 2,703
Total gain recognised in other comprehensive
income 1,284 1,284
Purchases 745 745
At 31 December 4,732 4,732
Total gain recognised in other comprehensive
mcorme relating to assets heid on
31 December 2012 1,284 1,284
31 December 2011
At 1 Januany 8,979 8.97%
New issuances 55 35
Impairment made during the financial year {6.331) (6,331)
At 31 December 2,703 2,703
Total gain recognised in other comprehensive
income refating to assets held on
31 December 2011 (6,331) (6,331}
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Company No: 18417-M

CIMB Investment Bank Berhad

(Incorporated in Malaysia)

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the financial year ended 31 December 2012 (Continued)

46  Financial Risk Management (Continued)

46.4  Fair value of financial instruments (Continued)

46.4.1 Determination of fair value and fair value hierarchy (Continued)

The following represents the changes in Level 3 instruments for the financial year
ended 31 December 2012 and 31 December 2011 for the Group and the Bank
(Continued}

The Bank
Financial Assets
Financial investments
available-for-sale

Total
RM’000 RM 000
31 December 2012
At 1 Januan - -
Purchases 745 745
At 31 December 745 745
Total gain recognised in other cornprehensive
income relating to assets held on
31 December 2012 - -
31 December 2011
At ] January 6,331 6,331
Impaiment made during the financial vear (6,331) (6,331)
At 31 December - -
Total loss recognised in other comprehensive
income relating to assets held on
31 December 2011 (6.331) (6,331)
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Company No: 18417-M

CIMB Investment Bank Berhad

{Incorporated in Malaysia)

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the financial year ended 31 December 2012 (Continued)

46
46.4

46.4.2

Financial Risk Management (Continued)

Fair value of financial instruments (Continued)

Financial instruments not measured at fair value

The total fair value of each financial assets and liabilities presented on the statements
of financial position as at 31 December 2012, 31 December 2011 and 1 January 2011
of the Group and the Bank approximates the total carrying value as at the repotting

date, except for the following:

31 December 2012
Financial assets

Loans, advances and financing

Financial liabikities
Depesits from customers

31 December 2011
Financial assets

Loans. advances and financing

Financial liabilities
Deposits from customers

1 January 2011
Financial assets

Loans, advances and financing

Financial liahilities
Deeposits from customers

The Group The Bank
Carrying Carrying
amount Fair value amoeunt Fair value
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
73,245 57,344 73,245 57,344
802,915 802,179 802,915 802,179
The Group The Bank
Carrying Carrying
amount Fair value amount Fair value
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
40,956 33,428 40,936 34,428
829,133 766,311 829,133 766,311
The Group The Bank
Carrying Carrying
amount Fair value ameunt Fair value
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
42,710 35,325 42,710 35,325
1,207,639 1,136,408 1,207,639 1,156,408
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CIMB Investment Bank Berhad

(Incorporated in Malaysia)

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the financial year ended 31 December 2012 (Continued)

46  Financial Risk Management (Continued)
46.4  Fair value of financial instruments (Continued)
46 4.2 Financial instruments not measured at fair value (continued)
The fair values are based on the following methodologies and assumptions:

Short term funds and placements with financial institutions

For short term funds and placements with financial institutions with maturities of less
than six months, the carrying value is a reasonable estimate of fair value. For deposits
and placements with maturities of six months and above, the estimated fair value is
based on discounted cash flows using prevailing money market interest tates at which
similar deposits and placements would be made with financial institutions of similar

credit risk and remaining period to maturity

Loans, advances and financing

For floating rate loans, the carrying value is generally a reasonable estimate of fair

value

For fixed rate loans with maturities of six months or more, the fair value is estimated
by discounting the estimated future cash flows using the prevailing market rates of

loans with similar credit 1isks and maturities

The fair values of impaired floating and fixed 1ate loans are represented by their carrying
value, net of individual impaitment allowance, being the expected recoverable amount

Amounts due (to)/from subsidiaries and related companies

The estimated fair values of the amounts due from subsidiaries and related companies
approximate the carrying values as the balances are either recallable on demand ot are

based on the current rates for such similar loans.

Amounts due (to)/from holding company and ultimate holding company

The estimated fair value of the amounts due from holding company approximates the

carrying value as the balances are recallable on demand

Deposits from customers

For deposits from customers with maturities of less than six months, the carrying
amounts are a reasonable estimate of their fair value For deposit with maturities of six
months or more, fair values are estimated using discounted cash flows based on

prevailing market rates for similar deposits from customers.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
for the financial year ended 31 December 2012 (continuea)

46  Financial Risk Management (Continued)
46.4  Fair value of financial instruments {Continued)

46.4.2 Financial instruments not measured at fair value (continued)

Deposits and placements of banks and other financial institutions

The estimated fair values of deposits and placements of banks and other financial
institutions with maturities of less than six months approximate the carrying values. For
deposits and placements with maturities of six months or more, the fair values are
estimated based on discounted cash flows using prevailing money market interest rates

for deposits and placements with similar remaining period to maturities

Due from brokers and clients and corporate finance debtors

The estimated fair values of due from brokers and clients and corpotate finance

debtors are approximate the carrying values

Credit related commitment and contingencies

The net fair value of these items was not calculated as estimated fair values are not
readily ascertainable. These financial instruments generally relate to credit risks and
attract fees in line with maiket prices for similar arrangements. They are not presently
sold nor ttaded. The fait value may be represented by the present value of fees

expected to be received, less associated costs

47  Changes in accounting policies and comparatives

(1) Prior year adjustment

During the financial year, the Malaysian Institute of Accountants (“MIA™) issued
Financial Reporting Standards Implementation Committee (“FRSIC™) Consensus 18-
“Monies Held in Trust by Paiticipating Organisations of Bursa Malaysia Securities
Berhad”, which stated that the recognition of monies held in the trust account of
participating organisations of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad, as part of the
participating organisation’s assets with corresponding liabilities, is inappropriate from
the context of MFRS. This is because a participating organisation is prohibited to utilise
the monies either for its own economic benefits or settlement of its own liability. As
such, a participating organisation does not have any contiol over the trust monjes to
obtain the future economic benefits embodied in the trust monies The Group and the

Bank has applied FRSIC 18 retrospectively.
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47  Changes in accounting policies and comparatives (Continued)

The impact of the above on the financial statements of the Group and the Bank are set

out as follows :

Asset
Cash and short term finds

Liabilities

Deposits from customers

-Fed deposits

-Negotiable instruments of deposits
-Others

Other liabifities

Segment reporfing
[Segment assets - equity related]
[Segment libilities - equity related §

Asset
Cash and short term funds

Liabilities

Deposits from customers

-Fixed deposits

-Negotiable instrurnents of deposits
~Others

Other liabilities
Segment reporting

[Segment assets - equity related]
[Seament fiabilities - equity related |

As previously
reported
RM'000

2,068,460

242,383
17,340
509410

1,517425

4163408

RM'000
1,603,593

60,232

768,901

1,052,558

3698,541

The Group
Balances as at 31 December 2011
Effects of adopting

FRSIC 18 Reclassification As restated

RM'000 RM'000

(464,867) -

- (182 151)

- {77340)

- 259,491

(464,867} -

(464.367) -

(464,867) -

3,651,100

Balances as at 1 January 2011

As previously
reported
RM'000

2,173,609

242,383
77340
509410

1,026,891

4,295,475
3,848,753

3,186,233

RM'000
1,827312

60,232

168,501

680,594

3,949,178

Effects of adopting

FRSIC18 Reclassification As restated

RM'000 RM'000

(346,297 -

- (182,151)

- (77 .340)

- 259491

(346 297) -

(346,297) -

£346,297) -

3,502,456
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47  Changes in accounting policies and comparatives (Continued)

The impact of the above on the financial statements of the Group and the Bank are set

out as follows (Continued) :

Asset
Cash and short term funds

Liabilities

Deposits from customers

-Fixed deposits

~Negotiable mstruments of deposits
-Others

Other liabilities

Asset
Cash and short term funds

Liabilifies

Depesits from customers

-Fied deposils

-Negotiable instruments of deposits
-Others

Other liabilities

Balances as at 31 December 2011

As previously
reported
RM'000

1.943.954

640,634
378,840
188,165

1.407 588

Effects of adopling
FRSIC 18 Reclassification As restated
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
(336,399 - 1,587,353

(115,161) 525473
(378,840) -
- 494001 682,166

(356.399) - 1051189

Balances as at 1 January 2011

As previously
reporfed
RM'000

2,074,296

640,634
378.340
{88,165

940,985

184

Effects of adopting
FRSIC 18 Reclassification As restated
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
(257,947 - 1816349

. (115,161) 525473
. (378,840) .
494,001 682,166

(257,947) - 683,038
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47  Changes in accounting policies and comparatives (Continued)

(ii) Reclassification

During the financial year 2012, an internal re-allocation of resources has resulted in a change in
business segment reporting and the impact of the changes are set out as follows :-

The Group
Balances as at 31 December 2011

As previously

reported Reclassification As restated
Business segment : Debt/financing related RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
Income from Istamic Banking operations 35,347 (30,883) 4,464
Segment assets 2,315,328 111,628 2,426,936
Segment liabilities 2,137,370 493,632 2,651,022
As previously
reported Reclassification As restated
Business segment : Equity related RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
Income from Islamic Banking operations - 50,883 30,883
Segment assets 1,073,334 (56,326) 1,017,008
Segmert liabilites 1,008,089 {590,3306) 417,753
Incwrred capital expenditure:
- addition of property. plant and equipment 8,977 13,093 22,070
As previously
reported Reclassification As restated
Business segment : Financial ads isory,
unde rwriting and other fees RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
Segment liabdities 230,913 (245,391) 5,522
Incurred capital expenditure:
- addition of property, plant and equipment 2,163 4,541 6,704
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47  Changes in accounting policies and comparatives (Continued)

(ity  Reclassification {Continued)

During the financial year 2012, an inteinal re-allocation of resources has resulted in a change in
business segment reporting and the impact of the changes are set out as follows :- (Continued)

Business segment : Investments and
securities services

Segment assets

Segment labilities

Incurred capital expenditure:

- addition of property. plant and equipment

Business segment : Support and others
Segment assets
Segment liabilities
Incurred capital expendifure:
- addition of property. plant and equipment

Business segment : Debt/financing refated
Segment assets

Business segment : Equity related
Sepment Labilities

Business segment : Support and others
Segment assets
Segment liabilities

186

As previously

reported

RM'000
24,315
3.740

As previously
reported
RM'000
666,972
198,045

20231

As previously
reported
RM'000

3,089,761

As previously
reported
RM'000
902.881

As previously
reported
RM'000
351,454

69.444

The Group
Balances as at 31 December 2011

Reclassification
RM'000
(22,743)

2,568
Reclassification
RM'000
(519,627)

(103,058)

(20,231)

T'he Group
Balances as at 1 January 2011

Reclassification
RM'000
(88,350)

Reclassification
RM000
(342,500)

Reclassification
RM'000
(257,947
(3.797)

As restated

RM'000

1,572

6.338

As restated
RM'000
147,345

04,987

As restated
RM'000
3,001.411

As restated
RM'000
560.381

As restated
RM 000
293.507

65.647
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48  The operations of Islamic Banking

Statements of Financial Position as at 31 December 2012

31 December 31 December 1 Januvary
2012 2011 2011
Note RATOOO RM’000 RM 000
Assets
Cash and short term funds {a) 256,745 602,352 201.256
Deposits and placements with banks and other
financial institutions (b) 692,756 250,728 370,000
Islamic derivative financial instruments {c) 40,879 50,830 42,089
Other assets (d) 173,455 185,887 337,528
Property, plant and equipment (e) 22 5 93
Amounts due from related companies (6] - 171 68
Total assets 1,163,857 1,090,013 651,034
Liabilities and Islamic Banking capital funds
Deposits from customers () 308,736 259.490 493,452
Deposits and placements of banks and other
financial institutions (h) 263,831 312,475 33,300
Islamic derivative financial instruments (c) 17,750 81,521 61,702
Provision for taxation and Zakat (i) 134,557 99,728 80.440
Other Liabilities )] 804 2,160 1,431
Amounts due to related companies (D) 222 961 308
Total liabilities 725,200 756,335 670,833
Isiamic Banking capital funds 55,250 35.000 535.000
Reserves 382,707 278,678 225201
Total Islamic Banking capital funds 437,957 333,678 280,201
Total liabilities and Islamic Banking capital funds 1,163,857 1,090,013 951,034
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48  The operations of Islamic Banking (Continued)

Statements of Income for the financial year ended 31 December 2012

2012 2011
Note RM G0 RM*000
Income derived fiom investment of depositors” funds
and others (k) 1,416 64
Income derived from investinent of shareholders’ funds ()] 167,506 86.458
Writeback of/(allowance for) impairment losses
on other receivables 9 (68)
Total attributable incomne 168,931 86,454
Income attributable to the depositors (m} (27.953) {11,769)
Total net income 140,978 74,685
Personnel expenses (m) (589) (718)
Other overheads and expenditures (0) (1,530} (1,203)
Profit before taxation 138,859 72,764
Taxation P (34.830) (19,287)
Profit after taxation/total compr ehensive income for
the financial year 144,029 53,477
Total net income 140,978 74,685
Add : (writeback of)/allowance for impairment
lesses on other receivables 9) 68
140,969 74,753
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48  The operations of Islamic Banking (Continued)

Statements of Changes in Equity for the financial year ended 31 December 2012

Islamie
Banking Statutory Retained
capitai fund reserve profits Total

RM'000 RM000 RM000 RMPO00

At 1 January 2012 55,000 1,336 177,342 333,678
Net profit for the financial year - - 104,029 104,029
Total comprehensive income for the

financial year - - 104,029 104,029
Issue of capital funds 250 - - 250
At 31 December 2012 55,250 1336 381,371 437957
At 1 January 2011 33,000 1,336 223.865 280.201
Net profit for the financial year - - 33.477 53.477
Total comprehensive income for the

financial year - - 53,477 53.477
At 31 December 2011 55,000 1,336 277,342 333.678
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48  The operations of Islamic Banking (Continued)

Statements of Cash Flows for the financial year ended 31 December 2012

Note
Cash flows fi om eperating activities
Profit before taxation
Add/(less) adjustinents:
Unrealised foreign exchange gain
(Writeback of)/allowance for impairment losses on
other receivables

Net unrealised loss on revaluation of Islamic derivative
financial mstruments

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

Cash flow fromoperating profit before changes
operating assets and liabilities

Operating assets

Deposits and placements with banks and other financial
Islamic dertvative financial instruments

Other assets

Amounts due from related companies

Operating liabilities

Deposits from customers

Deposits and placements of banks and other financial
institutions

Other liabilities

Amounts due to related companics

Net cash (used in)/gencsated from operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of property, plant and equipment

Issue of capital funds

Net cash generated fromv/(used in) financing activities

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivaients during
the financial year
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the financial year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the financial year (a)

190

2012 2011
RM000 RM000
138,859 72.764

(26) (194)

® 68
12,595 24,638

8 90
151,427 97.366
(442,028) 119272
(66,415) {13.560)
12,468 151,767
171 (103)
49,246 (233,962)
(48,644) 278,975
(1,356) 578
(739) 653
(345,870) 400.986
)] {2)

250 -

223 2)
(345,647) 400,984
602,392 201,408
256,745 602,392
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48 The operations of Islamic Banking (Continued)

The Bank
31 December 31 December | January
2012 i 2011
RMTO00 RM’000 RM’000
{a} Cash andshort ter m funds
Cash and balances with banks and other financial mstitutions 66 37 36
Money at calland deposit placements maturing within
one month 256,679 602355 201,200
256,745 602,352 201,256
(b) Deposits and placements with banks and other financial
institutions:
Gener al investment funds: .
Licensed banks 692,756 250,728 370,000
(c) Islamic derivative financial instruments
The following tables summarise the contractual or underlying principal amounts of
Islamic derivative financial instruments held at fair value through profit or loss. The
principal or contractual amounts of these instruments reflect the volume of
transactions outstanding at the end of the reporting period, and do not represent

amounts at risk.

Trading derivative financial instruments are revalued on a gross position basis and the
unrealised gains or Josses are reflected in “Derivative Financial Instruments™ Assets
and Liabilities respectively

The Bank
Principal Fair values
amount Assets Liahilities

RM'090 RM000 RM'000
At 31 December 2012
Held for trading purposes
Islamic profit mfe derivatives
Islamic profit rate swaps 787,210 40,711 (17,582)
Equity options 477,798 168 (168)
Total derivative assets / (liabilities) 1,265,008 44,879 {17,750)
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48

()

@

The operations of Islamic Banking (Continued)

Islamic derivative financial instruments (Continued)

The Bank

Principal Fair values
amonnt Assets Liabilities
RM000 RM000 RM'000
At 31 December 2011
Held for tr ading purposes
Islamic profit mte derivatives
Islamic profit rate swaps 861.110 49776 (82467
Equity options 540,557 1,054 {1,054)
Total derivative assets/ {liabilities)} 1,401,667 50,830 {81,521
At January 2011
Held for trading pur poses
Islamic profit rate denvatives
Islamic profit rate swaps 817530 31,758 (51371}
Equity derivatives
Equity options 867,353 10,331 (i0,331)
Total derivative assets/(liabilities ) 1,684,883 42,089 (61,702)
The Bank
31 December 31 December  1January
2012 2011 2011
RM000 RM" 000 RM 000
Other assets
Due from brokers and clients net of allowance for
impairment loss of RM Nil (31 December 2011:
RM Nil, I January 2011: Nif) 60 2,503 432
Other debtors, deposits and prepayments 173,395 183384 337.09
173,455 185,887 337,528
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48  The operations of Islamic Banking (Continued)
(e} Property, plant and equipment

Office
equipment  Computer
and furniture  equipment Motor

and fittings  and software vehicles  Renovation Total
The Bank RMO00 RM 000 RM000 RMO00 RM 000
31 December 2812
Cost
At 1 January 316 109 119 693 1,237
Additiens 9 18 - - 17
At 3] December 325 127 119 693 1,264
Accumulated depreciation
At | January 315 109 119 691 1234
Charge for the financial year 2 4 - 2 8
At 31 December 317 113 119 693 1,242
Net book value as at 31 December 2012 8 14 - - 22
At 31 December 2011
Cost
At 1 January 316 109 119 593 1237
Additions 1 1 - - 2
A1 31 December 317 11¢ 119 693 1,239
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 January 310 109 111 614 1744
Charge for the financial year 5 - g 77 90
At 31 December 315 109 119 591 1,234
Net book value as at 31 December 2011 2 1 - 2 3
Net book value as at 1 January 2011 6 - 8 £l 93




Company No: 18417-M

CIMB Investment Bank Berhad

{Incorporated in Malaysia)

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the financial year ended 31 December 2012 (Continued)

48

®

(h

1]

The operations of Islamic Banking (Continued)

Amounts due from/(to) related companies
(i) Amounts due fromr
- Related companies

(i} Amounts due to:
- Related companies

Deposits from customers
Non-Mudhar abah fund:
Vanable rate deposits
Equity Lmked Sukuk

(i) The deposits are sourced fromthe following customers:
- Govemment and statutory bodies
- Business enterprises
- Individuals
- Others

Deposits and placements of hanks and other financial institutions
Mudharabah fund:
Licensed banks

Provision for taxation and Zakat
T axation
Z akat

Other liabilities
Due to brokers
Other liabilities

194

The Bank
31 December 31 December 1 January
2012 2011 2011
RMOG0 RM 600 RM(060
- 171 68
(222) (961} {308)
- 77,340 378,330
308,736 182,130 115,122
308,736 259,490 493 452
54,400 54,650 69,400
1,250 170.180 16 200
249336 30910 403 852
3,750 3750 4,600
308,736 259,480 493,452
263,831 312475 33,500
133,950 93121 79,833
607 607 607
134,557 99,728 80,440
237 1.900 128
567 260 1,303
804 2,160 1431
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48

{K)

U

(m)

The operations of Islamic Banking (Continued)

Income derived from investment of depositors’ funds
Income derived from investinent of:
(1) General investment deposits

Income derived from investment of general investment deposits
Finance income and hibah:
Money at call and deposit and placements with financial institutions

Income derived from investment of shareholders' funds
Finance income and hibah:
Money at call and deposit and placements with financial mstitutions

Other dealing income:
Unrealised loss on revaluation of derivatives
Net realised gain on derivatives

Fee and commission income:
Advisony fees

Placement fees

Brokerage fees

Underwriting commission
Others

Other income:
Foreign exchange gain
Others

Income attribufable to depositor s
Deposits from cusfomers
- Non-Mudharabah Fund

Deposits and placements of banks and other financial institutions
- Mudharabah Fund
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The Bank
2012 2011
RAM000 RM’000
1416 o4
1416 64
26,99 21,848
(12,595) (24,63%)
13,607 15372
1.012 (9,266)
62 15.239
110,859 37.028
5492 12476
12,577 4299
4,080 3,579
133,070 72,621
26 194
6,408 1,061
6,434 1,255
167,506 86,458
17,965 6,956
9,988 4813
27,953 11.769
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48  The operations of Islamic Banking (Continued)

The Bank
2012 201t
RM0SS RM 000
(n) Personnel expenses
- Salaries , allowances and bonuses 497 433
-EPF 47 3
- Others 45 222
589 718
{0) Other overheads and expenditure
Establishment expenses
- Depreciation of property  plant and equipment 8 90
- Rental 303 207
- Others 84 42
395 339
Marketing expenses
- Advertisement 827 10
- Others 97 288
924 298
Adminijstration and gencral expenses
- Legal and professional fees [ 101
- Others 205 465
211 566
1,530 1,203

Included in overheads are fees paid to the Shariah Committee members amounting to
RM337,670 (2011: RM390,066)
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48  The operations of Islamic Banking (Continued)

The Bank
2012 2011
RM 000 R 000
{v] Taxation
(i) Tax expense for the financial year
Current year tax
- Malaysian income tax 34,830 19,287

{(ii}y Numerical reconciliation of income tax expense
The explanation on the relationship between taxexpense and profit before taxation is as follows:

The Bank

2012 2011

RM 004 RM’'000

Profit before taxation 138,859 72,764
Taxcalculated at taxrate of 25% (2011: 25%) 34,715 18,191
Expenses not deductable for tax purposes 115 138
Under accrual in prior years - Q58
Taxexpense 34,830 19,287
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48  The operations of Islamic Banking (Continued)

(q) Related party transactions and balances

(1) Related parties and relationships

Ihe related parties of, and their relationship with the Bank, is disclosed in Note 37 (a)

(ii) Significant related party transactions and balances

A number of banking transactions are entered into with related parties in the normal
course of business These significant related party fransactions were carried out on
commercial terms (i e. terms and conditions obtainable in transactions with unrelated

parties) and at market rates unless otherwise stated.

31 December 31 December 1 January
2012 2011 2011
Other related Other related refated
companies companies companies
RM' (04 RM 000 RM’000
Sales:
Khazanah bonds 69250 - -
Islamic private debt securities 1,851,489 185,972 91,670
1,920,739 183,972 91,670
Purchases:
Khazanah bonds 69,250 - 64,649
Islamic private debt securities 1,840,673 246,414 -
1,909,923 246414 64,649
Income:
Net realised loss on derivatives 825 (8.215)
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48  The operations of Islamic Banking (Continued)
(q) Related party transactions and balances (Continued)

(i)  Significant related party transactions and balances (continued)

31 December 31 December 1 January
2012 2011 2011
Other related  Other related Other
companies companies related
RM000 RM000 RM000
Amounts due from:
Cash and short term funds - 602,355 201,690
Depoesits and placements with banks and other
financial institutions 256,745 250,128 370915
Islamic dertvative financial instruments 1,547 5,094 20,267
258,292 839,177 592,872
Amounts due to:
Deposits and placements of banks and other
financial institutions 692,756 312,475 33,825
Principal
Profit rate related contracts;
[slamic profit rate swaps 138,380 157,330 378,330
Equity related contracts:
Equity options 238,899 270,279 433677
377279 427,609 812,007

49 Client trust accounts

As at 31 December 2012, cash held in trust for clients by the Group and the Bank amounted to
RM486,594,000 and RM386,737,000 respectively (31 December 2011: RM464,867,000, 1
January 2011: RM346,287,000 and 31 December 2011: RM356,399,000, 1 January 2011:
RMZ257,947,000). These amounts are not recognised in the financial statements as the Group and
the Bank held them in a fiduciary capacity.

50 Authorisation for issue of Financial Statements

The Financial Statements have been authotised for issue in accordance with a resolution of
the Board of Directors on 12 March 2013
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